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I am pleased to present the 2020 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together

with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, “the Company” or “Xingfa

Aluminium”).

In 2020, Xingfa Aluminium continued to hold on to its position
and won the support of customers with its high-quality aluminum
profiles, and maintained itself as a reliable partner of top 20
real estate enterprises in China in providing high-end aluminum
profiles. It also participated in the construction of various
landmark projects and provided high-end aluminium profiles for
the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympic Games arena, Chengdu Tianfu
International Airport, Xiong’an High-speed Railway Station,
Hangzhou Asian Games Village and the Historical Memorial Hall
of the Communist Party of China as a lead supplier. The above
projects have not only continuously driven the revenue and profit
of the Group to new highs during the year but also witnessed
Xingfa’s standing as the premier brand of construction aluminium
profiles in the PRC.

In 2020, the Group’s revenue increased by 5.4% to approximately
RMB11,886,900,000 (2019: RMB11,280,848,000) and sales
volume rose by approximately 6.5% to 651,721 tonnes (2019:
612,223 tonnes). Of which, the sales of construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminum profiles accounted for 77.9%
and 19.5% of the revenue, respectively. Gross profit reached
RMB1,629,400,000 for the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 9.4%. The gross profit margin was 13.7% and
net profit attributable to shareholders increased by 26.3% to
approximately RMB765,400,000 (2019: RMB606,100,000).
The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.36 per ordinary share of the Company (“Shares”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HKDO0.28) to recompense
shareholders for their support to Xingfa.
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As we have been dedicated and professionally and consistently
strived for perfection in technology, R&D, product quality,
services and management, Xingfa managed to position itself
strongly in the industry for years and maintained its industry
leading position, leading the industry in terms of technology
and formulating industrial standards. In the future, we will
continue to expand the Group’s business by focusing on three
aspects, including continuous internal improvement, exploring
industrial aluminum profiles market and intelligent production and

management, so as to lead Xingfa to become bigger and stronger.

After over a year of planning and analysis, the strategy on
the internal improvement of the Group has been gradually
implemented as scheduled. The reforms in various aspects such as
production process, product R&D, information technology, sales
process and human resources management have been generally
completed and the integrated strategy of production, supply and
marketing has achieved preliminary results, which not only have
improved the overall effectiveness and efficiency, but also improve
customer loyalty and bring in more orders. Besides production
management, the human resources management strategy is also
one of the key measures introduced by the Group in its brand new
management to support its medium— to long-term development.
We introduced the Amoeba business strategy, implemented the
business model with high transparency and participation of
everyone, nourished our future leadership, and united all members
of Xingfa to move towards the same goal.
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For business, the Group continued to devote to the “construction
profiles + industrial profiles” dual-engine development roadmap
to expand the source of revenue of the Group. China has
continuously strengthened its regulation on real estate enterprises
in recent years and introduced “three red lines (Z{RALAR)”
last year to tighten financing. The domestic real estate market
is expected to maintain a healthy and stable development in
the future and the demand for construction aluminium profiles
is expect to stabilize. As a major supplier of construction
aluminium profiles, Xingfa is likely to earn stable revenue
from the construction materials industry. Meanwhile, the Group
will leverage its technology and experience in the construction
materials industry and expand into the industrial materials
industry that demands higher quality requirements but with huge
profit potential, manufacture electronic consumer products and
lightweight transport products. The precision manufacturing base
completed during the year is under trial production. The new
plants will focus on industrial aluminum profiles to facilitate
the Group to seize huge opportunities in the industrial materials
industry.

To support the long-term development of construction aluminium
profiles and the business expansion on industrial aluminum
profiles, Xingfa is actively carrying out the upgrading plan of
intelligent production base and digital production management, so
as to improve the Group’s production efficiency, risk resistance
ability and flexibility in coping with uncertainty. Moreover, the
Group is also synchronously improving our service, technology
and processing quality to enhance the overall long-term operating
efficiency, increase product mix and improve quality from
multiple perspectives in a bid to provide customers with top
quality aluminum profiles.

Finally, the development of Xingfa Aluminium would not
have been achieved without the unwavering support from our
shareholders. In future, Xingfa Aluminium will continue to
seek breakthroughs, make new achievements and bring more
sustainable returns for our shareholders. Thanks everyone again.

LIU Libin, Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2021
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INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Industry Review

In the past year, the global economy experienced the most
serious impact in recent years due to various factors including
the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic, escalating
Sino-US trade frictions and global economic slowdown. As
a result, various major economies suffered a setback, and
international logistics, business operations were also hampered,
affecting the development pace of many industries and businesses.
However, the PRC government implemented stringent and rapid
epidemic prevention measures and successfully contained the
epidemic under effective control, which not only allowed the
businesses to rapidly return to their development paths, but
also enabled China to become the only country in the world to

maintain positive economic growth.
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Despite macroeconomic setbacks, the central government still
demonstrated strong determination to control housing prices
and to deleverage when facing the problem of domestic housing
bubble. From mid-2020 to early 2021, it implemented the “three
red lines (ZARALAR)” requirements respectively, setting the
ceilings on the proportion of bank mortgage and the proportion of
individual mortgage. It also suggested to speed up the collection
of real estate tax to rectify the domestic property sector in both
the supply and demand aspects, optimize the overall financing
environment, reduce bubble bursting risk, and ensure the healthy
and orderly development of the whole sector in the long run.
According to the announcement made by the People’s Court of the
PRC, in 2020 there was a total of over 470 enterprise publishing
bankruptcy announcements (source: http://finance.eastmoney.
com/a/202101011758834593.html), which are mainly focused on
small and medium-sized real estate enterprises in third and fourth
tier cities, thus reshaping the housing industry, and the real estate
market is leaning towards leading major real estate enterprises
with solid financial strength and abundant resources. Among the
top 20 real estate enterprises in China, Vanke, Country Garden,
Sunac, China Overseas, China Resources, Greentown, Seazen,
China Fortune, Shimao Property, Jinke and Agile are customers
of the Group, in which we have close and long-term partnership
relationships. We also co-operated with other major real estate
enterprises in certain projects. Therefore, the continuous
integration of the real estate market helped to consolidate the sales
and market share of construction aluminium profiles of the Group.

With years of development in the aluminium profile industry
and the growing demand for high-end products sectors including
green construction, lightweight automobile development and
railway transportation, industry peers with relatively backward
technological standards may be eliminated, and orders will
gradually be transferred to leading enterprises with more
technological and research and development advantages,
thereby accelerating industry integration. At the same time, the
aluminium profile market in China is relatively fragmented, and
product homogenization is obvious, hence both the market prices
and processing costs are declining. As one of China’s leading
aluminum profile manufacturers, Xingfa focuses more on the
supply of high-end aluminum profiles, with leverage on our higher
quality service, flexible management, professional management
and continuous enhancement of the capabilities of research and
development, technology and processing, the Group can benefit
from China’s rapid economic recovery in the year to increase
revenue and profit overall, continue to expand market share,
thereby becoming the premier brand of construction aluminium
profiles in the PRC.
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Business Review

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profiles
manufacturers in the PRC and is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are being
used as construction and industrial materials. Since 2002, the
Group has been awarded the “No. 1 of the National Construction
Aluminium Profiles Enterprise” by China Non-Ferrous Metals
Fabrication Industrial Association for three consecutive sessions.
As of 31 December 2020, the Group had obtained approximately
103 national patents and participated in the drafting of
approximately 1,550 national and industry standards. Currently,
we are also one of the world’s largest suppliers of electrical
conductive aluminium profiles for metro vehicles. In recent four
years, the Group has focused on gradually establishing our sales
outlets in the prefecture-level cities in Southern China and Eastern
China, and at the same time has invested its resources to establish
sales outlets in key cities of relatively under-developed regions,
and apparent positive results were seen from the regional sales
data.

For Xingfa, year 2020 was full of external challenges and it was
also a year of sustaining positive growth amid the adversity by
overcoming all the barriers. The epidemic during the year exerted
temporary impact on the overall operation of the Group. As the
domestic epidemic broke out in the beginning of the year, our
domestic orders were postponed as a result of suspension of real
estate projects. After the resumption of production, the Group
gave priority to processing overseas orders and was able to
manage the sales decline in the first quarter to be under control.
Since the second quarter, with the outbreak of COVID-19 in China
being under control within a short period of time, augmented by
the rapid recovery of the Chinese economy in the second half of
the year, the growth of our domestic orders picked up again and
our best monthly sales figures ever was recorded. Although the
sales price of aluminum profiles and product processing charges
decreased slightly due to the impact of market environment, our
high quality products and quality service standards are widely
favoured by customers and the successful growth in sales volume

drove the Group’s revenue to keep on rising.
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During the period under review, the Group continued to seek
participation in landmark projects and was approved as a lead
supplier to provide aluminium profiles for Hangzhou Asian Games
Village, Canal Asian Games Park, Beijing Winter Olympic Games
arena, Historical Memorial Hall of the Communist Party of China,
Sub-center of Beijing, Hangzhou Xiaoshan International Airport,
Chengdu Tianfu International Airport, Xiong’an High-speed
Railway Station and Shenzhen campus of Sun Yat-sen University,
demonstrating that the quality of the Group’s products have

received high regard of the market.

For overseas sales, during the year, the Group continued to
promote the sales of aluminium profiles in Australia, New
Zealand, Vietnam, Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Cambodia,
Thailand, Myanmar, Japan, Egypt, Chile, South Africa and
West Africa, and had its very first shipment of products to
the United Kingdom. However, owing to the acute epidemic
situation overseas, overseas customers’ intention to purchase was
weakened, together with the restrictions of international logistics,
our overseas sales declined year-on-year in the second half of the
year, which slightly reduced the yearly overseas sales income.
At the same time, the development pace of Australian production

base is also affected to some extent.
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue and
sales volume of the Group increased by 5.4% and 6.5% to
approximately RMB11,886.9 million and 651,721 tonnes
respectively (2019: RMB11,280.8 million and 612,223 tonnes
respectively), of which the sales of construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminium profiles accounted for 77.9%
and 19.5% of the revenue respectively. The gross profit of
the Group for the year increased by 9.4% year-on-year to
approximately RMB1,629.4 million. The gross profit margin was
13.7% (2019: 13.2%), and such an increase was mainly due to
proper control over the price of materials with the Company’s
strict bidding procedures for the procurement of production
materials, as well as strict control over leakage by implementing
refined production in the production process, a decrease in cost
per tonne by improving the processing skills continuously and
hedging for the procurement of raw materials. During the Year, the
profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB765.4 million, representing an increase of 26.3% year-on-
year.
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Construction aluminium profiles

The construction aluminium profiles are aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, which are mainly used for the construction and
installation of doors and windows, curtain walls, ceilings and
blinds and other decorative products.

In 2020, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles
increased by 6.0% to approximately RMB9,261.7 million (2019:
RMBS,733.5 million), and sales volume increased by 6.3% to
approximately 502,948 tonnes (2019: 473,305 tonnes).

Industrial aluminium profiles

The industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium
profiles, which can be used as the frame of container box, such as
new electrical conductive profiles of urban railway locomotives
and ship components. Moreover, the industrial aluminium profiles
can also be produced in other different forms and shapes, such
as central processing unit (CPU) and display thermal sinks and
electronic consumer product frames.

The revenue of industrial aluminium profiles in 2020 increased by
5.0% to approximately RMB2,320.3 million (2019: RMB2,210.7
million), and sales volumes increased by 5.7% to approximately
144,142 tonnes (2019: 136,395 tonnes).

PROSPECT

Looking forward into 2021, the PRC government continues to
introduce more real estate policies, such as the new regulations
of “Dual Concentration (& H')” to stabilize market growth. A
stable home is the haven of Chinese people, therefore Chinese
people have regarded housing as a necessity after thousand years
of development. In order to stabilize the housing price, on the
basis of the results achieved in past three years in deleveraging,
the PRC government will continue to shift towards stabilized
leveraging and ensure the debt ratio of real estate enterprises is
stable and the bottom line of non-occurrence of major debt risks
is firmly defended. As the market size of construction aluminium
profile remains large, the future development of Xingfa’s
construction aluminium profile business will no longer be led by
increase in volume. Instead, we will focus more on cost control,
improvements in the management, technology, quality and service
standards, and thereby moving towards the goal of pushing profit

margin.
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In facing the surrounding challenges and uncertainties, the Board
of Directors and the management of the Group are more firmly
convinced of the importance of continuous internal improvement,
with the long-term sustainable development as the goal, they will
lead the development of upgrading and optimization in terms of
management of Xingfa, production, research and development and
other aspects of Xingfa. The management reform initiated by the
Group in 2019 achieved development progress during the year.
The integrated strategy of production, supply and marketing has
significantly shortened the entire sales and production process by
5-7 days, and the lead time is shorter than industry peers. This
has not only improved the overall effectiveness and efficiency, but
also improved customer loyalty and brought in more orders. For
human resources, the Group adopts the Amoeba business strategy,
clearly conveys the development direction, corporate culture,
organizational structure and the operating philosophy to every
employee and department, implements the business model of high
transparency and participation of everyone, nourishes our future
leadership, and unites all members of Xingfa to move towards the
same goal.

Xingfa is actively carrying out the upgrading plan of intelligent
production base and digital production management, so as to
improve the Group’s production efficiency, risk resistance ability
and flexibility in coping with uncertainty. The Group has set
up the Project Management Department to undertake intelligent
manufacturing functions and to implement the transformation
into data and digitalisation of production line and production
management. In the future, we can collect big data to precisely
manage and optimise production lines, to significantly reduce
scrap volume, improve production effectiveness and efficiency,
and ensure product quality. Moreover, the Group is also
synchronously improving our service, technology and processing
quality to enhance the overall long-term operating efficiency,
increase product mix and improve quality from multiple
perspectives in a bid to provide customers with top quality

aluminum profiles.
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In terms of research and development, the Group is committed to
achieving its dual-engine development in construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminium profiles based on its market
and technological experiences in construction aluminium
profile to expand the industrial aluminium profile market. The
precision manufacturing base situated at Sanshui Industrial Park
in Guangdong Province had already been completed during
the year. The first automatic backlog machine production line
was in trial production on 25 October 2020, other production
lines will be gradually installed in 2021, and it is expected to
commence full production in May 2021. The said base is planned
to produce high-end industrial aluminum profiles for sectors such
as high-end electronic communication equipment, heat cooling
equipment, medical equipment and military applications, which
is an important step for the Group to implement the dual-engine
development. Apart from the dedicated production facilities, by
the end of 2020, the Group also set up separate research and
development department and sales department for industrial
aluminum profile, and will develop more industrial aluminum
profile products and orders, and strengthen the technology of
primary, fine and deep processing. It is expected that 2021 will
witness the result of research and development for the first batch
of industrial aluminum profile products and it will be expanded
along the technology roadmap in the future. The lightweight
transport development is the future development trend, the Group
devoted tremendous efforts in researching and developing the
aluminum profiles suitable for the electrical conductive parts of
light railway this year. Owing to the high technical content and
barriers of entry, as well as the huge investment in the preliminary
stage, market competition is not intense, As the leader, the Group
possesses first mover advantage and can enjoy the economies of
scale in the long run.

In the long run, The Group will remain cautious and optimistic
about the prospects of the aluminium profile markets. As the
market is gradually becoming matured, smaller-scale peers will
be eliminated one after another because the market environment
becomes difficult, and leading enterprises will benefit from the
continuous production capacity integration. Meanwhile, the
application of industrial aluminium profiles will become more
extensive in the future, which will have a positive impact on the
Group’s business with the rollout of more results in the research
and development of industrial aluminum profiles. The Group will
continue to develop under a balanced approach in both its external
business expansion and internal operation efficiency enhancement,
so as to bring greater returns to our shareholders and stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year increased
by 5.4% and 6.5% year-on-year to approximately RMB11,886.9
million and 651,721 tonnes respectively (2019: RMB11,280.8
million and 612,223 tonnes respectively). The growth was

attributable to the increase in sales orders during the Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles for the Year
increased by 6.3% to 502,948 tonnes (2019: 473,305 tonnes).
Meanwhile, the sales volume of industrial aluminium profiles for
the Year also increased by 5.7% to 144,142 tonnes (2019: 136,395
tonnes).

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019:

% B i B g B

4 5 Il e
B

RARFEE REBEZEEE KR EED A
W hN5.4% k6. 5%%2’1}\@’5‘11 886,900,000
JER651,721MF (= FE—JLE 5 Rl A AR
11,280,800,0007T 52 612,223Mf) o %M E T3 FEH
RN EET B MR EL -

FAAAE > 33 S ER AU AL B 2 1 6.3 % 22 502,948 11

(ZZE—JU4E 1 473,305Mf) o BLIIL[A HF > JAAAE
[E o TESRBUM B m I IN5.7% 2 144, 1420 (=%
—JLAE 1 136,3950) ©

TREJNAEENRBE_Z_ZER TN
FHZA=+—HiFEEEA] 2 H oy HEHE o
BRI

2020 2019
BRI ZE—UE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET T AR TIT
Manufacturing and sale of A 7 R B SR B A
aluminium profiles
— Construction aluminium profiles — SRR AR 9,261,704 8,733,486
— Industrial aluminium profiles — TSR 2,320,269 2,210,691
11,581,973 10,944,177
All other segments Rt A E A 5356 304,889 336,671
Total HaEr 11,886,862 11,280,848

Note:  Our Group’s revenue from all other segments represented revenue
generated from processing service contracts related to aluminum
products, sale of office premises and residential properties and
sale of aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds and spare
parts.

Wfat . RSB RE A M AR KR A
BRI LIRS &4 SR A YE REEY
3 DU S B S i 81 A > LR R B AR T E
ER)E R -
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by 9.4%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1,629.4 million (2019:
RMB1,489.8 million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group remained
stable at 13.7% (2019: 13.2%), and the sales to production ratio
remained stable at 99% (2019: 99%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our

B R B

MRAEE AEEZEBHAZEHIMNIA40EL
AN R #1,629,400,0007C (= ZE—JLFE . AR
1,489,800,0007T) °

MRAEE KREBZEBENRERBER
13.7% ("B —JU4F 1 13.2%) > HELEEER
HEFFIBEFR99% (. F — JLIE 1 99%) ©

TREJNAEBER T _FER _F—NER

aluminium profiles in 2020 and 2019: B 2 BAE
2020 2019
—E R —E—LE
Construction aluminium profiles A E R AL 13.5% 12.7%
Industrial aluminium profiles TSR AA 9.8% 9.7%

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles
increased to 13.5% for the Year as compared to that of 2019.
Such increase was in line with the increase in revenue while cost
remained stable as a result of hedging for the procurement of raw
materials.

The gross profit margin of industrial aluminium profiles remained
stable at 9.8% for the Year as compared to that of 2019. This was
mainly attributable to the hedging for the procurement of raw
materials.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the Year increased significantly by
38.1% year-on-year to approximately RMB146.4 million (2019:
RMB106.0 million), which was mainly attributable to the increase
in interest income on accounts receivables and the net foreign

exchange gain.

HEESEAIM N AR EE B R T — LEE
EE13.5% ° ﬁ%ﬁ%%m@%%%ﬁigbnlﬁlﬁqﬁzsl
EH AR R R A R E — B

THERMUMNAEEZ B KRG B —NER
TETR9.8% ° &t)ﬁﬂi%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁz °
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Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by
22.8% to approximately RMB360.0 million (2019: RMB293.1
million), which accounted for 3.0% of the revenue (2019: 2.6%).
The increase was due to the significant increase in sales volume
which led to the corresponding increase in transportation costs and
staff costs.

Administrative expenses

Due to business expansion of the Group, the number of
management staff increased, resulting in an increase in staff
costs during the Year. As a result, the administrative expenses
of the Group for the Year increased by 3.4% to approximately
RMB396.1 million (2019: RMB383.1 million), which accounted
for 3.3% of the revenue (2019: 3.4%).

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 32.9% to approximately RMB101.6
million for the Year (2019: RMB151.5 million) mainly due to the

decrease in average loans and borrowings during the Year.
Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders™) for the Year increased by 26.3% year-on-year to
approximately RMB765.4 million (2019: RMB606.1 million). The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in sales orders
during the Year.

% B i B g B
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Analysis of Financial Position
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group’s current and quick ratios
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

WA 53R B 57 e
LBl B ) L

TREINAEER B _FFER_F—LF
+TZA=t—HZImE A F R

2020 2019
R TRAE —E—AF
Current ratio (Note i) TREN LR (W7 ) 1.30 1.19
Quick ratio (Note ii) ABI LR (7T 1.01 0.93
Notes: Wat -
(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided (i) MBI R F R M ENE EAEERLITE &

by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

(i) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the
total current assets and the inventories divided by the total current
liabilities at the end of the year.

Current ratio increased for the Year which was mainly due to
the decrease in bank loan balances as at 31 December 2020 as

compared to that as at 31 December 2019.
Quick ratio improved for the Year which was mainly due to
the decrease in bank loan balances as at 31 December 2020 as
compared to that as at 31 December 2019.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2020 and 2019:

ARG R -

()  HEIERUERZAHEERERFRZ £
FRR LU B B AR R A o

RAFE RBLERZE_F—-E+ A
=t-HEANMFERRZZ LA
=t HZIRTERSERBD TR

RAFE BIPLRBE_F-NLE+ A
=t— Eiﬁﬁﬂ%mﬁi%ﬁﬂﬁ/‘ e
A=+ —HIRITERAERR B FTE -

s kb

TREINAEZER _E_FTFER T~ NLE
TZA=t—HZAaELR:

2020 2019

— ? — = ﬂf :%Qﬁqﬁi

Gearing ratio (Note) BELR W7 13.4% 21.9%
Note: Wat -

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by

total assets and multiplied by 100%.

BE EE R DUE R (8 B bR DU 2 48 E F - LL100% 5T
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The gearing ratio was improved for the Year as compared to
that of 2019 which was mainly due to the decrease in bank loan
balances as at 31 December 2020.

Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

% B i B g B

MAEEZ AELERE T - LEF &S
TEEHRNR T _FHE+Z )% +—H#IRAT
BRI BRI AT B o

17 5
TREIAEEHNBEE_F_ZER_FT N

F+ZH="+— EIJJ:EEZT”E%E} ;

2020 2019
— 7 — = ﬂi :%gﬂﬁi
Inventory turnover days (Note) 17 & JE M (7t 42 42

Note:
Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the

beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The production efficiency was maintained at a similar level when
compared with last year, leading to the same inventory turnover
days for the Year as compared to that of 2019.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days

Wiat :

17 1 4 DA R 458 48 T < ) B A% 2 A7 B A BR T
PR DU P 2 B A R R A SR DA36s H T B o

R ERCRE MM E K EN R
JE T B — SLEE A (] o
B WA Bk K i MR 301

TREJNAEBNBE_Z_ZER_Z N

during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019: FE+ZA=ZT—HIEFEEZ EWRERRECARIE
2020 2019

B BAE —E—NF

Debtors’ turnover days (Note) JEE U B 3R AT BR B (B 2E) 96 88

Note:

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) for the periods divided by revenue during the years
multiplied by 365 days.

The debtors’ turnover days increased for the Year as compared
to that of 2019. This was because repayments from certain
downstream customers were slower during the Year.

Wit -

JE W R SRR B R S0 DU B S 48 2 52 5 T MACRR SR B JE L
SERRAE AR (PR R IR ) < P9 BBR DUE 9 2 8 S
ARRLBesSHANF -
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Creditors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

JEE ) e i R S0

TREINAEERBEZ_TFR_Z N
FH_HA=1t—HLEFEEZEMNRKTIRY

2020 2019
— —e = ﬂi :g_‘hﬁz
Creditors turnover days (Note) JE < HR FREC BR M (W 7%) 83 75

Note:

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year increased as compared
to that of 2019. This was mainly because longer credit period was
granted by the main suppliers due to better negotiation power of
the Group.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s loans and borrowings
dominated in RMB amounted to approximately RMB1,130.3
million (31 December 2019: RMB1,698.4 million), of which
approximately RMB 518.6 million were fixed rate borrowings (31
December 2019: RMB 899.1 million).

Save for typically lower borrowing requirements in the first
quarter of the year due to holidays during the Chinese Lunar New
Year, there was no seasonality in the Group’s bank borrowing

requirements.
Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMBS8,755.0 million (31 December
2019: RMB7,690.4 million), of which approximately RMB2,265.0
million were utilised (31 December 2019: RMB2,599.1 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the
Group.

Wit :
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Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayment. During the Year, our Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB438.9 million
(2019: RMB560.5 million). The significant capital expenditures
during the Year were mainly for the acquisition of equipment and
lease prepayment for our production plants.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 418,068,200 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. During the Year, 17,000 ordinary
shares and 51,200 ordinary shares were issued upon exercise
of share options granted under the share option scheme of the
Company by an employee and by Ms. ZHANG Li, an executive
Director, respectively. Save as disclosed above, no shares of the

Company has been issued or repurchased during the Year.
Financial instruments for hedging purposes

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group used
aluminium products futures contracts in the Shanghai Futures
Exchange to manage the commodity price risk exposure in
respect of the highly probable forecast purchase of aluminium
products. The Group designates those futures contracts as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges and does not separate the forward
and spot element of the futures contracts but instead designates the

futures contract in its entirety in a hedging relationship.
Treasury Policies

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in both short term and long term.

% B i B g B
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Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong (“HK”) dollars.
Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables, bank balances
and bank loans are denominated in US dollars and HK dollars,
therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars and
HK dollars.

On 2 September 2019, the Group entered into cross-currency interest
rate swap contracts with HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
in respect of short-term loans in aggregate of US$15,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB104,940,000), under which the
Group converted the United States (“US”) dollar loans at floating
exchange rate into RMB loans at fixed rate.

The purpose of the cross-currency interest rate swap contracts
is to hedge against the interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk of the US dollar liabilities. The cross-currency interest rate
swap contracts matured in August 2020 matching the maturity of
the related loans. Further details of the cross-currency interest
rate swap contracts are set out in Note 20(b) of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Cash Flow Highlights

The following table sets out our Group’s cash flow highlights
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:
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2020 2019
e 12 —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET L N HT T
Net cash generated from KOS TR EN AT S T 1R A
operating activities 973,398 953,574
Interest received S FE 53,899 42,734
Payment for purchase of property, [ E Y W B Rt 2 AT
plant and equipment (438,918) (560,535)
Interest paid XATHE (101,351) (161,264)
Net decrease in bank borrowings WATIEE B/ 35 (568,816) (146,619)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BT AN B R 2 B AR 2 B SR
of the Company (106,904) (73,465)

We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows, bank borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents.
Our Directors believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will
be funded from operations and, if necessary, additional equity
financing or bank borrowings.

REE—-REBNMELE B SR E  RITHE
BRBEEERBESFEYABERMES HE
HE REMS AREZRBESHLUKEE
R (A FRE BEINRAMESIRITHEERE -



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5

Annual Report 2020 F R

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMBS509.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB528.0 million),
among which 4% was held in US dollars, 4% was held in HK
dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.

Property Development

“Xingfa Plaza” (Hl%2K[F), a property project wholly-owned
by the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use rights of the
property were granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19 May
2050 for commercial service, office, culture and entertainment
uses. The property comprises a parcel of land with a site area
of approximately 16,961.36 sq.m. and a gross floor area of
approximately 123,527.29 sq.m..

During the Year, 14 units of “Xingfa Plaza” (#%% K &) had been
sold and delivered. The revenue recognized from such sale for
the Year amounted to approximately RMB15.0 million (2019:
RMB&81.6 million), with gross profit margin at 64.8% (2019:
53.3%).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, our Group employed a total of
approximately 8,345 full time employees in the PRC and
Hong Kong which included management staff, technicians,
salespersons and workers. In 2020, our Group’s total expenses on
the remuneration of employees were approximately RMB959.5
million, represented approximately 8.1% of the revenue of our
Group. Our Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
regularly every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme
(according to the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees), housing fund,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance (according to the PRC rules and regulations for PRC
employees), discretionary bonuses and employee share options
are also awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. In-house and external training
programmes are provided as and when required.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 49, was appointed
as the Chairman of the Company (“Chairman”)
since 8 September 2011. Mr. Liu obtained a Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration
from South China University of Technology and
has held various senior positions in financial,
marketing and governmental fields. Mr. Liu had
been the vice section chief (RIF})of finance
division of Department of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province,
finance manager and deputy general manager of
Sinomart Development Co. Limited (8% &R
HBR/AF]), director and general manager of the
finance department of Goldsland Holdings Company
Limited (BT AR A F]), deputy chairman of
Guangdong Advertisement Co., Ltd. (FEH & E &
HIR/AFDand chairman of Guangdong Guangxin
PACO Technology Co., Ltd. (& 58T A0 & ALY
HFMR/AA]), a subsidiary of Guangdong Guangxin
Holdings Group Ltd. (B3 & B IR E B A R A
F]) (“Guangxin Holdings™). Mr. Liu is the chairman
of the board of directors of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd. (EH B HEEFRAF)
(“Guangdong Xingfa”, together with its subsidiaries
as “Guangdong Xingfa Group”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and an executive director
of Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liao Yuqing (“Mr. Liao”), aged 52, is an
executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company. He is in charge of the sales and
marketing activities of the Group and is responsible
for the planning, development, implementation and
evaluation of the marketing strategies of the Group.
Mr. Liao joined the Group in January 1993. Prior
to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between 1986
to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank
of China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr.
Liao is the director of Guangdong Xingfa and an
executive director of Foshan Xingfa Trading Co.,
Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Precision Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. , Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture
Technology Co., Ltd., Alxin Investment Co., Ltd. €2
FHE B RN F)and Alxin Development Co., Ltd.
(GEE#E AR /AF). Mr. Liao is the son-in-law
of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group.
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Ms. Zhang Li (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 41, has been
appointed as an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company since 10 May 2018.
Ms. Zhang is also a director of Guangdong Xingfa.
Ms. Zhang has extensive business management
experience, before joining the Group, she has worked
in various departments of the group companies of
Guangxin Holdings since July 2001. She worked at
the finance department of Guangdong Dong Fang
Import and Export Corp.* (EHEEHEFHEH A
Al)as an accountant from July 2001 to December
2003 and was then promoted to be the deputy
manager from January 2004 to December 2004. She
then joined the clearings department of Guangxin
Holdings as the deputy head from January 2005 to
December 2006 and was promoted to be the head of
the clearings department from January 2007 to April
2013. Ms. Zhang worked for the capital management
department of Guangxin Holdings as an assistant
to the head from May 2013 to June 2014 and as the
deputy head of the capital management department
from June 2014 to April 2018. She has also been a
director of Guangxin Shipbuilding & Heavy Industry
Co., Ltd.* (EHEHELKRMH AR A A)since
September 2014. Ms. Zhang was accredited as a
senior accountant in the PRC in April 2011. Ms.
Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Central University of Finance and Economics
in the PRC in 2001 and a master’s degree in
accounting from Sun Yat-Sen University in the PRC
in 2009.

Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law”), aged 63, has
been appointed as an executive Director since 28
April 2009. He is responsible for the sales and
marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general
manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Company
Limited, which was the sole distributor of the Group
in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of

aluminium ingots.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, is an
executive Director. Prior to joining the Group in
January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked
at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Ltd. Mr. Wang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from the

Branch of Huaxia Securities Co.,

Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in
1992. Mr. Wang is also an executive director of
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, (“Mr. Luo”), aged 49, has
been appointed as an executive Director since 16
April 2018. Mr. Luo has approximately 27 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He worked
in (i) Shunde City Accounting Firm from July
1993 to March 1996; (ii) Guangdong Dezheng
Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from
April 1996 to December 2001; (iii) Guangdong
Gongcheng Accounting Firm from January 2002
to December 2007. He then worked in Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as
a certified public accountant from January 2008 to
April 2016. In addition, Mr. Luo was the independent
non-executive director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd.
(EIEE IR A A R A F]) (stock code: 600681),
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr.
Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Guangdong University of Business Studies
in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Luo is an executive director of
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (B Hk%
FE AR AFD (stock code: 2128) (“China
Lesso”), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in China

Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”).
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 48, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since 16
April 2018. Mr. Zuo has approximately 20 years of
experience in the industry of plastic pipe. Mr. Zuo
has extensive business management experience. He
is the chief executive officer of China Lesso Group
and was appointed as an executive director of China
Lesso in February 2010. He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo’s expertise was recognised
by several awards including “Outstanding Worker of
the Plastic Industry in the PRC” accredited by China
Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009
and “Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical
Entrepreneur)” accredited by Guangdong Human
Resources and Social Security Department in 2019.

Ms. Xie Jingyun (“Ms. Xie”), aged 40, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since 6
December 2018. Ms. Xie is experienced in strategic
investment and capital operation and is currently
the general manager of the operating management
centre of Guangxin Holdings. Ms. Xie first joined
the Guangxin Holdings group in 2003. She became
the deputy department head of the investment
development department of Guangxin Holdings
in 2008 and was subsequently promoted as the
department head. She then joined the capital
operation department of Guangxin Holdings as
an assistant to department head in 2015 and was
promoted as the deputy department head and
department head in 2016 and 2018 respectively.
She served as the general manager of the operating
management centre of the Guangxin Holdings group
in 2021. Ms. Xie obtained a bachelor’s degree
in business administration from the Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies in 2003. Ms. Xie is
also a director of (i) Guangdong Advertising Group
Co., Limited* (BHREE G EBBRMNARAAD), a
company established in the PRC whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002400); (ii) Guangdong Shengyi Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (ERAERBERMDARAF), a company
established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600183); and
(iii) SHENGYI ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.* (4%
R ARAF]), a company established in the
PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 688183).

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 56, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 29 February 2008. He obtained the lawyer
qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr.
Chen has been a practicing lawyer in the PRC since
1993 and has been a partner of (i) Goldsun Law
Firm ({51 & B AT H B A7) from 1998 to 2011;
and (ii) Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (&
B EAREEBFT) from 2011 to March 2019. Mr.
Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department
of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989
and obtained —#X AT EHE (Third Grade Lawyer)
from the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated from the
Political Education Department of South China
Normal University (¥ fli#i K5%)in 1986. He
has been granted the (IR FHHHFILEFAEHE
1% 75 2 ) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities Law
Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and
China Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the
(AR FERNREEEERCERETE
I3 & ) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation
of Property Rights of Collective Science and
Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of
Justice, the Ministry of Science and Technology of
the PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council
in 1998, and the (k7 22 7] J& 372 3 F 55 9 45 2
7 ) (Certificate of Completion of Training on
Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and the
School of Management of Fudan University jointly
in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong Lianyue Law

Firm (& s AT S 75 F7) in April 2019,
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Mr. Junius K. Y. Ho (“Mr. Ho”), aged 58,
was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 29 February 2008. He is a Senior
Partner of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors &
Notaries where he is the head of the Litigation and
Commercial Department. He is also the Principal
Representative of the Guangzhou Office. Having
studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United
Kingdom (formerly known as Chelmer Institute of
Higher Education), Mr. Ho obtained his Bachelor of
Laws Degree in 1984. He then joined the University
of Hong Kong for the Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws. Mr. Ho was further awarded with the honorary
degree of Doctor of Laws by China University of
Political Science and Law in 2019.

Mr. Ho was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1988. He was subsequently admitted in Singapore,
England and Wales in 1995 and 1997 respectively.
In 2003, he was appointed as a China-Appointed
Attesting Officer.

Mr. Ho has over 30 years of legal experience. Being
the Past President (2011-2012) and the Council
Member (1995-2017) of The Law Society of Hong
Kong, he is committed in serving the community and
contributing to the economic co-operation between
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Apart from serving
the legal profession, he also serves on various

government and public boards as follows:

1. Justice of the Peace of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region
(2016-present);

2. New Territories Justice of the Peace of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(2016-present);

3. Member of Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (2016~
2021);
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

Founder of International Probono Legal Services

Association (1988-present);

Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong
Kong (2015-present);

Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene
Articles Tribunal (2013-present);

Ex-officio Executive Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk
(2016-present);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group
(2013-present);

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village
(2011-present);

Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (1997-present);

Founder of Butterflyers Association (a charitable
organization) (2010-present);

Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

Arbitrator of Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission (2009-
2018);

Arbitrator of South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration) (2012-present);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services
Research Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association
(2017-present); and

Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China
University of Labor Relations (2018-present).

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.
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Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam”), aged
56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 29 February 2008. He is an associate
member of various professional organisations,
namely The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 30 years
of experience in the accounting, banking and finance
sectors and currently is the managing consultant of
Lontreprise Consulting Limited. Mr. Lam was also
the president of Dragon Junior Chamber, a local
chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber International
Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International
Hong Kong in 2005. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited (stock code: 1008),
Synertone Communication Corporation (stock code:
1613) and Weiye Holdings Limited (stock code:
1570), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Liang Shibin (“Mr. Liang”), aged 81, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 14 December 2013. He completed the programme
of Nonferrous Metal and Heat Treatment in the
Department of Special Metallurgy from R &S
£2[E (unofficial English translation being Central
South Institute of Mining and Metallurgy) (now
known as A K% (Central South University)).
From 1965 to 1982, Mr. Liang had worked in the
special workshop of B ALHEEE I T (unofficial
English translation being Northeast Light Alloy
Processing Factory) first as technician and later as
engineer and specialized in atomic reactor technical
matters. From 1982 to 1992, Mr. Liang had worked
in EHEHEACESEIM L (unofficial English
translation being Guangdong Nonferrous Metal
Processing Factory) first as workshop manager, and
later as deputy factory general manager and then
factory general manager. From 1988 to 1992, he
also served as the president of f&% B2 552 41 1
& (unofficial English translation being Guangdong
Aluminium Profile Association). From 1992 to
2003, he first served as the general manager of f
M2 E$5E/NF] (unofficial English translation
being Hangzhou Hongchang Aluminium Company)
and later as the deputy general manager and chief
engineer of ZFE X IBFE /N F] (unofficial English
translation being Ningbo Aluminium Company).
From 2003 to 2011, he served as a senior consultant
of fREHE MBI ER M BR/AF (Fujian Minfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (a company listed on Small
and Medium-sized Enterprise Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code: 002578). From
2008 to 2013, Mr. Liang was an independent director
of fREAE MBI FER M BR/AF (Fujian Minfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin”), aged 52, is the deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr.
Lin worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals &
Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation (& & H & H
EEAEH S E /N F]), with more than 20 years of experience in
international trade. He was awarded a certificate of Economist by
Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Jinan University, the Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) at South
China University of Technology.

Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 52, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group and is responsible for production
management of the Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining
the Group in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai
Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu
Yuntang was granted a bachelor’s degree in engineering by the
Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as
assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology
Committee and certified as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City
Human Resources Bureau. He was awarded as senior engineer by
Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security Department
on 4 May 2015, and was granted a senior Executive Master in
Business Administration Degree by Sun Yat-sen University on
29 December 2015. On 15 December 2020, he was awarded as
Intermediate Certified Safety Engineer by Human Resources and
Social Security Department of the PRC.
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Mr. Chen Wensi (“Mr. Chen”), aged 50, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen is responsible
for the technology research and development, quality control
and safety in environmental protection of the Group. Mr. Chen
joined Guangdong Xingfa Aluminum Profiles Factory in 1997.
Prior to joining the Group in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for
Guangdong Chang’e Thermal Insulation Container Factory (J& 5
4 40 R TR 28 IR from 1995 to 1996. Mr. Chen graduated from
Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of Agricultural Technology (J&
PR B ZE R BE)in 1995, He was qualified as a senior
engineer in mechanical engineering in 2018. He is also a member
of the Measurement Technology Committee of China Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Association and an expert of the Expert
Committee of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing Industry
Association. Mr. Chen has participated in the development,
management and standardization of scientific research projects
from various national, provincial, municipal and district
governments. He has won 5 excellence awards in patents in China,
3 first prizes of the excellence awards in technical standards
by the National Non-ferrous Metals Standardization Technical
Committee, and 2 progress awards in science and technology by
Guangdong Province. On 4 November 2020, he was awarded as

senior engineer in metal pressure processing by Foshan Science
and Technology Association (f# LI T B E2 £ 417 177 &) .

Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 50, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan is a senior
Economist and is currently the council member of Foshan City
CPA Institute and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial
Officers. His education background is undergraduate, studying
business management (accounting) and economic management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career
in the business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as
different important financial positions, such as chief accountant,
chief of finance, etc., within several group companies of Foshan
Nanzhuang Economic Development Company. Mr. Guan joined
the Group in 1999 as deputy head of finance department and
chief accountant and subsequently promoted as head of finance
department. He was further promoted as deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group since September 2011.
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Mr. Wu Xi Kun (“Mr. Wu”), aged 49, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group since 12 May 2020. Mr.
Wu obtained Bachelor of Material Science and Engineering
from Guangdong Industrial University in the PRC and joined
Guangdong Xingfa Group in July 1994. Currently, Mr. Wu is a
postgraduate student of Master of Philosophy (Engineering) in
Central South University in the PRC.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the production
management, quality control and research of manufacturing of
aluminium ingots and aluminium profiles. Mr. Wu participated in
the academic research and seminars in the industry. He published
the “Practical Handbook in the Processing Techniques of
Aluminium Profiles” in 2006. He also participated in the set up of

various national standards regarding aluminium profiles.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ching (“Mr. Pang”), aged 32, joined our Group
as the company secretary of the Company since February 2021.
Mr. Pang has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since March 2015. He obtained the
Bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accountancy from
City University of Hong Kong in July 2010. He has more than 10
years’ experience in accounting, auditing and company secretarial
matters. In addition, Mr. Pang was the independent non-executive
director of China Shenghai Group Limited (stock code: 1676)
from 19 October 2019 to 1 April 2020.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collected referred as to “Group”), for the year ended
31 December 2020 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 3(a) in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 171

of the annual report.
FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.36 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HKDO0.28).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 27 May 2021, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021 (both days inclusive).
During such period, no transfer of the shares in the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the attendance in the
annual general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May
2021.
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 9 June 2021 to Friday, 11 June 2021 (both
days inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares
in the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 8 June 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five years is set out on page 324.
LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 22 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 11 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 27 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB353,000 (2019: RMB380,000)
for charitable or any other purposes during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the
Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) on 29 December 2017. The Share
Option Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5
January 2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include
directors and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity;
any suppliers, customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or
any Invested Entity; any persons or entities that provide research
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; any holders of securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; any adviser (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and any other groups or classes of participants whom the Board
considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed

30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 41,800,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29
December 2017. As at the date of this report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 37,620,000 shares, which represents 9% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
to each eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
shares of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of
the Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Company has granted 4,180,000 share options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme on 15 October 2018. The closing price of
the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant of
share options was HK$5.39.
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Details of the outstanding share options and movements of the
share options during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as
follows:

WBRE-F-FE+ A=+ HIRE R
1 8 O R PR 2 B R B4

Outstanding Lapsed/  Outstandng
as at Exercised Cancelled Expired as at
1 January During during During 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2020
R
R “ECRE
“ECRE AAEE +=A
—H—H AAERE AAEE ek =t+—H
HRAZ B {2 H i AT [YERES Bz Ji i i AT
Directors
Hf
LIU Libin 15.10.2018 229,000 - - - 229,000
B2
WANG Zhihua 15.10.2018 192,000 - - - 192,000
pige
ZHANG Li 15.10.2018 192,000 (51,200) - - 140,800
SR A
Sub-total 613,000 (51,200) - - 561,800
it
Employees of the Group 15.10.2018 3,567,000 (17,000) - (85,000) 3,465,000
ALHEREH
Total 4,180,000 (68,200) - (85,000) 4,026,800
s
Note: Bt -

In relation of each grantee of the share options granted on 15 October
2018, 1,393,334 share options were vested on 15 October 2020, 1,393,333
options will vest on 15 October 2021 and 1,393,333 options will vest on
15 October 2022 and the share options vested are then exercisable on or
before 14 October 2023. The exercise price per share is HK$5.46.

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 25 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

LR =B — \E+ A+ H RS R A
T 1,393 334 R ECR - FE+A A HE
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB572,208,000 (2019:
RMB618,633,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 30 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 20.1% (2019:19.9%) of the
Group’s revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
6.2% (2019: 5.6%) of the Group’s revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 79.1% (2019: 75.7%)
of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 64.5% (2019: 32.8%)
of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five

largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2020.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance indicators
and performance and indication of future development of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 can be found in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions

form part of this report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The
effects of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth
material risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating
measures for each material risk for the management of such risks.

Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from
customers in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse
change in the political, economic, legal or social conditions in
the PRC and the Group is unable to divert sales to other markets
outside of the PRC, the turnover, profitability and prospects may
be adversely affected.
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In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will put efforts to expand
overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas sales.
During the Year, we have export sales to Australia and Vietnam.
The Group will also continue to review competitive edges of the

Group in the industry and market trend.

Secondly, the Group’s production activities of aluminium profiles
rely on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply of
aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with
any of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility
in purchasing aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various
times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct
investigation and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure

stable supply source of raw materials.
Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period
by the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks
and have an impact on financial performance and operating cash
flows of the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and
control over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage
and maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to
collect trade receivables overdue.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS FHH &

Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success.
The Group is committed to providing our employees with
a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment. The
Group rewards and recognises employees by competitive
remuneration package and implements a key performance
index scheme with appropriate incentives, and promote
career development and progression by providing
opportunities for career advancement to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible
for determining its training needs for employees in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers
shall be submitted to the senior management of the
Group for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of
employees are vital to continuous business growth and
success of the Group. The Group strives to ensure that
all employees can fulfill the relevant job requirements
in terms of education, training, technical and work

experience.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our vendors and take great care to ensure
that they share our commitment to quality and ethics.
We carefully select our suppliers and require them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track
record, experience, financial strength, reputation, ability
to produce high-quality products and quality control
effectiveness.
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3. Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We
require our distributors and customers to comply with
the relevant laws and regulations and our sales and
marketing policies, including but not limited to selling
price, promotional activities and usage of our ERP system.
We also monitor the financial condition and repayment
history of our distributors and customers, and their sales

performance.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into
account of the national green manufacturing development plan and
guided by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the Xingfa
Aluminium Protection System. The primary mission for the
Group’s environmental production policy is to govern production
emissions by relying on technology, comprehensive utilisation
of production waste residue, reduce environmental pollution and

develop clean production.

The Group has been in compliance with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of

the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the Group
shall comply with different laws and regulations, including i) laws
regarding employee recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor
Law of the PRC”, the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the
“Rulings of Implementing the Labor Contract Law of the PRC”;
and ii) the PRC national and local laws and regulations with
respect to environmental protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group was in strict compliance with these said laws and
regulations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Ofticer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin
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In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
each of Mr. LIAO Yuqing, Mr. Wang Zhihua, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
and Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy will retire from the office of
Director by rotation and each of them, being eligible, will offer

himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 35 of the annual report.
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 31 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly; (ii)
no other contract of significance was entered into by, and/or
subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year;
and (iii) no other contract of significance in relation to provision
of services to the company or any of its subsidiaries by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO™)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position

Ordinary
shares of the

REZZBZFFHZA =+ —H AR ARE
BREOIHSTIEE T ARG (B3 E
1B 1) 33520 70 T R 7 2 B ac AT et 8% > SR
5 b R B S 10T BT 3T NE E TR
772 WA Sy QI (TR e <P R ) MZHAT & AR 8
AR 2 ER SERERADNE EETE
N B A B SO AE AR B R B O % R 27
SAERBIEEXVER) Z Bt ~ AR BH AR A e (B HE
REIR R BEAWT

I

Underlying
shares of the

Percentage of
interest in

Name of directors Capacity Company Company Total the Company
A ] A 3] A2 H]

WHEH Lty R Ll Lisd7y My A
LIAO Yuqing Founder of a 48,200,100 - 48,200,100 11.53%
BEE discretionary trust

who can influence

how the trustee

exercises his

discretion

EREFFLAINI A

Al B G ANAT

HEEMEEZT

=
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,050,000 - 19,050,000 4.56%
7 F et BRA A

Interest of spouse 1,719,000 - 1,719,000 0.41%

BCABI R 25
LIU Libin Beneficial owner - 229,000 229,000 0.05%
2 37 BasA A
ZHANG Li Beneficial owner 51,200 140,800 192,000 0.05%
SR A BREA AN
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner - 192,000 192,000 0.05%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option
scheme disclosed in note 25 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2020
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company,or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Director to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
business apart from the Company’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

Company’s business for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS
PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position

LI

Total number
of ordinary shares

Percentage
of interest in

Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
ARz 1A 2]
B S RO 1 HE & 7 o e
Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 132,382,000 31.67%
BEENEEARA A BREAN
Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd* Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.67%
corporation
R BT R I A R AF] LR R R
State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.67%
Administration Commission of The People’s  corporation
Government of Guangdong Province*
BEREARBNNALEGEEHEZEY ZEMBEEER
Lesso Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 109,842,900 26.28%
i EEERARA A BREAAN
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
B R E R AR AR SEPE R R R
New Fortune Star Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
New Fortune Star Limited 2 PR 5 I
Xi Xi Development Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
PR A R A A 2P 1l T T A
UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%

UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited

corporation

AL R B R
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Total number Percentage
of ordinary shares of interest in
Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
ARAwz i A 23 ]
Vg St R AR HERE o bE
WONG Luen Hei Founder of a discretionary 109,842,900 26.28%
trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises
his discretion
g 2REGRLAI N A
ZEENTHEBERE
iR
Sure Keen Limited Beneficial owner 48,200,100 11.53%
FNEA R A A BaniA A
Glorious Joy Limited Interest of controlled 48,200,100 11.53%
corporation
Glorious Joy Limited S P 1l T e A
TMF (Cayman) Limited Trustee 48,200,100 11.53%
TMF (Cayman) Limited ZEEA

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’ [ b S B i~ T8 2F HR AR N &) fe HAH B ok B > B%
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the {7~ MBI S EREE R 2 M) — R ATIR &
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31 AN RZZFEZZEFTTH = +—H B HEAA
December 2020, no other person had interests or short positions A A F] 2 B o B A8 B A% 1 A 8 5 ZE e 8% R
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were A\ FIMR R 3 257 I HH B (551 33645 M 77 B < &
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the  FCIFA Z FEZR BB A o

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.

The following entities are connected parties of the A.
Company and had connected transactions and/or

continuing connected transactions with the Group during

the year ended 31 December 2020:

Name of the entity
A

[3H 24 %2 5

ITNEBARANG AL IR
FBEEFE+ _A=1+—HILEERN
B 68 [ o T B 5 B e B R 4 o
L5

Connection with the Company

HLA 1wl Z Bl 1

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall,
Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

% TR B i P 5 A R A A
(1B 2 B2 31 1)

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(“China Lesso”)

R R g 8 R P AR A BR A )
(TR B 2 )

LG 8 5 LR AR S 2 A R 4 A
(in English for identification only,
Jiangxi Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. “Jiangxi Jingxing”)

717G & 5 LR A A 7S A R A A

(ILPE B ))

JE M = B SRR A R A
(in English for identification only,
Guangzhou Jingxing Construction
Technology Company Limited
“Guangzhou Jingxing”)

& N 5 LR SRR A BR A A
(MBI B )

] e A o LR AR RS A IR A A
(in English for identification only,
Henan Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. “Henan Jingxing”)

7] 7 A o LR AR S A IR A A

(TR SR B )

Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing and as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su.
Mr. LIAO Yuqing is an executive Director and Mr. LUO Su is the father-
in-law of Mr. LIAO Yuqing.

HE LB A21 %R KRR AN - B EBE AR
BITEEREMEERBEEBRENER -

A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, approximately 26.28% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.
AAFEEREB B L RENEARRARE HHFARLFC 2
1T 2 #926.28% °

Owned as to 80% by the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
and had become a connected subsidiary of the Company since 9 July
2019, the date on which Guangzhou Jingxing (as defined below) has
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso. On 12 March
2021, the date on which completion of the Equity Transfer (as defined
below) took place, the Group ceased to hold any interest in Jiangxi
Jingxing and Jiangxi Jingxing ceased to be accounted for as an associate
of the Group.

HAANFAZBHEENB AR HAS R kEH T~ LEELH
JUH (BN =B CE R R NSO RE RS RBE I EHA 2
BAF) MAAANFRZHENB AR R —~F=H+"H &
REEE(ERERAT O BREERY AREAHRILAREREAE
] 2 e LV % BN R AR 2 A R [ 2 Wi 8 R 1 iR

A 20% shareholder of Jiangxi Jingxing and has become a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of China Lesso since 9 July 2019.

LV B 2 20% R IR B —F — UEEL A JLH il B 2
IE =B A A] o

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a substantial shareholder
of the Company.

PRI (R AR — 2 EERER) 2R &N E A A -
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the following
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are subject to the
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

1. The following is a brief description of the
continuing connected transactions:

Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a master supply agreement dated
22 September 2017 in relation to the supply of
aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall by
Guangdong Xingfa, for a term from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive). The
construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain
Wall were further processed into window and
curtain wall and sold to its customers.

2. Annual Cap

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2020 of the continuing connected transactions
set out above was RMB260 million, and the
actual aggregate amount of sale transactions was
approximately RMB114.2 million for the Year.

3. Internal control procedures

The Group has complied with the following internal
control measures to monitor the pricing and
terms of the transactions in relation to the sale of
aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa
Curtain Wall and ensure that the prices and terms
offered by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain
Wall will be no more favourable than prices and
terms offered to independent customers and that the
annual cap is not exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing price of
aluminium as quoted on the Shanghai
Nonferrous Metals Price Index and the
prevailing spot prices of aluminium as
quoted on London Metal Exchange Limited
on a daily basis;
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(b) comparing the price and terms of the supply
to Xingfa Curtain Wall with the prices and
terms of aluminium profiles supplied by the
Group in China as agreed with independent

customers on a regular basis;

(c) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by the Group to Xingfa Curtain
Wall to ensure that they shall be no more
favourable than those offered by the Group
to independent customers; and

(d) periodic financial report which contains
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under the
master supply agreement was submitted to
the Board.

4. Views of the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and considered the information
referred to in the section of “3. Internal control
procedures” above, and confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

(b)

(¢)

(d)
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The Company also confirmed that it has followed
the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the transaction
during the Year.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his letter to the Board containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out in this
section “B” above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

(a) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the

Company’s board of directors;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(c) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;
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(d)

with respect to the aggregate amount of
the continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

6. Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall

entered into a new master agreement dated 30

September 2020 in relation to the supply of

aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall by

Guangdong Xingfa Group, for a term from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both dates

inclusive).

C. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the following

connected transactions were non-exempt continuing

connected transactions and are subject to the reporting and

announcement and annual review requirements.

1. 2020 Master Supply Agreement A

(1)

Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the 2020
Master Supply Agreement A

On 30 December 2019, Guangdong
Xingfa and China Lesso entered into a
master supply agreement (“2020 Master
Supply Agreement A”) pursuant to which
Guangdong Xingfa and its subsidiaries
(“Guangdong Xingfa Group™), as suppliers,
would supply and China Lesso and its
subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”), as
purchasers, would purchase aluminium
profiles and/or panels supplied by
Guangdong Xingfa Group members on an
on-going basis for a term from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (both dates

inclusive).
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Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Supply
Agreement A for the Year was RMB141.5
million, and the actual aggregate amount
of sale transactions was approximately
RMB117.9 million for the Year.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the 2020 Master Supply
Agreement A and ensure that the prices
and terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa
Group to China Lesso Group were no more
favourable than prices and terms offered to
independent customers and that the annual
cap was not exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing average
price of aluminium ingots as quoted
on Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous
Metals Market on a daily basis;

(b) comparing the prices and terms
of the supply to China Lesso
Group with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles and/or panels
supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers
on a regular basis;

(c) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the prices and terms of supply
of aluminium profiles offered
by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
China Lesso Group to ensure that
they would be no more favourable
than those offered by the Group to
independent customers; and
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(d) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2020 Master
Supply Agreement A was submitted
to the Board.

2. 2020 Master Supply Agreement B

@

(i)

Brief descriptions of the continuing
connected transactions under the 2020
Master Supply Agreement B

On 30 December 2019, Guangdong
Xingfa and Jiangxi Jingxing entered into
a master supply agreement (“2020 Master
Supply Agreement B”) pursuant to which
Guangdong Xingfa Group members,
as suppliers, would supply and Jiangxi
Jiangxing, as purchaser, would purchase
aluminium profiles supplied by Guangdong
Xingfa Group members on an on-going
basis for a term from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Supply
Agreement B for the Year was RMBS54
million, and the actual aggregate amount
of sale transactions was approximately
RMB14.9 million for the Year.

(i)

@ CEBrMEFFREIH
BRI R G E AT
2 A A S (B
FE B B E
R ATE N 2 R A
HR ) 2 ERZE
HAMA TS ¥ 5 o

TR B

—E T E MR B
N RBERERL S

RoZE—REt A=+
I ol B LT 75 Bt BT
SEAEBERE G (T
48 GLIE BB 1) BRI
P SR B A (1 2
86 ) S 5 P T 7k B
(17 2 B 77) 5 SR8 o o 0
BB 4 0 G S0 D
LA ST IR
SEoEg—H-HRE
SECEELSA=—H
(BEERWE) ©

FEER

AEERE T B
JEtHERBIE FHRETZ K
BZEELERAANRYE
54,000,0007C K AREE Z
ERHEELZHEBEN L
N E#14,900,0007C ©



(iii)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied

with the following internal control measures

to monitor the pricing and terms of the

transactions under the 2020 Master Supply

Agreement B and ensure that the prices and

terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group

to Jiangxi Jingxing were no more favourable

than prices and terms offered to independent

customers and that the annual cap was not

exceeded:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

monitoring the prevailing average
price of aluminium ingots as quoted
on Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous

Metals Market on a daily basis;

comparing the prices and terms of
the supply of aluminium profiles to
Jiangxi Jingxing with the prices and
terms of aluminium profiles supplied
by the Group in the PRC as agreed
with independent customers on a
regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the prices and terms of supply
of aluminium profiles offered by
Guangdong Xingfa Group to Jiangxi
Jingxing to ensure that they would
be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and

periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under the 2020 Master
Supply Agreement B was submitted
to the Board.
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3.

2020 Licence and Service Agreement

()

(i1)

(iii)

Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the 2020

Licence and Service Agreement

On 30 December 2019, Jiangxi Jingxing and
Guangzhou Jingxing entered into a licence
and service agreement (“2020 Licence and
Service Agreement”) pursuant to which
Guangzhou Jingxing agreed to grant to
Jiangxi Jingxing a right to use certain
design patents and utility patents owned
by Guangzhou Jingxing and provide other
related technologies and services for a term
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Licence
and Service Agreement for the Year was
RMB3.7 million, and the actual aggregate
amount of licence and service fee was Nil
for the Year.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the continuing connected
transactions under the 2020 Licence and
Service Agreement were conducted in
accordance with the terms of the 2020
Licence and Service Agreement, on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with
the pricing policy of the Group and that the
annual cap was not exceeded:

(a) instructed its finance department to
supervise the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with
the Company’s internal control
procedures on continuing connected

transactions; and
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(b) instructed its finance department to
follow and collect the data of the
continuing connected transactions to
ensure that the annual cap was not

exceeded.

Tenancy Agreement A

()

(ii)

Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the Tenancy

Agreement A

On 30 September 2020, J& & il 3% §5 2 (7]
) APBRZAE (in English for identification
only, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Henan) Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa Henan”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Henan
Jingxing, as tenant, entered into the Tenancy
Agreement A pursuant to which Xingfa
Henan would rent the property located at
HE A R A L P T AL TEERE (in
English for identification only, Qingbei,
Industrial District, Qinyang City, Henan
Province, the PRC) to Henan Jingxing for
the welding, assembling, recycling and
maintenance of aluminium panels which
were applied as construction materials and
the sale of such aluminium panels for a
fixed term of three months from 1 October
2020 to 31 December 2020 (both dates

inclusive).
Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement
A for the period from 1 October 2020 to
31 December 2020 was RMB755,163, and
the actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB755,163.
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(ii)

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied

with the following internal control measures

to monitor the rent and terms of the

transactions under the Tenancy Agreement

A and to ensure that the rent and terms

offered by Xingfa Henan to Henan Jingxing

would be no more favourable than the rent

and terms offered to independent tenants

and that the annual cap were not exceeded:

(a)

(b)

(c)

monitoring the prevailing market
rent in the same district on a
quarterly basis;

adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the rent under Tenancy Agreement
A to ensure that they were no more
favourble than those offered by the

Group to independent tenants; and

periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under Tenancy
Agreement A was submitted to the
Board.

(iii)
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Tenancy Agreement B

()

(i)

Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the Tenancy
Agreement B

On 30 September 2020, & 58 8135 §5 3 (7L
75) BFRZAF (in English for identification
only, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Jiangxi
Jingxing, as tenant, entered into the Tenancy
Agreement B pursuant to which Xingfa
Jiangxi would rent the property located at
PR B VL P A EL R A TR R B 8 R AR 3 K
#219% (in English for identification only,
No. 21, Jingfa Road, Yichun Economic
Development Zone, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC) to Jiangxi Jingxing for the welding,
assembling, recycling and maintenance
of aluminium panels which were applied
as construction materials and sale of such
aluminium panels for a fixed term of
three months from 1 October 2020 to 31
December 2020 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement
B for the period from 1 October 2020 to
31 December 2020 was RMB911,463, and
the actual aggregate amount of rent was
approximately RMB911,463.
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(iii)  Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the rent and terms of the
transactions under the Tenancy Agreement
B and to ensure that the rent and terms
offered by Xingfa Jiangxi to Jiangxi
Jingxing would be no more favourable than
the rent and terms offered to independent
tenants and that the annual cap were not
exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing market
rent in the same district on a
quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the rent under Tenancy Agreement
B to ensure that they were no more
favourble than those offered by the
Group to independent tenants; and

(c) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under Tenancy
Agreement B was submitted to the
Board.

Views of the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
carried out pursuant to 2020 Master Supply
Agreement A, 2020 Master Supply Agreement B,
2020 Licence and Service Agreement, Tenancy
Agreement A and Tenancy Agreement B, and have
considered the information on internal control
procedures referred to in sections C.1(iii), C.2(iii),
C.3(iii), C4(iii) and C5(iii) above, and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and
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(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its letter to the Board containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out in this
section “C” above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

(1) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(i1) for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of
the continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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8. The 2021 Master Supply Agreement A, 2021
Master Supply Agreement B, 2021 Tenancy

Agreement A and 2021 Tenancy Agreement B
(collectively as the “2021 CCT Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the 2020 Master
Supply Agreement A, 2020 Master Supply

Agreement B, Tenancy Agreement A and Tenancy

Agreement B expected that the continuing

connected transactions contemplated thereunder

would continue on an on-going basis, on 29
December 2020:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso entered
into a new master supply agreement (“2021
Master Supply Agreement A”) for a term
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both dates inclusive);

Guangdong Xingfa and Jiangxi Jingxing
entered into a new master supply agreement
(2021 Master Supply Agreement B”) for a
term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021 (both dates inclusive);

Xingfa Henan and Henan Jingxing entered
into a new tenancy agreement (“2021
Tenancy Agreement A”) for a fixed term
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

(both dates inclusive); and

Xingfa Jiangxi and Jiangxi Jingxing entered
into a new tenancy agreement (“2021
Tenancy Agreement B”) for a fixed term
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

(both dates inclusive).
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The terms and conditions of each of the 2021
Master Supply Agreement A, 2021 Master Supply
Agreement B, 2021 Tenancy Agreement A and
2021 Tenancy Agreement B (including the pricing
policies) are substantially similar to those of the
2020 Master Supply Agreement A, 2020 Master
Supply Agreement B, Tenancy Agreement A and
Tenancy Agreement B respectively. Further details
of the 2021 CCT Agreements were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December
2020.

D. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as set out in the Company’s
corporate governance report in this annual report, the Company
had complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
for year ended 31 December 2020.

MODEL CODE

The Company adopted a set of code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently
in force and was in force throughout the Year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

Equity Transfer

In order to facilitate the strategic restructuring of the structure of
the Group, Xingfa Jiangxi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company which owned 80% of the equity interest of
Jiangxi Jingxing, and Guangzhou Jingxing, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of China Lesso, entered into an equity transfer
agreement on 4 February 2021, pursuant to which Xingfa Jiangxi
agreed to transfer its entire equity interest in Jiangxi Jingxing
to Guangzhou Jingxing at a consideration of RMB10 million
(“Equity Transfer”). Completion of the Equity Transfer took
place on 12 March 2021. Immediately upon completion of the
Equity Transfer, the Group ceased to hold any interest in Jiangxi
Jingxing. Jiangxi Jingxing ceased to be accounted for as an
associate of the Group. For further details of the Equity Transfer,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18
December 2020 and 4 February 2021.

Exercise of share options

Subsequent to the end of the Year and up to the date of this report,
an aggregate of 86,000 ordinary shares were issued upon exercise
of share options granted under the share option scheme of the
Company by four employees of the Group at an exercise price
of HK$5.46 per share. As at the date of this report, 418,154,200
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company were in issue.

Impacts of COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought about
additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and
has impacted the Group’s operations and financial position in the
first half of 2020.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s businesses and has put in place
contingency measures. These contingency measures include but
not limited to: assessing the suppliers’ readiness; improving the
production process, negotiating with distributors on delivery
schedule, continuously monitoring the operations of the
distributors and strengthening cost control.
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The Group’s management has set up a plan to catch up the delayed
schedules as a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors believe consumer sentiment will be recovered
from COVID-19 pandemic eventually amid the expectation of
vaccine will be available for extensive distribution in 2021. The
Group will be cautious and stay vigilant and react to the evolving
situation.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint
KPMG as auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of
the preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2021
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Directors, save as mentioned in this Corporate Governance
Report, the Company had complied with all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a set of code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(“Model Code™) as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. As
at the date of this report, the Board consisted of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing such plans of the
Group.
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(i)

Board meetings

During the Year, there were two full board meetings

held, at which, among other matters:

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 and reviewed the related
results announcement, annual report and
the circular to the Shareholders in relation
to the general mandate proposal and
re-election of the Directors retiring by

rotation; and

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2020 and reviewed the related results

announcement.

During the Year, the Board also discussed and
approved the Group’s affairs by way of circulation
of written resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of
the Board meetings.

(ii)
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(iii)  Attendance record Gii) A
The following is the attendance record of the board MTFAEEGREE T -24F
meetings held by the Board and general meeting +ZH=1+—HIEFEMRTZ
held during the year ended 31 December 2020: B R R ER AR

Attendance at meeting

o 5k 3
Board General
Meetings Meeting
HHETEHR itE N
Executive Directors: HfrE
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) BIST xR A (F 7)) 2/2 1/1
Mr. LIAO Yugqing B ERBIEA (TTEAEE) 2/2 1/1
(Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Li kALt B 2/2 171
(Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon e 2/2 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhihua FEFELE 2/2 1/1
Mr. LUO Jianfeng g Sk 2/2 1/1
Non-executive Directors: FEH 1T d# H :
Mr. ZUO Manlun e e A 2/2 1/1
Ms. XIE Jingyun WmEL L 2/2 1/1
Independent non-executive VAVE /S P
Directors:
Mr. CHEN Mo ok R S A 2/2 1/1
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (EEEE P e 2/2 1/1
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy RBEIE 4 2/2 1/1

Mr. LIANG Shibin LS i e 2/2 1/1
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(iv)

According to the code provision A.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meeting should be
held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board has held two full board
meetings. The Company has deviated from this
code provision as the Board has discussed matters
of the Company through exchange of emails and
informal meetings among the Directors and has
obtained board consent through circulating written

resolutions.

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have the appropriate and sufficient
industry or finance experience and qualifications
to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of shareholders of the Company. One
of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
LAM Ying Hung, Andy, has over 26 years in the
accounting, banking and finance sectors and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received the annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent. Particular consideration
is paid in assessing the independence of those
independent non-executive Directors who have
been serving on the Board for more than 9 years
and seeking re-election in the annual general
meeting. When appropriate, reasons will be given
in the annual general meeting circular to explain
why the Board believes those independent non-
executive Directors are still independent and should

be re-elected.

(iv)
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Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, is the son-
in—law of Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser
of the Group. Save as aforesaid, there is no other
family relationship between any of the Directors
and chief executive officer of the Company. All
of them are free to exercise their independent

judgement.
Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and
on the latest business development of the Company.
The Directors confirmed that they have complied
with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors,
namely Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. LIAO Yuqing, Ms
ZHANG Li, Mr. LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG
Zhihua, Mr. LUO Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun,
Ms. XIE Jingyu, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. LIANG
Shibin, have participated in continuous professional
development by reading materials to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related
to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such
as corporate governance, regulatory updates and
topics related to aluminium industry, and provided

their respective record of training to the Company.
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B RS
C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LIU Libin is the chairman of the
Board. The Chairman is chiefly responsible for managing
the Board. Mr. LIAO Yugqing is the chief executive officer
of the Company who takes charge of the supervision of
the execution of the policies determined by the Board.
The Chairman also chairs the Board meetings and briefs
the Board members on the issues discussed at the Board

meetings.

Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman to hold meetings at least annually
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors. During the Year, Mr. LIU
Libin, the Chairman, did not hold any meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors. However, the Chairman held meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors with the
presence of other Directors periodically during the Year to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and
to ensure that there was access to adequate and complete
information. The independent non-executive Directors
could have direct contacts with the Chairman after
meetings if necessary.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying
Hung, Andy and Mr. Liang Shibin has been appointed for a
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2020.

Each of Mr. ZUO Manlun and Ms. XIE Jingyun has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 April 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on
the issues discussed.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS E. I35
The Company established a remuneration committee AN A B EE RS B 5
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Zz B o M DU T e A A R o R K
Corporate Governance Code. During the year ended 31 EEFECFFE A=t —HIEFEE
December 2020, the remuneration committee comprised HiNZE B g A sEaed () Bt
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM A MBS SE A BISOR B E R BE R B
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. LIU Libin and Mr. LIAO Yuqing. AR -FMEZE T FEME BB
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are Tt H B AH & > TEAL B M (T EE 5
to review and make recommendations to the Board i ARE S 2 2 R R
on the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and jeie
other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management.
It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package RBAANTBRER BLEERGRER
of each Director and senior management shall be &z HMH A HSE R BEEN S
determined by reference to the duties, responsibilities, B K058 B 1T A o
experience and qualifications of each candidate.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the RBE_E_BFE+_H=FT—HILF
remuneration committee has held two meetings, at which E HFNEZESCREITHRGHE INe L
the remuneration committee members have reviewed FMZEGECHF AMmHFEMAESE 1T
and made recommendations to the Board on the terms of AL e HAth A 8 B R = AR S P E 2 T <
remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation IR EEGIRMAR A
payable to the Directors and senior management.
The following is the attendance record of the committee DN AHFMEZEEGRRE_Z2 _Z2F
meetings held by the remuneration committee during the +TZHA=ZT-HIEFERTEZESIH
year ended 31 December 2020: Z L
Attendance
at meeting
€k R %
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu MHFEIE 212
Mr. CHEN Mo BRBR S 4 2/2
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy IR A 2/2
Mr. LIU Libin BSOS 2/2
Mr. LIAO Yuging BERERE 2/2
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F. NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the nomination committee comprised
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO Manlun.
The primary duties of the nomination committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Directors
was appointed and no nomination committee meeting has
been held.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 26 March
2020, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 28 May 2020 and approved to
recommend the re-election of such Directors at the annual

general meeting of the Company.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to comply with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code which was effective from 1
September 2013. The Company believes that a diversity
of perspectives can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors including, but not limited to, skills,
regional and industry experience, cultural and educational
background, race, gender and other qualities. In informing
its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The composition,
experience and balance of skills on the Board retains
core members with longstanding knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time
who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to
the Board. The process for the nomination of Directors is
led by the nomination committee, which has been made
on a merit basis. A nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) was adopted on 31 December 2018 and became
effective on 1 January 2019, which serves to improve the
transparency of the process and criteria in selecting and
recommending candidates as directors of the Company
for the Board’s approval from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The
Directors and the nomination committee will consider and
nominate candidates according to the Nomination Policy
based on objective criteria with due regard to the benefits
of diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to
the Board for approval. In identifying individuals and
making recommendations for nominations, the nomination
committee considers whether such individuals have the
appropriate qualifications, ability and perspectives that
would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy on a regular basis to ensure their continued
effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the nomination committee was satisfied with the diversity
of the existing Board composition and did not, for the time
being, set up any measurable objective regarding board
diversity.
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EREGRHR S
G. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION G.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditors, provided annual audit services
and other non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown
of the remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is as
follows:

A2 S0 i <

REBE_FE_Z2FE+_A=T—HILF
FE o A 6E 5 A1 0 A% B S R S
5 T 10 AR N ) B2 A4 4F B A BOIR 755 e E At
I 2% BUIR TS o 7 8 [ 450 A% 80 > T <
BRI

For the year ended
31 December 2020

e
+oA=1—H
1LAEJE
(RMB’000)
(NRHETI0)
Audit service B s
Annual audit services I Bt RS 1,355
Other non-audit services (among others, for HAhIEEF RS
reviewing the interim financial information (. fE 2 B AR S E b I B & kD
of the Group) 760

H. AUDIT COMMITTEE H.

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the code provisions
and recommended practices of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, members of the audit committee
comprised Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (Chairman), Mr.
CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the independent
non-executive Directors, and Ms. XIE Jingyun being the

non-executive Director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the audit
committee has held two meetings, at which:

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
who is of the opinion that such statements complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that

adequate disclosures have been made;

the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019; and

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2020.
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The following is the attendance record of the committee UM RAERZBEGRBRE T -F
meetings held by the audit committee during the year TZA=T—HILFERTZET TR
ended 31 December 2020: Z R
Attendance
at meeting
ot i AR
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy PREE IR LA 2/2
Mr. CHEN Mo BR B S 4= 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (CE=E=V e 212
Ms. XIE Jingyun WRELL 2/2

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for

preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December

2020.

L EFERE

FTAEFHOHENEREBRE_ZZ
ZEF_A=t—HILEEREZHE-

81



82

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4R 237 i3 5 R /A 5
Annual Report 2020 F iR

Corporate Governance Report

EREGRHR S
J.  RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The Board has not established a
risk management committee. Instead, the full Board is
responsible for performing the risk management function,
including establishing and approving the overall risk
management strategies of the Group form time to time,
overseeing senior management’s implementation of
those strategies to align with the Company’s risk profile,
overseeing risk management framework structure,
reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring

risk management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach
is supported by key business units to identify and prioritise
risks while the top-down approach reviews and assesses
if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised, and
properly addressed by key business units to accomplish
the Group’s objectives. The management team is regularly
monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based
internal audit plan and periodically assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls
for ongoing risk assurance purposes. This enhances the

effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control framework.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
system is designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s
assets, prevent and detect fraud and protect shareholders’
investment as well as to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year under
review, through discussions with the management,
the internal audit team and external auditors and with
reference to a report submitted by the internal audit team
and a risk assessment report prepared by a professional
audit firm, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system in various
perspective, including, among others, financial control,
operational and compliance controls and risk management.
The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a
whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is
subordinated to the Board, formulates the internal audit
plan of the Group based on the strategic objectives
analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment and
performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board and the guidance of the audit
committee. It regularly reports to the audit committee
and the Board for its audit findings and recommendations
on internal control. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in
the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and material internal controls
system. Based on information furnished to it and on its
own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, nothing has been found which requires substantial
improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees
to properly comply with relevant policies on inside
information while notifying the Directors (who are also
the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such
information disclosure from time to time to keep all of

them abreast of the latest information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance
functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and has reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance; has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management; has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the Year as well as the disclosures in this

Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. Wong Tik was the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”). In delivering her
service as Company Secretary, Ms. Wong directly reported
to the Chairman. Ms. Wong has confirmed that for the
year under review, she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

Ms. Wong resigned on 2 February 2021. The Company
has appointed Mr. Pang Wai Ching as the new Company
Secretary on 2 February 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself(themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business, which is presently situated
at Unit 605, 6/F, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder
enquiry may be directed to the Board through the Company
Secretary by sending to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Company’s
articles of association or under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 of the Laws of the Cayman Islands (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in

such written requisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2021
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1. ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2.

Basis of Preparation

This 2020 Environmental, Social And Governance
(“ESG”) Report of Xingfa Aluminium is prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), covering
the reporting period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period”).
This report is prepared in Chinese and the English
version is the translation version. If there is any
discrepancy between Chinese and English, the
Chinese version shall prevail. Unless otherwise
stated, the denominated currency in the report is in
Renminbi. For the content of corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in
the 2020 annual report of the Group.

Reporting Principle

This report is prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”)
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. It satisfied the requirements of the
reporting principles regarding “materiality”,

2

“quantitativeness”, “consistency” and “balance”.

BB g RERWS
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1.3.

14

Scope of the Report

The subject of this report covers the core business
of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, including the manufacture and sale
of construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles. This report focuses on
reporting the environment and social policies
relating to the Group’s core business during the
Reporting Period. The board of directors of Xingfa
Aluminium is fully responsible for the Group’s
sustainable development strategy, its reporting and
risk management. During the Reporting Period,
we made disclosures regarding our important
environmental and social issues key performance
indicators (KPIs) (see Appendix II), and the KPIs
of environmental issue only cover four subsidiaries
located in Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi and Henan.

Information and Feedback
We value your suggestions or opinions in seeking

constant improvement. If you have any comments

about this report, please contact us in the following

ways:

Address No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and
Technology Industrial Park, Sanshui
District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province

Telephone : 0757-85332727

E-mail : xingfazhb@126.com

1.3.

1.4.
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2.  SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

2.1.

Sustainable Development Strategy

The Group puts relentless efforts to practice
corporate social responsibility to facilitate
sustainable development. During the year, the
Group was committed to creating value in four
major aspects, including “Striving for Perfection
and Pursuit of Excellence”, “Protecting the
Environment, Co-existing and Co-prosperity”,
“Human-oriented, Sincerity and Trustworthy” and
“Community Participation and Sharing”, endeavour
to respond to the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (UN SDGs). While adhering to
the corporate mission of “let aluminium industry
bring excellence for better human life”, we
formulated the sustainable development strategy,
which covered the followings:

BB g RERWS
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2.1.

AT R R

AEERBEHBITEETEE
T DUEB ] 3 R o AT
AR R AR VY K R RS
2077 19 JE e A R T R A A R E A
(UN SDGs)’ fuff Mg kig &
KREM S Mg 4%
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SH HEFEGE] o FRAMEF R %
SEEL NEEGEERBEE B
R EI RS e T Rl R R
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Sustainable
Development
Strategy

I RE AR R BRI

Strategic Objectives
Wik H B

UN SDGs Goals
Ji 2% EYYUN SDGs H 14

Striving for
Perfection and
Pursuit of
Excellence

5 2k SR b
R B

Adhering to the vision of “creating

excellence in Xingfa as a century-old
brand”, strengthening technological
innovation, developing high-tech
products, and accelerating the

industrialization of patented products

SRR TRl 5 o B 3% ~ 7 7 4 o ) L %

RS SRAC BT B KT > B 3% s AR
7 i IR S E A E 2R AR

Goal 3: Good Health and Well-
being

Goal 12: Responsible
Consumption and Production

B3 © Ry E At
B2 A EEHEMAE

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

e
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e
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Sustainable
Development
Strategy

AR R R

Strategic Objectives
Wik H B

UN SDGs Goals
Ji 2% JE Y UN SDGs H £

Protecting the
Environment,
Co-existing and
Co-prosperity

P B B
A IR

Human-oriented,
Sincerity and
Trustworthy

BN Zs A
Ve

While consolidating Xingfa products,
we are committed to protecting the
environment and leading the green
production in the industry

7 5 [ B3 7E O B[R] R > BN AT 3 R
RS ST OER

Adhering to the talent concept of
“Human-oriented, Sincerity and
Trustworthy”, constantly optimizing
the talent management model, and
building an excellent management
team

FARTDUN A DEEUE I AA
B NEEAE AT EEER 4TS
18 75 1 45 7 [ BX

Goal 7: Affordable and Clean
Energy

Goal 13: Climate Action

BT - #8370 6 FH 1Y 175 T2 AR TR

EAEL3 | RAEITE)

Goal 1: No Poverty

Goal 8: Decent Work and
Economic Growth,

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities
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Sustainable
Development
Strategy Strategic Objectives UN SDGs Goals
nIRPA BRI HR HEE JIi B RERJUN SDGs H B
Community In the critical period of fighting against Goal 3 Good Health and Well- A
Participation and COVID-19, we are actively ensuring being
Sharing the safety of staffs, giving back to Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and _/\’\/.
fLE 2 B community, and working with all Communities
I [H) 55 5 parties to achieve growth and win-win  E 123 : E {7 {# 5 B &t 3 B

situation
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2.2,

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group attaches great importance to the
communication with stakeholders. By actively
identifying stakeholders, the Group constantly
improves various communication mechanisms.
Through active and effective communication,
the Group interacts with internal and external
stakeholders such as customers, governments,
partners, staffs, and regulatory agencies to
improve the relationships. Based on an in-depth
understanding of the expectations and requirements
of stakeholders, the Group incorporates their
concerns and requirements into the Company’s
sustainable development issues, and actively
responds with practical actions to strive for the
common growth with stakeholders.

2.2,

FI 2 M B 75 2 B

A B [ ) 2 A L M) 2 A B 75 Y
A T B AR A5 2 B 7T 0 R
Broc s S IEE AT EEERA
MH AT NBRE P BUT - &1
BB EERMEERN N
) 2 RE BH 77 EL B S It ~ 1 AT R o
T TR A BB 522 M 25 A R 77 191 52 B
SRR B 1 A 5 [ M) 25 AH B 75
SR RS NI ES S - K
Jee sk R > A DUEE BRAT B A A (]
B B AR B T R R

Stakeholder category Main expectations Main communication methods

A0 2 A B 75 3 TEE T T

Staffs Equal opportunities Intranet

BT FEEE AEIIR) g
Salary and benefits Training and employee activities
e T & A BEEIE B TiEH)
Occupational health and safety Trade union and workers congress
S (e B Bl 2z & TERBIARKY
Employee Development Various seminars
BT#E BB E

Governments and Compliance operation Regular reporting

regulatory institutions GRRER TE HITE

IS 00 B A5 M A Tax compliance Supervision and inspection
RIEANIRL EEmA
Job creation
A&

Promote local economic

development

te 24 b 75 #6697 % Fee
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Stakeholder category
) 2 A B 75 B3

Main expectations

B 3

Main communication methods

B 3L VRS

Investment institutions/

shareholders

BB R

Suppliers/outsourced producers

BLIERS, SR E RS

Customers

E=9s

Corporate governance
AIREEE

Shareholders’ equity

PR TR A 2

Information disclosure
BRI E

Risk management and control

JeR e 4

Integrity
A R4
Mutual benefit for win-win results
AR

Brand influence
Sl )
Product quality
o E B
Service standard
AR5 K

Customer opinion

BERER

Company announcements

DAL

General meetings

K&

Roadshow and reverse roadshow

I T e 2 1) B T

Strategy meeting

R &

Email, telephone, WeChat and
corporate website

BE A TS R E AU

Bidding and tender

TRIRHE

Review and evaluation meeting
EAMGEE

Regular communication

TE A i i A

Email, telephone, WeChat and

corporate website

R~ B G B RS B F A

Customer opinion survey
ERERAE

Customer centre and hotline
2R A OV FD B S
Customer visit

&R

Exhibition fairs

REg
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Stakeholder category Main expectations Main communication methods
A 2t A B 7 B3 J: A 77 X
Industry Comply with industry regulations  Industry forums and exchanges
(- BFATERRE TSR G
Promote industry development Site visit
RETHRER B E 528
Industrial innovation Research
7E 3£ Al A T
Media Information disclosure Result announcement conference
LU BEEAR EEBRME
Social contributions Media open day
HE =R S A B i H
Special report
HERE
Local community Support public welfare Community activities
B & PESVNEE & IS E

Create a harmonious community
BB E
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Materiality Assessment

During the Year, to enhance the depth and
breadth of stakeholder communication, we further
expanded the scope of stakeholder surveys and
conducted online questionnaire surveys through
an independent third-party institution to identify
the important ESG issues of concern to internal
and external stakeholders. The specific procedures
include:

. Initially identifying 27 ESG issues related
to Xingfa’s operations by combining
the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, issues of peer companies and
sustainable development trends while basing
on stakeholder surveys and interviews in
2019;

. Inviting internal (including directors,
senior management, middle and junior
management, and other positions of the
Group) and external stakeholders (including
investors/shareholders, customers, suppliers,
distributors and others) to fill in online
questionnaires and collected their ratings
regarding the materiality of ESG issues;

. Analyzing the 95 scoring results collected
and by reference to the “materiality”
reporting principle of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s ESG report and the
“materiality” analysis method of the
GRI Standards “sustainability” issues,
determining the priority of various ESG
issues from two dimensions: “Importance
to Xingfa’s business and sustainable
development” and “Importance to
stakeholders and the environment and
society” and obtaining the ultimate

confirmation from the management.

2.3.
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The following sets out the degree of importance
of various issues identified from the Group’s

materiality assessment during the year:

Materiality matrix

H B e

Greenhouse /

gas emissions

Community participation /.

and contribution

R AREEEEEFEEER
AR E AR

LR H A AR

Economic performance
/ KRB

2 - + Product quality control
O MF =]
50 FEREREE |
= Occupational health and safety
e
Prevention and Handling of TR RE 2 2
Environmental Incidents ®
TR HCID B Innovative R&D and intellectual
> property protection
Rt RIRTRITEE B 1M P A (R
'S e
8 Anti-corruption Exhaust emissions
g KA and managen;im
; ./ JBE SRS TR
g ﬁ Environmental Compliance @& .\
E }gmj:( Cust . - TSEEH ‘Waste Management
o ‘ustomer privacy protection — o
g g &R R Wastewater discharge J. REEVIEE
g @m and management Use of water resources
E - Diversity and equal opportunities JEK LA R ./ KT
5 ;‘% EESEE 1 @ Green products - X i
Empolyee development 45 =] upplier environmental ris|
_q:') iR il and trgining ° RO assessment and management
- ﬂ% BT ER @ Human rights and labour rights T 05 e R A A P
@ 2 /. AHER ST
Q
‘% E Usage of packaging ma}enals By e
s BRI .\ SEIRAE
Q = Employee participation =t
< XH . . N and communication
3 = Supplier social risk assessment s
N e and management \ BIZ28RER
L8 % L e 1 R B R A T Land resources and impact on biodiversity
3
=
<
-
=t
=}
=¥
=)
—

M2 R B TR / Environmental issues
L S
Employee compensation and benefits Iﬁfﬁéé
BT RAEAl Social issues
. tEERE
Response to climate change @
T SR AL Operation issues

BERE

1'%

L4

Importance to Xingfa’s business and sustainable development Highest
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R
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Importance
degree Environment Aspect Social Aspect Operation Aspect
MR 05 i G ancg il B RE
Highly important e+ Prevention and Handling of ¢ Occupational health e Product quality control
1 Environmental Incidents and safety E R S
TR 158 S TR T B s P R 2 (R R B 27 &2 Innovative R&D and
*  Wastewater discharge and intellectual property
management protection
B 7K R ik B B BT BT 2% B AT b 7 A R
* Exhaust emissions and &
management Anti-corruption
JB SR P T B B K&
* Energy usage
RETRfE A
*  Waste Management
* Environmental Compliance
BE AR
* Use of water resources
IKE TR A
* Supplier environmental
risk assessment and
management
8 o 2R 0 L B £
BB
Moderately e Green products Human rights and labour Customers privacy
important SR rights protection
v i o e Land resources and impact NHE R 55 Bl 25 HERBALIRE
on biodiversity Employee participation Supplier social risk
3 R e B and communication assessment and
VSRR BT2 B K #EE management
e Usage of packaging Diversity and equal L 8 7 R B A
materials opportunities =g
BB R Znlb R FEHE Customers satisfaction
* Greenhouse gas emissions Employee development =R y=i3
1= AR and training
B T3 k5l
Employee compensation
and benefits
B T B b A
Generally * Response to climate change Community participation Economic performance
important JEE ¥ SR M B L and contribution PRI
— 18 2 B K J Rk
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3.

STRIVING FOR PERFECTION AND
PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE

3.1. Smart Manufacturing with Craftsman’s Spirit

The Group takes full implementation of the
State Council’s “Quality Development Outline
(2011-2020)” and “National 13th Five-Year Plan
for Safe Production” as its primary mission. The
Group abides by the ISO 9001 quality management
system, government recognized laboratory
management system, measurement and certification
management system, military certification system
and other systems. Our requirements for product
quality are higher than industry average. We
introduced world-advanced production equipment

to optimize the physical and chemical properties of

our products.

The followings are the progress of Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. in

performing its lean works during the year:

. Promoting visual management and on-
site “5S Sorting and Rectification” in each
workshop for the classification, placement

and identification of items;

. Adding hook racks in the hanging areas
of every production line to reduce labour

intensity of staffs;

. By categorizing and sorting out items in

hardware warehouse, redundant items can

be counted and waste is reduced;

. Before starting to work, staffs in every
workshop should join training classes at
least twice a week. By promoting efficient
and lean thinking, the Group aims to

improve the productivity of every workshop.

3.

Wi R 28R midl
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In order to regulate the quality inspection and
evaluation of engineering projects, improve the
engineering management standard, and reduce
quality and safety risks, we strictly control the
process quality. We had quality control points in
every segment from casting, extrusion, molds,
surface treatment to ex-warehouse delivery, and
continue to improve while preventing defective
products from flowing into the next process. We
also strictly controlled every detail of the operation
process, carefully checked whether there were
quality problems such as grooves, rough lines, and
scratches on profile surface, and check the profile
angle and flatness through square ruler.

We fully implement the “Product Quality
Management Manual”, “Quality Department
Management Plan”, “QUASCAP Pearlescent
Electrophoresis Profile Inspection Regulations”
and “Internal Control Standards”, emphasize
product quality management, and strive to provide
customers with satisfactory products, protect the
ecological environment and maintain staff safety
and health. The general manager of the Company
holds a dealer meeting every year and visits key
customers on an ad hoc basis every month to solicit
opinions from customers on product quality and

improvement.

In order to manage the recycling and processing
of faulty products, we implement the “Control
Procedure on Faulty Products” and the “Bad
Quality Behavior, Process Specification
Supervision and Deduction Treatment System”.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
violate any laws and regulations related to product
liability.
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3.2,

Research and Development and Innovation

The Group has all along been committed to
building core enterprise competitiveness by
enhancing its technological innovation capabilities.
Since its inception, the Group has obtained more
than 1,500 domestic and foreign patents, providing
over 200,000 product specifications and models
covering all major areas of aluminum alloys,
provides aluminum products and engineering
solutions relating to door, window and curtain wall
systems in construction, electronic equipment,
mechanical equipment, rail transportation,
aerospace, and ships etc. With our strong research
and development capabilities and persistent pursuit
of excellent quality, a wide and stable sales network
has been established in China and globally in the
past over 30 years, so as to meet the needs of
global customers for high-quality products. During
the Year, Xingfa Aluminum obtained 1 invention
patent, 3 utility new models, and 20 appearance
patents.

Furthermore, the Company conducts Industry-
University-Research collaboration with universities
and research institutes. The Jiangxi Company
jointly developed a key research and development
project, “Key technology development and
industrialization of high-strength and corrosion-
resistant rare earth aluminum alloys for
automobiles”, with Jiangxi University of Science
and Technology and Foshan University. In addition,
the Jiangxi Company co-operated with South China
University of Technology and Jiangxi University
of Science and Technology to carry out the Yichun
Economic Development Zone Innovation-driven
Development Science and Technology Project,
focusing on the research and development of
major scientific and technological projects of “In-
situ nano-Al203 modified Ni3Al as binder phase
cobalt-free gradient cemented carbide preparation

and application research”.

3.2.
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The Group highly values intellectual property
rights management, and in accordance with
the requirements of the “Enterprise Intellectual
Property Management” (GB/T 29490-2013) issued
by National Intellectual Property Administration
(CNIPA), we passed the “Enterprise Intellectual
Property Management” system certification in
the year. We formulate rules and regulations,
including the “Company Intellectual Property
Rights Management System”, “Patent Management
System”, “Trademark Management System”,
“Intellectual Property Rights Training Measures”,
“Scientific Research Project Management System”
and “Intellectual Property Rights Strategic Planning
Programme”, so as to strengthen the promotion
of patent laws and regulations, the popularization
of patent knowledge, patent training, patent
application and protection.

Products and Services

The Group always values the rights and satisfaction
of customers. Apart from satisfying customers’
demands for high-quality products, the Group also
focuses on providing timely and effective services
to customers to solve their problems. The Group’s
sales network covers China nationwide, and we
are committed to building a customer service
management mechanism through various customer
service channels, including customer opinion
surveys, customer service centers and hotlines,
customer visits, exhibitions and large-scale
reception activities such as super factories. At the
same time, we have established an enquiry method
to quickly search sales outlets in various places
on the Company’s website, and provide online
messages, dealer portal website, anti-counterfeiting
enquiry and other options.

3.3.
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In order to standardize customer service
management and improve customer service quality,
we provide the following after-sales service

undertakings in our tender contracts:

. After receiving the customer’s quality
feedback, Xingfa will respond within 24
hours or dispatch service staff to the site as
soon as possible for after-sales service until

the customer is satisfied;

. Xingfa will send technicians to the site to
provide technical guidance services when
there is a genuine need;

. If there is any damage caused by the quality
of the materials provided by Xingfa, such
materials will be replaced free of charge;

. Actively participate in engineering co-
ordination meetings organized by
customers, strictly implement meeting
minutes or signed agreements between the
two parties, and pay return visits regularly
to understand the use of materials by users;

o After the contract is fulfilled, Xingfa
undertakes to continue provide users with
the relevant technical services and answer

users’ inquiries at any time;

. Xingfa will further improve its services,
and implement timely service, advanced
service, full-process service, and high-
quality service throughout the entire product

manufacturing and installation process.
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information
security and customer privacy protection, strict
compliance with relevant national and local laws
and regulations. The Group is the first enterprise
in the industry to apply the “ERP modern
management information network project”, and
passed the “Integration of Informatization and
Industrialization Management System Assessment”
in 2017.

The Group also regulates the collection and
preservation of customer information. For software
that may contain customer information, customer’s
private information will be encrypted, and relevant
records will be kept for customer information
operation purpose only.

We combined Xingfa’s informatization and
digitalization standard, utilize multiple information
systems, adopt new Internet of things technology,
integrate smart profile WMS, automated material
three-dimensional warehouse, automated mold
three-dimensional warehouse, energy information
integrated management platform, production
equipment data acquisition and the comprehensive
performance analysis platform and strive to
promote the construction of big data to ensure the
continuous improvement of the Group’s operational
efficiency and overall management standard.

3.4.
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3.5.

We are committed to protecting customer
personal privacy and attaching great importance
to information security and customer privacy. The
Group is in strict compliance with the relevant
national and local laws and regulations, proper
use of customer information, and prevention of
customer privacy leakage in accordance with the
laws. We protect data exchange at user end through
data encryption and document encryption, and
solve the problem of online data leakage through
integrated software and hardware solution for
online behaviour audit. In 2020, we have carried
out the second-level guarantee certification of the
latest national guarantee 2.0 version, and further
strengthened information security and privacy
protection through application data backup, data
audit and network security solutions for internal
and external networks.

Sustainable Supply Chain

3.5.1. Supply Chain Environmental Risk
Management

While developing, we never forget to join
hands with upstream and downstream
partners in the industry chain to promote
a responsible supply chain, constantly
improve service quality, and facilitate the
healthy and sustainable development of
the industry. We conduct a qualification
review when bidding, and stipulate that
the bidder must be a registered enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China, and
meet the relevant requirements as a legal
person, and must possess a business
licence and tax registration certificate.
Moreover, materials such as product
manuals, quality certificates, various quality
system certification certificates (including
environmental management systems), and
reputation certificates must be provided.
At the same time, we also require suppliers
to meet the three different dimensions of
corporate social responsibility, including
economic sustainability, environmental
sustainability and social sustainability.

3.5.
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The raw materials used in products
production of the Group are mainly
aluminium ingots and aluminium rods.
Most of its upstream suppliers are highly-
polluted and high energy-consumption
enterprises. We are committed to reducing
the environmental impact of upstream
suppliers. We require our supply chain
partners to strictly comply with the
specific requirements of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant laws and
regulations. Our environmental and social
risk management policy for supply chain
include the followings:

. The policy requires suppliers
to satisfy the requirements of
regulatory, reporting and operational
measures. For chemical materials
purchases, general safety will be
enhanced through strengthening
environmental management,
preventing environmental pollution
incident, and integrating supplier
environmental risk management and
supply chain management to achieve

“overall safety”.

. Supplier assessment covers the
assessment of risks associated
with the supplier, in which aspects
relating to product quality and
hazardous material control, supplier
environment and safety control
accounted for 40% of the overall
risk assessment.
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. Letters of guarantee are to be
entered into with suppliers on
exclusion of environmentally
hazardous substances so as to
ensure all materials and components
provided by suppliers are free
from hazardous substances. All of
those materials and components are
required to pass the tests conducted
by professional testing organization,
and testing report with official seal

shall be provided.

Based on such policy, companies
formulate and implement supply chain
environmental risk management measures
based on actual production and operation
conditions. For example, when Chengdu
Company organizes its supplier files every
year, it requires suppliers to confirm that
they are not accountable for any safety
and environmental incidents in previous
year. Whether the suppliers passed the
environmental impact and safety evaluation
is the key inspection item of the Company
in evaluating suppliers. If any supplier fails
to pass the evaluation, no procurement
contract will be signed with the supplier by
the Company.

During the Reporting Period, there was no
breach of any laws and regulations relating
to environmental emissions by the Group
nor received any notice of violation from
the government environmental protection

department.
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3.5.2. Supply Chain Social Risk Management

The Group has established supplier
evaluation control procedures, major
raw and auxiliary materials inspection
procedures, major raw and auxiliary
materials procurement procedures, quality
objectives management and statistical
regulations for the specification and
control of supplier evaluation processes
and procurement. The Group’s tender
purchasing team is led by senior
management, comprising of the sourcing
director and head of each branch companies
and department. The main method of
purchasing raw materials is by tender

invitation.

In order to reduce the social risk in supply
chain, our social risk management policies
for supply chain include the followings:

. Investigation on bidder’s
qualifications: The policy states
that bidder must be an entity
incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China, and meets the
legal person capacity required
by bidding units and posseses an
enterprise business license and tax
registration certificate. Bidder must
provide product specifications,
quality certificate, quality
system certification (including
environmental management system),

credit certificate, etc.;

. Corporate Social Responsibility
Management: The policy requires
the suppliers of the Group to satisty

social sustainability.
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4.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT,
CO-EXISTING AND CO-PROSPERITY

4.1.

Environmental Compliance

Through integrating with the national green
manufacturing development plan, the Company
has formulated a comprehensive environmental
protection system, constantly improves the
environmental management standard, and
successfully obtained the ISO 14000 environmental
management system certification and the ISO
50001 energy management system certification.
All subsidiaries strictly abide by the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid
Waste Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Environmental Noise Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other relevant national laws and
regulations, persist in conducting environmental
emergency drills, and improve staffs’ awareness of
energy conservation and environmental protection
and work capabilities. The Company has set
up a safety and environment office to lead and
be accountable for the Group’s environmental
protection work. We implemented the reward
and penalty system for environmental protection
to reward environmental protection staffs with
outstanding performance or penalise those
who have violated the regulations in respect of
environmental protection.
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During the Year, the Group invested a total of
RMB4.81 million in environmental protection,
which was mainly used for the preparation
of corporate environmental emergency plan,
environmental facilities renovation, replacement
of environmental protection equipment parts, and
environmental protection facilities renovation and
hazardous waste disposal. The Jiangxi Company
launched the environmental and workshop 7S
rectification activities for each workshop, and
regulated management training on industrial
hazardous waste for workshop managers. The
mold workshop organized staffs to carry out
liquid ammonia leakage emergency drills. The
Chengdu Company carried out training activities
such as environmental protection management,
hazardous waste management, and comprehensive
business of hazardous waste management. The
Henan Company has completed the new version
of the sewage discharge permit and was rated as a
grade B enterprise in 2020. In addition, the Henan
Company carried out the environmental protection
credit evaluation, and the final score received after
the assessment by the Provincial Department of
Ecology and Environment was 95 points, and the
credit rating is “Integrity”. The Chengdu Company
also strengthened the training activities for staffs
such as environmental protection management,
hazardous waste management, and comprehensive

business of hazardous waste management.
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In terms of implementing various environmental EHNEESHREEE T R
management tasks, the Group companies were able FEEEEAR DI ERLA IR
to achieve all set goals for the Year as follows: EREE

Jiangxi Company
TN AR
* No penalty for non-compliance of environmental protection throughout the Year
R I TR (R 8 R AT K
* Regulated management and transfer of industrial hazardous waste throughout the Year

B TG R B E AN EE

Chengdu Company
JRAR 2 ]
* Has become an enterprise with good environmental protection credit evaluation

EEMIR R E AP E B4 3

Henan Company

2]

* No environmental pollution accidents and environmental impact incidents
NIRRT R R BRI

* wastewater discharge, exhaust gas and noise emissions meet the national and local emission standards
JBE K~ B AR R RR HETACRT & B3 R ML 7T PR e

e Compliance disposal of solid waste

[ Jaf & KR B
During the Reporting Period, the Group did WA RE BRI A K
not violate any laws and regulations related to REHEHR R R ERNT A
environmental emissions, nor received any notice RRBNBUFER R PIRETE A e

of violation from the environmental protection
department of the government.
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4.2. Emissions Management 4.2.  HEAE P

4.2.1. JERF

4.2.1. Exhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions generated during
the production and operation of the Group
include nitrogen oxide, particulates,
sulphur dioxide and organic waste gas. We
strictly complied with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China. In our
environmental policies, the Group requires
stringent restriction of exhaust gas and
particulates emission into the atmosphere.
Prior to emissions, exhaust gas must
undergo purification treatment and shall not
exceed the specified standard prescribed
by the national or local environmental
protection bureau.

Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly
generated from casting workshop. The
Group has purchased natural gas energy
transforming equipment and used natural
gas as production energy to effectively
reduce exhaust gas emission in workshops.
During the Year, our companies had
strengthened the exhaust gas purification

management:

. Setting a pulse airbag dust removal
system in casting workshops to
ensure the production facilities are
operated simultaneously with the

environmental protection equipment;

. Replacing the cloth bag of dust
removal equipment to improve the
dust collection effect;

. Establishing surrounding wall for
slag pot and slag room to reduce
smoke and dust leakage;
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. Cancelling the water bath dust .
removal equipment of the furnace,

and using the pulse dust removal

YA YO YL X TH KT BR
JEE Rt 5 > 4 0 AR
EEREEAS A

equipment;
. Renovating the furnace hood to . PR Y YO i JE B - 4
increase the collection rate of smoke I B o
and dust.
During the Year, the Jiangxi Company AAE R 0 VLV N T AE A
adopted the following measures to % B PR BRE - BR B DR A e
reduce the impact of floating dust on the I8/ T 455 BB R B Y 52
environment when constructing the new Z

finished product workshop:

. formulating a scientific construction .
plan during construction of
the workshop, which included:
enhancing construction management,
advocating civilized construction;
strengthening transportation
management, and prevention of
material loss and leakage measures

on material transportation and usage;

. materials were not jammed .

together during transportation or
overflow and transport vehicles
were travelling at medium speed to
prevent loss and dust floating during
transportation, and the speed limit of
entering and leaving the construction
site was limited to 5 kilometres per
hour;

. a simple work shed was set up to .
store powder, and outdoor storage
was strictly prohibited;
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. the construction waste should be
reasonably piled up and cleaned in
time, and dry construction waste
should be sprinkled to reduce dust
pollution during loading, unloading
and transportation;

. watering the ground and roads in
operation area, or regularly clearing
road soil to reduce the impact
of floating dust pollution on the
environment and minimize the

impact on ambient air.

Wastewater Discharge

Industrial wastewater generated by
each of the Group’s production lines
mainly consists of acidic and alkaline
wastewater, chromium wastewater and
nickel wastewater. We strictly abide by
the Emission Standards of Pollutants for
Inorganic Chemical Industry, the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other
relevant laws and regulations and the
takeover standard for sewage treatment
plant. The annual qualification rate of waste
water discharge is 100%.

In addition, our environmental policy
requires strengthening the wastewater
treatment to reduce its discharge volume.
The policy also requires good maintenance
of the closed-circuit circulation and
integrated treatment of production
wastewater, including:

. Operating and upgrading wastewater

treatment and purification facilities;

. Building a new chemical oxygen
demand (“COD”) treatment system
to reduce pollutant emissions and

stabilizing emissions;
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Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly
toxic wastewater is prohibited from
discharging into the water body.
Discharging pollutants into the
water system is strictly restricted to
prevent pollution;

Cleaning of vehicles and containers
that contained greasy or poisonous
substances with water body is
prohibited;

Adding a new defluorination process
to the wastewater treatment station,
added a dosing tank and maintained

the wastewater sedimentation tank;

Testing centre is responsible for
conducting daily sewage inspection,
newly added online wastewater
monitoring facility, strictly
controlling wastewater discharge
within standards, as well as

preparing inspection reports;

The safety and environment
office of the Group as well as
the environmental protection
management personnel of production
workshop shall cooperate and accept
inspection by the environmental
protection agency on waste gas
emission, and wastewater discharge
from time to time.
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Moreover, to reduce the environmental
impact from construction site, Jiangxi
Company took the following measures
during the construction of new finished
goods workshop: during the construction
process, avoid any leakage in manual
transportation of cement mortar and clean
up leaking cement mortar in time, place
containers and other appliances in one place
and clean up in time, and rinse water into
grit pool and set up intercepting trenches
around the construction yard to reduce

construction materials loss.

Hazardous Waste Management

The Group strictly abides by relevant
laws and regulations such as the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Waste and
the Measures on the Management of
Hazardous Waste Manifests, and specify
the management requirements for
hazardous wastes in the environmental
policy. The hazardous waste generated
by our production and operation mainly
includes waste corrosive liquid, waste
washing liquid, waste tank liquid, tank slag,
wastewater treatment sludge, waste engine
oil, etc.

We strictly follow the National Directory
of Hazardous Wastes and other relevant
regulations, and all hazardous waste are
entrusted to qualified third-party bodies
for proper recycling and treatment. When
pollution incidents may occur or have
occurred, emergency measures must be
taken immediately to prevent pollution from
spreading out, alleviate and even eliminate
the impact of incidents. Major incidents
or emergent events should be reported to
the safety and environment office of the
Company for investigation within two hours
after occurrence.
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During the Year, the Group continued to
propel the process of hazardous waste
recycling, reduction and non-hazardous
treatment. During the process of building
a new finished goods workshop, Jiangxi
Company collected construction waste
and domestic waste properly, and strictly
prohibited mixing them for collection.
Domestic waste was promptly handed over
to the sanitation department for cleaning,
and disposal at will was strictly forbidden
to reduce the environmental impact. A
small part of the generated construction
waste was handed over to the relevant
departments in time to handle, and disposal
at will was strictly forbidden. The Jiangxi
Company transformed the temporary storage
warehouse for hazardous wastes by adding
new overflow tanks. The hazardous wastes
were stringently packed for moving into
and moving out of the warehouse. The
Henan Company newly added the die cavity
recycling device to prevent waste alkaline
water from being produced during the

production process.
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4.2.4. Non-hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group’s production and operation mainly
includes aluminium slag, scrap steel,
construction waste, office and domestic
waste, etc. The Group also attaches
great importance to non-hazardous waste
treatment, especially the recycling of waste
materials and non-hazardous waste residue.
Some of the waste materials can be directly
used for production after being processed,
for example, the product scraps can be
used as raw materials after recycling to the
furnace. Other waste materials such as mold
steel can be handed over to the steel plant
for recycling and reuse after recycling. The
main components of non-hazardous waste
slag such as aluminium slag in casting
workshop are alumina powder, aluminium
powder and refractory particles, which can
be used as raw materials for high-aluminium
cement production after being handed over

to the cement plant for treatment.

During the plant construction process,
we strictly abided by national and local
environmental protection laws and
regulations and control construction waste
through a series of environmental protection
measures. During the Year, when building
a new finished goods workshop, Jiangxi
Company collected construction waste and
domestic waste, and strictly prohibited
mixing them for transportation. A small
part of the generated construction waste
was collected in time for the relevant
departments to handle, and disposal at
will was strictly forbidden to reduce the
environmental impact from construction
waste. During the Year, Jiangxi Company
successfully recovered 1,700.79 tons
of aluminum ash; and Henan Company

disposed of 269.93 tons of waste mold steel.

4.2.4.
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4.3.

Use of Resources

4.3.1.

Use of Energy

The Group has energy management center
system to collect statistics and analyse
the measurement and trend of water,
electricity, gas and other resources, enabling
each production base to monitor resource
consumption in real time, and timely debug
and repair controlling equipment to improve

efficiency.

In order to increase the utilization of
electricity resources, we took effective
measures including using LED lamps,
energy-efficient equipment, replacing
electrical machine with new and highly
efficient motors, reclaiming waste heat of
boiler, installing solar PV power generation
equipment on plant roof top. In addition,
the Group also made full use of the energy
generated during the production process,
such as applying the heat generated from
the operation of the air compressor in
the workshop in heating the technology
groove in the oxidation workshop, and also
hot water supply for staffs for daily use,
in order to effectively reduce the use of
electricity resources and natural gas, and
reduce safety problems caused by the use
of liquefied gas facilities. During the Year,
different companies continued to strengthen
staffs’ energy conservation awareness
training and supervision and use pragmatic
production activities to reduce process
waste and improved operating efficiency,
thereby reducing energy consumption per

unit of product.
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Use of Water Resources

Water resources are of vital importance to
our production process as it is indispensable
in every process such as squeezing and
casting. The Group uses both municipal
water and water from its own well, so as to
ensure there is no suspension in production
due to water supply shortage. The ratio of
the municipal water use to well water use
is approximately 8:2. In order to enhance
water resources management capabilities
and improve usage efficiency, the Group
continued to implement the water reclaim
system, and reuse reclaimed water for
daily life activities such as watering,
toileting, and cooling water production in
facilities through water towers and water
tanks. During the Year, the electrophoresis
workshop of Jiangxi Company has the
reclaimed water reuse equipment in place
and its reclaimed water reuse rate was
100%.

Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials of the Group are
mainly packaging tapes, labels, stick band,
lumps of wood and sealing glue. We source
from packaging materials suppliers that
meet the requirements of relevant national
laws and regulations. For sourcing products
packaging materials, the Group formulated
the group-level sourcing management plan
as its principal policy. Packaging materials
suppliers are selected by tender, which the
Group has already established long-term
cooperative partnership with them.
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4.3.4. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and 4.3.4. [HERBMFEPE

Management

Climate change is a severe challenge
facing humanity in the global community.
As a manufacturing enterprise, Xingfa
actively responded to the call by Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology to
construct a green manufacturing system.
In 2017, it was selected as the first batch
of green manufacturing demonstration lists
by Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology in 2017 and ranked among the
first 201 “green factories” in the PRC. Our
project of “Aluminium Profile Production
Line Air Pollutant Emission Reduction
Technology Reform” won “the National
Industrial Clean Production Demonstration
Project” of Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, and Xingfa was
the only company in Guangdong Province
that won the project. It has also won the
“Guangdong Province Clean Production
Enterprise” and the “First batch of resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise
piloting” in Guangdong Province and other
honorary titles.

From 2012 to 2015, we checked carbon
emission periodically and reported to
Provincial National Development and
Reform Commission (“NDRC”) according
to government requirements, and provided
NDRC with raw data to formulate carbon
emission indicators in the future. As
greenhouse gas emission is not the most
important issue of the Group, and that the
PRC government has not issued any specific
carbon emission reporting requirements
and carbon trading indicators since 2016,
therefore, the Group currently has no plan
to calculate carbon emissions. In future,
we will continue to pay attention to the
relevant regulations and trends regarding
carbon emissions reporting and update our
disclosures.
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In order to reduce direct and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions in production
operations, not only did the Company
implement green production, it also
promoted green office practices. The Group
continued to use natural gas as one of the
energy supplies for production operations
during the year because the carbon
emissions of natural gas is lower than
coal and reduce greenhouse gas emissions
correspondingly. In addition, while different
companies adopt the OA network office
system, promote video conferencing system
and paperless office and standardize the use
of official vehicles and travel management
to reduce energy consumption, use of papers
and travel carbon emissions while ensuring
office efficiency. The recycling of domestic
and office water was also encouraged.

In the future, we will further optimize
the management system related to green
factories, continuously improve the
environment and energy management
system, and leverage fully our corporate
technology, resources and external
collaboration conditions to make Xingfa
Aluminium the advanced and smart green
factories with high energy efficiency,
low pollution and low emission, helping
the nation’s green and low-carbon
transformation and development.
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S. HUMAN-ORIENTED, SINCERITY AND
TRUSTWORTHY

5.1.

Employment Practice

The Group strives to provide staffs with a working
environment providing diversified and equal
opportunity, and to form a highly qualified team.
Meanwhile, we aim to create comfortable and safe
working conditions to ensure social and cultural
diversity and the dynamic development of the
Company.

We strictly comply with national and local labour
regulations such as the Labour Law, the Labour
Contract Law, the Law on the Protection of
Minors and Provisions on Prohibition of Child
Labour of the PRC and protects the legitimate
rights and interests of staffs. We follow the
principle of equal employment, namely “fairness,
openness and impartiality”, and focus on the
job applicants’ business abilities, personal
qualities, and development potential during the
recruitment process, and none of them will be
treated differently for reasons such as age, gender,
ethnicity, nationality, marriage and family status,

health condition and religion.

We emphasize communication and participation
among staffs, disseminated policy and information
through posting announcements on bulletin
boards, e-mails, employee manual or training.
Staff can put forward their opinion and question
to management through interview, functional
e-mails or group discussion. We encourage staffs
to offer suggestions for corporate operation and
development purposes.
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At the same time, the Company’s internal trade
union organization strictly abides by the relevant
requirements of the Trade Union Law of the
PRC, protects the rights and interests of staffs
in accordance with the law, performs democratic
procedures, and gives full play to the role of staffs
in enterprise democratic management. In order to
enhance their sense of belongings and enthusiasm
for work, we have enriched staffs in their spare
time by arranging outstanding employee activities,
employee birthday parties, daily fruit distribution, a
series of festival activities, and various cultural and
recreational activities, and helping staffs in need
through union organizations.

Outstanding employee activity
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Employee birthday party
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with the laws and regulations in relation to
employment and labour in all material respects,
including the laws and regulations relating to equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
welfare.

5.2. Labour Standard

The Group offered competitive remuneration
packages in the same industry for staffs to ensure
staff with excellent performance would obtain
corresponding returns. We issue policies relating to
employee compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, antidiscrimination
and other benefits and welfare in the employee
handbook.

We reviewed regularly the remuneration packages
at all levels internally, collected industry
information on remuneration from the labour
market externally, and adjusted the remuneration
and benefits standards with reference to position,
work capability, work performance, staff skills and
benefits to the Group. The personnel management
principle that we adopted is performance-based
incentives and assurance of internal fairness. For
example, the monthly salary of production line
staff is calculated according to the comprehensive
piecework on a team or group basis, so as to
ensure that staff who works more will be paid
more. At the same time, for employee performance
appraisal process, they are being implemented
across different positions according to the
performance appraisal method of the respective
department in which they work. We adopted a
policy whereby management personnel shall
abstain from any human resource matter relating
to their family members and relatives, with an aim
to ensure internal fairness, and require such family
members and relatives of management personnel
are not allowed to work in the same respective
departments.

5.2.
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The Group strictly abides by the minimum age of
employment requirements stipulated by the PRC
and the location where it operates. Our corporate
social responsibility has expressly stipulated the
prohibition of recruiting child labour under 16
years old. For minors between 16 to 18 years old,
we carried out special protection in accordance
with the laws. Moreover, the Group illustrated the
policy of preventing forced labour in the employee
handbook and adopted an order-oriented production
model. Pursuant to the approval from local labour
department, we implemented a work system
with integrated computation of working hours to
ensure staffs’ right to rest and leave are protected
and production and work tasks can be completed
through collective working, collective rest, on shift
and adjustment leave and flexible working hours,
etc.

Apart from prohibiting employment discrimination
and forced labour exploitation and ensuring that
child labour is eradicated, we also adopt a zero
tolerance approach to any form of discrimination
or harassment. During the Reporting Period, there
was no misconduct nor regulatory non-compliance
related to employment of child labour or forced
labour in the Group.
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5.3.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group regards protecting the life safety and
occupational health of its staffs as its paramount
mission. We adhere to the policy of “Safety
First, Focus on Prevention and Comprehensive
Treatment” and the principle of “Production
Management must Encompass Safety Management
and Person-in-charge is the Responsible Person”.
We prepared the safety production management
system, which emphasised that “all activities
are based on the life and health of staff”, and
established the safe production committee
which is responsible for our overall safety
production management works of the Group. For
implementation, every production department
has established its own safe production leading
group respectively and is responsible for staff’s
production safety work in respective departments.

We strictly follow the relevant regulations of
the Group’s safety and quality control, actively
carry out promotion on safe production, and
regularly organized safety experts to conduct
safety evaluations on every segment of production
process and all equipment and facilities, including
the evaluation of performance and risk factors.
At the same time, we replace the filter element
of the dust removal tower in melting furnace to
improve its dust treatment effect. In the hot summer
season, each machine in the extrusion workshop
is equipped with air coolers to prevent staffs from
heat stroke.

5.3.
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We attach great importance to staff occupational
health, and resolutely implement the Law on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
of the PRC to ensure staffs’ occupational health.
We set up safety facilities on construction sites
to improve the working environment and ensure
timely provision of safety helmets, gloves and
other labour protection supplies. The environmental
measures adopted during production could reduce
hazardous exhaust gas, waste and wastewater
discharge, which are crucial to the health of staff
that work in workshops for a long period of time.
We are committed to indoctrinating environmental
protection concept to staff and successfully
achieved the following safety goals during the year:

Safety incidents Occupational health
Major safety incidents: Nil * Incidence of occupational diseases: Nil
BERZREN T BEmBER 2
General safety incidents: e Detection rate of occupational hazard
— ML RHE factors: 100%

*  (Class C/minor incidents < 8%o

MEEFRRRAE  100%

CHRL/ 18 1 S #0<8%0 e Occupational health check rate before

* Class B and above incidents: Nil

BR ML EHE &

employment: 100%
i AT IBCE R R R 100%

Fire safety incidents: Nil e Occupational health check rate when in

Mz 2Hg T

Environmental pollution incidents: Nil
BREGRENR T

Major chemical leakage incidents: Nil
E-DN (ot SRR G

Major equipment/facility incidents: nil
BRRMHE/REFESR 2

Major production and business-related

employment: 100%
T i R (AR AR K 1 100%

traffic incidents in which we take up the
main responsibility or material damage
incidents: Nil
BEREEKENE T ERAFREYIA
Fi.Z
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Rectification rate of hidden danger

(13T &S

Rectification rate of due hidden dangers
causing incidents = 95%

IR EPIREALR 1295%
Rectification rate of hidden dangers
causing major incidents: 100%
BHRH MR BEELER 1 100%
Inspection rate of special equipment and
accessories: 100%

IRE R A B AR BB R 1 100%
Signing rate of safe production
commitment letter: 100%

A ERREREERRT R 100%
Administrative penalties for safety and
environmental protection violations from
competent government authority: Nil
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Apart from this, we offered a comprehensive safety
consciousness and skills training for staff and at
the beginning of each year, an annual training
programme is prepared according to the training
requirements of each production workshop and
the entire process is tracked and implemented as
scheduled. The General Department organized and
launched specific training and drills on fire safety,
driving safety knowledge and specific training on
practical operations, etc. The training involved
specific operation in certain positions, re-training
for special equipment and first aid training, etc.
Meanwhile, we launched monthly safe production
(online) activities to invite staffs to participate in
the hidden danger elimination campaign, which
received more than 10 safety hazards discovered
by them. In addition, we held an online safety
knowledge quiz activity to enhance staff awareness
of safety, with a total of 75 staffs been awarded.

We regularly organize safety and fire-fighting drills
and staff trainings on fire-fighting knowledge,
and deploy fire-fighting facilities in workshops
and office buildings. We require staff, whether
working frontline in workshop production line or
in administrative office, must possess firefighting
knowledge and can use firefighting equipment
properly, so as to improve staff capability in
responding incidents.
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We allocate different labour protection gear to
staff according to the national regulations on the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases,
and conduct propaganda training for staff in
respect of occupational hazards factors that exist
in production environment. The safety production
leading group in each department conducts
inspection on the actual compliance of staff safety
management, and for any staff who does not wear
safety equipment properly, warning will be given
for the first time of non-compliance discovery, and
a fine will be imposed on the responsible leader
and respective staff for the second time of non-
compliance discovery, i.e. strictly adheres to the
principle of “Person-in-charge is the Responsible
Person”. At the same time, the enterprise invites the
local Occupational Disease Prevention and Control
Centre to conduct occupational health examination
for front-line workers.

To improve, reconstruct, install and maintain safety
protection equipment continuously, the Jiangxi
Company has invested a total of RMB7.86 million
in safety works, which are mainly used for the
inspection and maintenance of special equipment
and facilities, fire-fighting facilities and fire-
fighting equipment, purchase, update, and improve
on-site work safety and production conditions, as
well as purchasing necessary emergency rescue
facilities, equipment and safety protection gear
for on-site workers. The Jiangxi Company has
also strengthened the inspection and evaluation of
safety production at construction sites, rectified
hidden accidents, conducted safety skill training
and emergency rescue drills. In addition, the
Chengdu Company has invested a total of RMB3.97
million in safety works, which are mainly used for
safety education and training, safety testing and
evaluation, purchase of labour protection supplies,
fire-fighting facilities and equipment, safety and
accident prevention facilities, emergency rescue

equipment, occupational hazard protection, etc.
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Monthly safety production activity

The Company actively responded to the government’s call
for “Monthly Safe Production” and organized monthly safe
production activities in June 2020 under the theme of “Eliminating
Accidents and Strengthening Safety Defence Lines”, which
included the exchange seminars on safety and environmental
protection jointly held by the safety office and the workshops,
prize-winning quizzes on safety knowledge held in the canteen,
and safety-themed speech contests, etc.
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Monthly safe production activity
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After the launching ceremony of the monthly safe production activities, the participants observed the casting process in
the melting and casting workshop and conducted emergency response drills for sudden molten aluminum leakage. The
deputy general manager of the production department of the Company and the safety office conducted specific safety
inspections at the production and operation sites of each workshop on a daily basis, and a total of 30 inspection reports
were issued, and 280 problems/hidden hazards and safety risks that need to be given priority were identified and reported.
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Emergency response drill for sudden molten aluminum leakage
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
violate any law and regulation on health and safety
nor was there any work-related employee fatality
incidents. In response to employee injury accidents
that occurred during the Year, we promptly and
properly treated injured staffs, reviewed and
investigated the causes of accidents, and adopted
measures to strengthen staffs’ safety production
education and improve workplace protection
conditions to prevent accidents from happening

again.

Development and Training

The Group firmly believes that the development
and training of staffs is conducive to reach our
business objectives, improve performance and
achieve sustainable development. We are committed
to attracting and retaining high-quality talents and
enhance their sense of belonging by rendering
sustainable development and training opportunities.
The staff development and training policies are set
out in the employee handbook, and staff training
is guided in accordance with the “Staff Training
Management System” and “Administration
Methods for Staff Career Development”. We
carry out diversified training programs, which are
conducted through classroom training and online
learning, to continuously help staffs’ rapid growth
and self-improvement.
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During the Year, Chengdu Company alone had
organized more than 340 safety, environmental
protection and occupational health trainings,
with more than 2,330 participants. While Jiangxi
Company conducted 75 safety inspections with 600
participants; and conducted 27 accident emergency
drills with 1,623 participants. We made the
following achievements during the Year in respect
of safety training:

. examination rate of occupational health

after employment of 100%;

. safety education and training rate of newly
recruited/transferred/reinstated staffs of
100%;

. percentage of staffs holding necessary

certificates for special jobs (100%);

. percentage of the Company’s principal
responsible person and safety management
personnel that have received training
(100%);

Staff training. We develop an annual training
implementation plan based on the results of the
survey on employee training needs and integrated
with the training resources and the Company’s
human resources activity plan. Our training
works adhered to the principle of comprehensive
coverage and key development, mainly covering the

following aspects:
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New Staff Training

Through various forms of training, new staffs
are able to fully understand the Company’s
development status, organizational structure, rules
and regulations, process flow, etc., enhance their
recognition and confidence in corporate culture,
and give full play to their initiative and enthusiasm.

Management Training

To conduct general management training to all
staffs, such as management skills improvement,
business etiquette, emotional management, safety
training, communication skills improvement,
office automation, laws and regulations, and
policy presentations to improve staff quality and
comprehensive skills.

Professional Training

To offer a wide range of professional training for
staffs, such as trainings on sales skills, financial
operations skills, human resources management,
and training for specific projects. The purpose of
such trainings is to improve the know-how and
skills of professional staff, thereby improving work
efficiency. At the same time, we hire highly skilled
staffs as internal lecturers to share work experience
and professional skills with other staffs, and use
this as an opportunity to explore outstanding
talents, to form an efficient internal training
instructor team, and to inherit the company’s

culture and skills knowledge.
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On-line Training

We integrate with current intelligentized and
Internet-based platform learning methods and
collaborate with third-party training institutes to
develop an on-line training platform. The platform
will match different training programme for
staffs at each stage, and incorporate the training
assessment into the annual assessment to ensure
training effectiveness and timeliness and improve

the pro-activeness of staffs in learning.

Apart from the above training and promotion
practices, during the year, the Group’s headquarters
undertook a project to establish the organizational
capabilities and human resources systems,
and started to explore and discuss the purpose
and future development direction of Xingfa
Research Institute. The Sanshui Company revised
and updated its “Internal Training Lecturer
Training System” and “College Student Training
Programme”, and conducted group leader
training, college students sailing series training,
internal trainer series training, and large lecture
series courses for different personnel, covering
management and communication skills, production
process, safety production knowledge, customer
complaint handling, departmental corporate
culture, and office skills, etc. The Henan Company
has formulated a system of “Learning from
Experienced Staff” to nourish the labour skills of
new staffs.
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Anti-corruption

The Group has always been committed to
operating with integrity and prohibiting any
form of corruption and fraudulent acts, including
bribery, extortion and money laundering. We have
been continuously improving the internal control
mechanism and whistle-blowing mechanism
to eradicate corruptive behaviour. Adhering to
the attitude of zero tolerance for corruption,
we reinforced supervision among key segments
and staff in key positions that are vulnerable
to corruption. We have also strengthened the
awareness of the integrity of party members and
cadres by conducting conferences on discipline
education.

We strictly implement the code of conduct for
anti-corruption and antibribery in accordance
with the relevant national policies, laws, rules
and regulations. It is applicable to material
procurement, outsourced processing, facility
projects, business sales, equipment procurement
and maintenance, quality supervision, other
economic activities, and the process of management
of individuals, properties and belongings. At
the same time, all customers, suppliers, service
providers and underwriters who had business
relationship with the Group are also covered by the

code, which contained the following aspects:

. Requirements of anti-corruption and
antibribery conduct for purchasing and sales
staff

. Requirements of capital management
involving anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct during the purchasing and selling
processes

. Requirements of anti-corruption and
antibribery conduct for accounting cashiers

. Regular check on evaluation system

. Whistle-blowing registration system
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Anti-Corruption Seminar

On 25 September 2020, the Company launched
the “Monthly Discipline Education and Study in
Jiangxi Party Branch of Xingfa Aluminum”, during
which, Li Meiyu, the Company’s party branch
secretary and general manager, gave a special party
seminar under the theme of “Strengthening the
Construction of Party Style and Clean Management
and Building a Clean and Upright Team”, to
explain to staffs the importance of constructing
the clean management party style, so as to
improve staffs’ self-discipline of clean practices.
In addition, the Company constantly improve the
penalised and prevention system to create a clean

and upright cadre team.
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During the Reporting Period, there was no
misconduct or regulatory non-compliance related to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in

the Group.
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COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND
SHARING

Over the years, Xingfa Aluminum has been actively
assuming social responsibilities all the times. By adhering
to the “reciprocate of where you get” spirit, the Company
has carried out various community construction and
social assistance projects. Through a variety of ways and
initiatives to care for vulnerable groups, participating
in environmental public welfare activities, charitable
donations, and poverty alleviation, and conduct practical
actions to unify corporate development goals and social
responsibility.

While constantly pursuing our development, we always
bear in mind that we shall contribute to the society and
devote with heart. We have set up a dedicated charitable
fund and have actively participated in social charitable
donations in the name of companies and individuals,
and donated funds to socially disadvantaged groups or
charitable associations, and proactively assuming social
responsibilities. During the Year, the Group donated a total
of RMB320,000 for charities, including lighting projects
to help communities, road maintenance, visited poor
households, and solved the crisis of shortage of supplies in

pandemic prevention and control.
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Fight Against the Epidemic with Concerted Efforts

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of
COVID-19 epidemic broke the calm sentiment of the
past. To help the whole society to overcome difficulties
smoothly during the special period and ensure the health
and safety of staffs, the Company immediately established
an epidemic prevention and control group to fight
against the epidemic together with all sectors of society
by allocating resources and providing assistance to the
epidemic regions. The party members of the Company
donated RMB9,000 spontaneously and the Company
provided prevention and control materials, including 25
kilograms of ethanol for disinfection and 1,000 protective
masks, to the Fenglin community so that it can overcome
the crisis of material shortage in epidemic prevention and
control.

We paid close attention to the development trend of the
epidemic, regularly rehearsed the epidemic prevention
plan, implemented epidemic prevention measures,
suspended work in accordance with the requirements and
organized an orderly resumption of work. The Company
strengthened the inspection and management of staffs’
access to the factories, and provided them with sufficient
prevention and control supplies, strictly disinfected the
production and office premises, sent epidemic prevention
instructions and expressed condolences to staffs. The
Group also paid close attention to the health of staffs, and
treated the safety and health of staffs and their families as
its first priority.
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Alleviating Poverty and Helping the Poor

In response to the call of targeted poverty alleviation, “100
Enterprises Helping 100 Villages”, we gave full play to the
exemplary role of party members to support Xiexi Village,
Jiaohu Town, Wanzai County in alleviating poverty and
achieving economic development. In the morning of 24
December 2020, the Company’s party branch initiated
a visit activity under the theme of “Delivering Warmth
with Affection while Adding Motivation for Poverty
Alleviation”. Under the leadership of Li Meiyu, the party
branch secretary and general manager of the Company,
8 people including several party members participated in
the activity with the accompany of He Zheng, a deputy
county-level cadre of the United Front Work Department
of the Municipal Party Committee and the special
commissioner for poverty alleviation in the village.
Prior to the visit, Li Meiyu, our party branch secretary,
donated RMB40,000 to Xiexi Village as a special fund
for the construction of the Zaoling Convenient Bridge in
Xiexi Village on behalf of Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. to support the poverty alleviation in
Xiexi Village. The Party Branch of Jiangxi Company
under Xingfa Aluminum visited 10 poor households. They
cordially inquired about the living conditions of poor
families, expressed their condolences and sent cordial
blessings, wished them a happy life and good health, and
encouraged them to live a happy life as soon as possible
by endeavouring their own efforts and with the help of the
government and the society.
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Student Aid Activities

In response to the call of the municipal party committee
and government to care for the next generation, on 2 July
2020, under the leadership of Xu Wenbao, deputy general
manager of the Company, a caring team comprises of
party branch, labour union, and league branch, drove to
Shuanghong Primary School in Tiantaishan and launched
the student aid activities under the theme of “Caring for
the Growth of Minors and Building a Better Future for
the Motherland”. Accompanied by Secretary Zhang, the
village party secretary, the caring team listened to the talk
from Principal Gao of Shuanghong Primary School and
learned in details about children’s learning progress and
family conditions. The caring team combined education
with entertainment, and donated stationery to the children.
The caring team led the children to carry out a variety of
games and encouraged them to contribute more back to the
society in the future.

Student aid activities
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APPENDIX I: MAJOR AWARDS AND
HONOURS DURING THE YEAR

Since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminum has always been firmly

being the leader of construction aluminum profiles in China. The

Group was awarded the following major national awards and

honours during the year:

Awards Sponsor

MR LA

Awardees
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Honours

BN

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Association

A 8 e

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Association

A R TR E

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Association

A R L

National Intellectual Property
Administration

g\ IR0 I 6 Ak
FEHER

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Association, the Non-ferrous
Metals Society of China

g A R TR
A

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

AR BB EA R AT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

I R BB S A R v

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

A BB A R AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium, Xingfa
Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

JB S L% S A R
LR SR5E () AR AT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

JER B S A A

Gold Cup Award for Physical Quality of Non-ferrous Metal
Products - Aluminium Alloy Profiles (Electrophoretic
Painted Profiles)

i B A B R B BRI A SRS
(VKR BB

Gold Cup Award for Physical Quality of Non-ferrous Metal
Products - Aluminium Alloy Profiles (Spray-Painted
Profiles)

A O ENEWE RS A SR
(M)

Gold Cup Award for Physical Quality of Non-ferrous Metal
Products - Aluminium Alloy Profiles (Heat-Insulating
Profiles)

i B A B R B BRI S SR
(RREAELBE)

The 21st China Patent Award(A New Energy Vehicle Motor
Shell Mould)

Bt R A A (— RRRE IR R AR
A

Third Prize of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Science
and Technology Award(Research on the Development
and Application Technology of Aluminium for All-
aluminium Transport Vehicle)

v A <5 B SR 4 = A (B R s i
51 PA ) 5 SRR T 52k F )
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Awards Sponsor

T B R

Awardees

LLER

Honours

REHR

Ministry of Human Resources
and Society Security of the
People’s Republic of China,
China Non-ferrous Metals
Industry Association, China Gold
Association
w1 AL € B
B A R T
B

All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce

PR B TRER G @

China Non-ferrous Metals Industry
Association

B A SR LR G

Department of Industry and
Information Technology of
Guangdong Province

J R TER S AL

Guangdong Manufacturers
Association/Guangdong
Provincial Development and
Reform Institute

BERA WG E BORE
BRI D EN S

Department of Industry and
Information Technology of
Guangdong Province

T TER S R AL

Foshan National Hi-tech Industrial
Development Zone Management
Committee

Bl B R

Foshan National Hi-tech Industrial
Development Zone Management
Committee

Pl %

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

AR BB A R AT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

I SR LB S A R v

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

B BB A R A T

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

o SR BB SR A L 2 )

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

o SR B 3 A 2 )

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

o SR BB S A R 2 )

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

B BB 3R A 2 )

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

AR BB AR AT

National Non-Ferrous Metal Industry Advanced Collective

WA B8 TR A

2019 Top 500 Private Enterprises in Manufacturing in
China (417th)

201945 Fj i B K R B A ES0090 554174

Enterprise with AAA Credit Rating

AAABRIE R 58

2020 Guangdong Private Enterprises (SMEs) Innovation
Industrialisation Demonstration Base

20204F R B R3E (R/MESE) B ASEAL R R AR

2020 Guangdong Top 500 Manufacturing Enterprise(57th)

20204 5 015 7 3 50058 55574

2020 Guangdong Private Enterprises (SMEs) Innovation
Industrialisation Demonstration Base

20204 5 BB R3E (hMESE) AU ASEAL R 2R

2020 Leading Enterprises in Foshan High-tech Zone

L 20 20 4 5 95 L 4 3

2020 Foshan High-tech Zone Manufacturing Single
Champion Enterprises

20204 ol 7 1 5 2 S AT 7 £
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Awardees

L8R

BB g RERWS

Honours

REHR

Foshan Hi-tech Industrial
Association

L o v 5 5 o

Guangdong Sanshui Industrial
Zone Management Committee

R =k TERE S E R &

Jiangxi Federation of Industry &
Commerce

L7 TRiEM S &

Bureau of Science and Technology of
Yichun

HHE TR R

Bureau of Industry and Information
Technology of Yichun
AT LEMERMLR

Yichun Economic & Technological
Development Zone Management
Committee

HAETEHHBEEHERS

Yichun Economic & Technological
Development Zone Management
Committee

HENEHEHREEHEZAG

Chengdu Enterprise Confederation/
Chengdu Entrepreneurs
Association/Chengdu Enterprise
Culture Association

FRA R 6 A SRR G
Ve, 151 34 (R

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.

B BB B R A 2 )

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
JEE S L R A LA ]

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi)
Co., Ltd.

JEE LS 0 (TL7G) AR A T

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi)

Co., Ltd.
B R LR R (TL) A PR AT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi)
Co., Ltd.
JRR BB 3% (TLPG) A R A s

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi)
Co., Ltd.

B B gk (T79) A R 2l

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi)
Co., Ltd.

B BB g % (T09) A R )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

BB SE (RAR) A RAT

Foshan High-Tech Progress Award 2nd Prize(Development
and Industrialisation of High Performance Swinging and
Sliding Energy Saving Door and Window Systems)

il sl 2 — S e 4 B RE 1) 7 2 4
B % e EAL)

Major Taxpayer of 100 Million Yuan
kR

Top 100 Private Enterprises in manufacturing in Jiangxi
Province (65th)
TL7G A 08 BB 510098 (654

2019 Outstanding Technology-based Enterprises in the City
(awarded in 2020)
20194 5 2l 4 B RHER 4 (202058 K1)

Water-saving Enterprises in Yichun
A KR

Operating Revenue Step-Up Award

EELIONIR- 152 4

Taxation Step-Up Award

AR5

“5+5+1 Top 10 Key Industry Leading Enterprises (New
Materials)” Title

“5454+ 1 F B A L S A 2E CRPELMERE) 1055 5%
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T B R

Awardees

LLER

Honours

REHR

Sichuan Quality Supervision
Association

P9I R

Sichuan Technology Innovation
Service Centre/Sichuan
Development Center For SME/
Sichuan Enterprise Credit
Construction Guidance Centre

VIR STk e7 L e
PNE MRS D/
PN i 05 R AR
fd

Chengdu Municipal Bureau of
Economy and Information
Technology

FCAR T AE A AL R

Chengdu Enterprise Confederation/
Chengdu Entrepreneurs
Association/Chengdu Enterprise
Culture Association

FRAR I 5 7 A AR B
/A SAL b €

Chengdu Enterprise Confederation/
Chengdu Entrepreneurs
Association/Chengdu Enterprise
Culture Association

W EERE® W EER GG
V4,550 °4(R 1)

Information Centre of the
Department of Housing and
Urban-Rual Development of
Sichuan Province/Sichuan
Construction Science and
Technology Development Centre

VU028 £ 5 o 2 s £ e
/TR RHE R R D

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

LR %) A I 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

SR g (% HR) A R 2]

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

SR g () A R 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

BB (W) A IR 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

SR g () A R 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

BB SSE ORHD) A IR AT

2020 Quality and Integrity Benchmark Enterprise
20204 ik e AT 58

2020 Sichuan Famous and Quality Products Catalogue

20204 19)11 45 4 1 7 il 3

Chengdu New Materials Enterprise

A B A

Top 100 Enterprises in Private Sector in Chengdu

PR B Vo £

Top 100 Manufacturing Enterprises of Chengdu

A R O

Certificate of Green Label for Construction Materials of
Sichuan

VY11 € b Bl
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L8R

BB g RERWS

Honours

REHR

Sichuan Enterprise Confederation/
Sichuan Technology Innovation
Service Centre/Sichuan Economic
Daily

PNEEER S G/ I
S AR L,/ 1
R H At

Science and Technology Department
of Sichuan Province/Sichuan
Provincial Finance Department/
Sichuan Provincial Tax Service,
State Administration of Taxation

YRR EE3530 YaLlIE
BN,/ R BB 4R
WIEBRER

Sichuan Quality Supervision
Association

V9011 O

Henan Science and Technology
Department etc.

0 P

Henan Water Conservancy
Department,Department of
Industry and Information
Technology of Henan Province

T AR BE ~ T A L3RR
{5 B e

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

SR g () A R 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

B3 ORA) A 2 )

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

BLEE SR ORAR) AR Al

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan)
Co., Ltd.

JB L% 1 SE () AR A

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan)

Co., Ltd.

JR R LR g (i) AR ]

Top 100 Enterprises in Technological Innovation and
Development Capability of Sichuan

V90T S5 0 58 ok RE 711003 £

Certificate of High & New Technological Enterprise

T o

2020 Benchmark Enterprise with Quality Stability
20204 B A3 BEAT 5K

Exemplary Unit for Innovation on Energy-saving &
Emission Reducing Technology in Henan Province

0 24 A DK A5 0 5

Provincial Water-saving Enterprise in Henan Province

T 24 48 A B AT £
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APPENDIX II: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE

BifSsk o BB R AL B B SR AT R

INDICATORS
Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il St 45 S B LS DA 20204F  fiak
Total Aluminum output ten thousand tonnes 63.3  Total output of the self-made
B i A P i products of four companies
located in Sanshui,

Environment Aspect Chengdu, Jiangxi and
BRI Henan
Emissions Fy = 7K~ BB ~ Y175 ~ 7] Y
e 123 ) B B O A

Total non-hazardous wastes disposed of tonnes 997.8 o

REBERYEE L7

Density of non-hazardous waste tonnes/ 15.8

IEEREEYRE ten thousand tonnes

Mg B Dl

Total hazardous waste tonnes 1,029.7

AEBRYEE L7

Density of hazardous waste tonnes/ 16.3

AEBRREYEE

ten thousand tonnes

Mg 58 Wi
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Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il S 45 S B L EDA 20204F  fiak
Air pollution emission
PN RGELYE D)
Total nitrogen oxide Kg 21,681.8
RELYER T
Total sulphur dioxide Kg 10,407.0
R LM E T
Total VOCs Kg 29,282.4
HAVOCs= T
Total fluoride Kg 2,596.6
ALY E T
Total general dust Kg 2,218.2
— MR EE A B T
Wastewater discharge
3% 7K Bk
Total chemical oxygen demand Kg 29,965.1
LEREEHAE T
Total ammonia Kg 779.34
BRAME T
Exceedance or other non-compliance times 0
situations REL
7 ) R ) =l At A 5 1R 1
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity times 0
with environmental laws and regulations R

RN FF & BR PR IR R TR A T 4

HIE Gt
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Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il St 45 S B LS DA 20204F sk
Use of resources
AP
Total energy consumption kWh 919,713,949.4  Energy includes electricity and
AE TR M FEAE &= T ELIF natural gas, among which,
the calculation of natural
Energy consumption density kWh/ten 14,540,012.5 gas is made by reference
AE TR I RE thousand tonnes to the conversion factor
T LU/ B 1 in the “Guidelines on the
.. Calculation Method and
Total purchase of electricity kWh 300,137,093.9 Reporting of Greenhouse
HEE R 5
mATNRE TRK Gas Emission by Other
Consumption density kWh/ten 4,744,950.4 " ¥ndustri::”_ -
FHE®E thousand tonnes Hbﬁ@%&f? *{i’%;\ ko
T LI B H ’fr\\\%?f]ﬁfﬁé %I
(LEHEMATHEMERSE
Total natural gas usage volume m3 57,293,074.4 RABPERUZ B 77 B
RARRAEH = VAR 5/ ) PR R R
Density of natural gas usage m?¥/ 905,762.1
RARARKRE ten thousand tonnes
37T R R
Total water consumption tonnes 3,036,877.6
K& L7
Water density tonnes/ 186,548.2
F 7K 25 ten thousand tonnes
Mg g
Usage of packaging materials (carton and tonnes 16,177.1
kraft paper etc.) U7}
BEEM L B (U F A
Density of packaging materials (carton and tonnes/ 255.7
kraft paper etc.) ten thousand tonnes
BEER LR B (AU R AR gL, B it
Usage of packaging materials (Others, tonnes 7,970.6
including polyethylene wool, protective L

membrane, condensed membrane,

self-adhesive plastic)
MR & (EA > fE 2 ERAR

TREERE ~ Wk B~ B RGRB)
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Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il S 45 S B L EDA 20204F  fiak
Density of packaging materials (Others, tonnes/ 126.0
including polyethylene wool, ten thousand tonnes

protective membrane, condensed
membrane, self-adhesive plastic)

B R E R G RAREERAR
PRAERR ~ WA R~ BRERR)

Social Aspect
L i IR
Employment
1 1
Total number of staffs
g B NBL
By gender
TR E 53
Male
B
Female
egi
By age
AR E
16-30
16-305%
31-50
31-507%%
>50
>505%
By employment type
T8 BB 55
Full-time staffs
EXEE
Contract labour or
part-time staffs
FAEIEIEXE B
Turnover rate
& B i k%

Mg

number of people
N

number of people

number of people
AN#

number of people

number of people
AN#

number of people
N

number of people

number of people

N

%

7,366

5,866

1,500

1,803

5,039

524

7,366

50.6
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Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il St 45 S B LS DA 20204F sk
Health and Safety
Bt RE Bl 4
Number of work-related fatality number of people 0
FEER(IARPN ¢ AN#
Number of work-related injuries number of people 5
K TGN\ AN
Number of working days lost due to work- days 382
related injuries H
K TSR T H ¥
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity times 0
with laws and regulations related to RE
health and safety
BRI & 0 i B 2 2 B 2 R 7 49 511 K
B HF
Development and training
B e b
Average training hours
S 1 85 B R 8
By employment type
g E e A
Senior management hours 30.1
i SR8 B JINFRE
General management hours 30.6
— R IINTR
Non-management hours 32.8
IFE N
By gender
RIS 7
Male hours 29.9
B INEE
Female hours 31.5
gogi /IR
Labour Standard
e
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity times 0
with laws and regulations related to R

labour standard

PRI RF 5 A R 55 I T A5 T A 5 R S
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Key performance indicators Unit 2020 Remark
Il S 45 S B L EDA 20204F  fiak
Product Responsibility
FE b BLAE
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity times 0
with laws and regulations related to R

product responsibility

BRI AN 5 2 it M B 2 19 725 A T 49 57 Rl

e
New products and technical patents cases 24
acquired during the year &
A PO ES BT 7 e S il 28R
Total number of national patents acquired cases
CETS B K H AL {5
Anti-corruption
R&EG
Legal cases regarding corrupt practices cases 0
brought against the issuer or staffs R

917 A S EL R B 3 B B A LS
AR

Community Investment

N E A

Total Group’s community investment RMB 353,000
in 2020 NN

2020%F R EEAL B IR E WA E &

Total number of Group’s volunteers number of people 82
in 2020 N

20204F S 1E % LA\

Total hours of Group’s volunteer activities hours 1,125
in 2020 JINIF

20204F 25 [H] £ 28 175 B 48 RF 8
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APPENDIX III: INDEX OF HKEX ESG
REPORTING GUIDE

Aspects
i

BEssk — o 75 HE G 2 P (BB ~ 4L 8 I
Bifwmh sl ) &5l

Section Remarks

L ik

Aspect A1
fE A1

KPI ALl
o] S A A A
ALl

KPIAL.2
o] S A A
Al2

Environment Aspect

BRI G

Emissions

2387

(a) Policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste

A 1 B SR B i = SR PR I K e o R B

HAEREERRYNELFN

(@) B3R &

(b) B~pE BT NAERTERHBER K
jaail

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data

e Ty B4 7R 2 e A B R A

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

1 25 RS A e i (DA 1 5D e (An ) %
(e E R B FIHRME )

42 Emissions Management

42  HEmEwE

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance

Indicators
BiF 5 — ¢ BRI oA S B B A K
it

- This performance
indicator is not the
most material aspect of
the Group during the
year, we will update
according to relevant
regulations in future
A IR AR AR IR
AEEREENER
AR 2 FRA B 7
R
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Aspects
[

Section

H

Remarks

KPIAL3
o] SR AR A A
Al3

KPI Al.4
o] S AR A A
Al4

KPIALS
] S A A A
ALS

KPI AL6
o] S A A
AL6

Aspect A2
JEHiA2

KPI A2.1
I S A 4 A
A2.1

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
FrELAEREYRE (U H) & nE
F) R (Ui B B BIER M A )

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)
FrEEd mE Ry AR (UEE) R (0
) (DL B BT BIHR A H)

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved

A58 ok 16K TR U 8 T B T A R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved

1t 7 pl 3 A R E Y 0T U E
A BRI R TS R

Use of resources

HIREEH

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
AR & IR (ELAERE TR~ K R E AR F A D 1Y
Bk

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

TR o B R B B R AR IR (N R
s AR (T T st 8) & E (W
DfgrE& B BIERE )

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPose =« BRE o pt & R B AL

fHR

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BRsse — - RO R & B SR AN

fHR

4.2 Emissions Management

42  HEmEwE

4.2 Emissions Management

42  HEmEw

4.3 Use of resources

43 EIRE

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BRFSs — RO R & B SR RN
EE
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Aspects
i I

Section

i

Remarks

ik

KPI A2.2
o] SR AR AR
A2.2

KPI A2.3
o] SR A R A
A23

KPI A2.4
o] SR A A
A24

KPI A2.5
o] S A A A
A25

Aspect A3
JEHiA3

KPI A3.1
] SR A R A
A3.1

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)
BAKEREE WU EEREN  BIHRI
a5

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

A6 2t A T 68 P 00 o B T A R

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

A8 20 SR K IR b R A AR R LR AR
T+ KGR st 1 R s R

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced

SR AT R AL SRR Y 48 (LA BB & (0
BH) BEERMGE

Environment and Natural Resources

BB By KR A IR

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural resources
HERZETAHRERRAERERERTE
HIBUR

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the action taken to manage them
W EBEHHRE R RARAEFRNERTE
KREFRREHARTZENITH

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPSe — o BR b okt R B AL

R

4.3 Use of resources

43 BREH

4.3 Use of resources

43 BIREEH

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPSse — o BRI e pt R B AL

TR R

4. Protecting the
Environmental and
Co-existence and
Co-prosperity

4. (REEIREE A4

4. Protecting the
Environmental and
Co-existence and
Co-prosperity

4. (REEIREE A4
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Aspects
[

Section

H

Remarks

Aspect B1
J&TiiB1

KPIBI.1
o] S AR A
Bl.1

KPI B1.2
o] S A A
B1.2

Social Aspect
LN

Employment
(A

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination,
and other benefits and welfare

R T e AR R B T AR R

W FERE - Zonb RO DUR H A 155

KAGFIR

() BUR; R

(b) B pHBITNAERZERMEBERER
1 &

Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region

f2 MBI R (R ~ £ i AE A B ot 12 1 O O (8
BRE

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

I~ 4 e A A R 1 Oy (B B T
=

5.1 Employment Practice

5.1 5]

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPdse — o BRE o pt & R B AL

fHR

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BRfsse — @ BRSE ho BR SRE A K

TR R
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Aspects
i I

Section

i

Remarks

ik

Aspect B2
& iiiB2

KPI B2.1
o] S A R A
B2.1

KPI B2.2
o] S R R A
B2.2

KPI B2.3
] SR A A
B2.3

Health and Safety
i R Bl gy 2

(a)  Policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
staffs from occupational hazards

A RRAR % 2 TR ER 5 B IR I (8 B 4 T 3

HREER

(a) BUK, &
(b) BFHBITANAERTE
R &R

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

R LR AL TR A B EE R

Lost days due to work injury

R LEEK TR

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented

and monitored

A58 2L P BR A BT R R B 2 I DURAR

BPIT R BT

F9 AH R TR e

5.3 Occupational health and
safety

53 BeEREREZZE

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPose =« BRE o pt & R B AL

R

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BRFsse — 1 R R & B SR AN

R

5.3 Occupational health and

safety
53 WEEEEZE
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Section Remarks
T it

Aspect B3
& 1iiB3

KPI B3.1
o] S A A A
B3.1

KPI B3.2
o] SR A A
B3.2

Aspect B4
& i B4

Development and Training

B LI

Policies on improving staffs’

54 Development and
Training
54 BERIE

knowledge

and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.

AR THE BB AT L/ I 5 19 A58 B £ RE /Y

PR o 4t A 3 5 T

Percentage of trained staffs by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management,

middle management, etc.)

{21 A e 8 BRI (0 s 48 B AR R

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance
Indicators

BrPdse — o BRUE e v R B AL

&%) 8l HEIEEE L fHR

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category

{1 il ke (@ BAE R E 7 > £ 4 18 B 52 O

(SRESIE

Labour Standard
2 TR

(a) Policies; and

Appendix II: Environmental
and Social Key Performance

Indicators

Biyde — @ BRI Rkt & SR
Ei=t

5.2 Labour Standard

52 55 TR

(b compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour

A RART 1k % T esR 5 THY

(a) BUK ; &
(b) BFHBITAAEKR
IR E R

FENMBERR
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Aspects
i I

Section

i

Remarks

ik

KPI B4.1
o] SR AR AR
B4.1

KPI B4.2
o] SR A R A
B4.2

Aspect BS
& iiB5

KPI BS.1
o] S A A
BS.1

KPI B5.2
o] S A A
B5.2

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour
A 7 g A7 RS A ) 1 S Il DU 9 B T R R

BT

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered

A 21 3% 378 A% LI T BR A B 195 D0 P £R X
25 B

Supply Chain Management
3k e 7 5 B

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain

B L S A TR 0R B A R BCR

Number of suppliers by geographical region

B E R EREA

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

1t A RS Gt B RO B i H AT A
1R 669 it & 8OH ~ DURCA BE B 34T &
BT7 ik

5.2 Labour Standard
52 HTHEEH|

5.2 Labour Standard
52 T

35 Sustainable Supply Chain
35 AIRPEALEE

3.5 Sustainable Supply
Chain
35 ARG
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BB g RERWS

Aspects Section Remarks

(L H fi ik
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility -
J& i B6 FE B

Percentage of sold or delivered products

recalled due to safety and health reasons

OB a0 E 8 B S B R 4 2 LR P

78 Bl W i) B 7 B
KPI B6.1 Policies and compliance with relevant laws and  3.4. Information Security
7 9 4 AR A regulations that have a significant impact on the and Privacy Protection
B6.1 issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,  3.4. BERZ LR IRE

labelling and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of redress

A BT AR B S A IR S RO G R B 2 IR

EHRRABREEURHYTER BTN

BORRE H BOR DUR 3 7 A B P 1 B R 1
KPI B6.2 Number of product and service related -
7 9 4 AR A complaints received and how they are dealt with
B6.2 FRIER N A G R B R B H DU B 75

i
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and ~ 3.2.  Research and
Eafz s fveist protecting intellectual property rights Development and
B6.3 A 2 B0 5 e R it R 8 7 M R 1R 091 Innovation

32, WREAAR
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and 3.1 Smart Manufacturing
IH] S A A recall procedures with the Craftsman’s
B6.4 18 7t B2 A A B E o [ R Spirit
31, [ELOEE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 3.4, Information Security
o SR A A privacy policies, how they are implemented and and Privacy Protection
B6.5 monitored 3.4. BEELZRURBIRE

i 2 B R DR B B AL BB BOR > DUB A
AT R EEETTIE
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Bt & RGOS

Aspects
i I

Section

i

Remarks

ik

Aspect B7
& 1iiB7

KPI B7.1
o] S A R A
B7.1

KPI B7.2
o] SR A A
B7.2

Aspect B8
JE B8

KPI BS.1
I SR AR AR
B8.1

KPI B8.2
o] SR AR AR A
B8.2

Anti-corruption

K&

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

ARADT LIRS B R  BREE Rt R 8 R B 31T
NA ERFERIBOR B T H B A R R Bl

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its staffs during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases

T REE 00 79 3 AT A BHL (g B4R U L O A
HIE SRR FREE B A

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

A58 21 75 85 46 B B R R 7 DR BT B
i Y Rr

Community Investment

1 B

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’
interests

AL E 2 BRI R 31T N8 AL &
TEAE R E RSB G % B AL B A & A B
R

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

B ERER WS BEFEE - HFIHEKR
(AR §=))

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area

7 ST 0 0G5 Al 0 Y A O (0 <z 68 g )

5.5 Anti-corruption

55 RIEM

5.5 Anti-corruption

55  RIEM

5.5 Anti-corruption

55 RIEM

6. Community participation
and Sharing
6. HEZ2E HFESE

6. Community participation
and Sharing
6. HEZ2E HFESE

6. Community participation
and Sharing
6. HEZ2E HFESE
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KpME

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 178 to 323,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“TASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

for 1 YA 5 b 2 2 B N A BB e

T NS B
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated tinancial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

B R

RMERBEEEGMAEG ((HEGFMA
&) MR EEE E R A (T 25 ot
A1) EATHE R - RIVEZFRA T RIFEHEE
EEARR G [ ERATEL & 5 47 o 5 2R IEH
HE By PR — DR - RIFF B Gt L
G AR (B & At 1A ) (DU R Ty
Q) DU IR BB 2 8 B 57 & M R E
AR B OB R R MBS B W E R
TELEEBER TR HAM SR EEE
(T o JARME - AT AT IETS B2 5HRE RE 72 2
8 7 B BB AR AR A

[o# St w2 0

B S A FIH BRI A HEEH B SN
AR AV BRENESRASEENFEIH 5
Lo FIHZ AR WA AR AR AR O I 5 R et
HEERRETEMEN - RMAGHSLHIEA
REEENER-

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Wt BERE - 0 BH Rk

and the accounting policies in Note 1(v).

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements 752 B4 E M IER BN 73R & FHEFNTEEL(v) ©

The Key Audit Matter
IoH] S8 o il = JH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AT 8 w400 o it P % = IR

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors and other customers in a variety of end-user
markets.

W 3k 3= A [0 5 A AR i T 455 2 00 B T R LA B 5
&R AA o

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from distributor arrangements included the following:
A LAGT A 70 59 7 22 R 2 WAl e 0 ) 38 AR P (L4
DUR#508 :
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Key audit matters (continued)

for 1 YA 5 b 2 2 B N A BB e

[3H] S8 ¥ Wt 2H O ()

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in Note 1(v).

W e R < Sy 9 R ek
H 2B G B IR A A3 R & AR TaE1(v) °

The Key Audit Matter
I3l 92 A it o JH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRAM B3 5 00 o B % R

Sales to distributors accounted for approximately 54% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. Each year, the Group
enters into a framework distribution agreement with each
distributor and sells its products in accordance with the
terms of separate purchase orders. Once the products are
delivered to the location designated by the distributor,
the control of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is recognised.

] 73 SH 7 S (G B R A NI 3 5954 % - B R &
FHZ DWW LAERD MR ARIBESRET R
O FR B B E i o — ELE i S 2R 0 B T 45 E (9 st RS

S5, i ) 22 ) REE 4545 7 A8 T 70 9 7 Al o e s UK

PN
fm. ©

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and therefore
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

AT 73 55 7 22 PR < e 2k T 5 s ) 7% o) 92 8 s RO

JR IR W ds o B R M B S R B R R 2 — > UL E B
TP e 8 WA 2 22 R R A DA B R B AR TR I A
AR -

. assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

. A P LA A R R A P R SR N R B R 2 R
At B R EATR

. reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;

. AR B B Ly B R BT N 2 oy B Tl 0 O R OR
BAREEMBHRE S AT HEE ER R K

=4 .
A

. for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the related
goods delivery notes, which had been signed
and dated by the distributors as evidence of their
receipt of the goods, to assess if the related revenue
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period on the basis of the terms of sale as set out
in the distribution agreements and the terms of the
purchase orders; and

. MR ERAM BRI W ZGEAT S BE
FRZERE (HEH o #Hm &S ket 3B
TR R IGE)  LIRT Al A B a2 4 CARTR 70 85
foh o Pl o 51 B IR AR R BRI AT B 2 IR
S 75 ST A 3 DURERE

. inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

. FERTHAHREMENERFEHRAE [
& T A P A R A R A TR A S A R AT AR
SRR BRSO AT ER R
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Key audit matters (continued)

[5H] S8 ¥ it H O ()

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2 Sy WE RO 3 14 Y S0 45 5 s 8 43

Refer to Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(1).

B 2B G B IR 7 28(a) R & 5t BRI AE1(1) °

The Key Audit Matter
I3l 92 9 it o IR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AT % sl 400 i P 5% o O

The carrying value of the Group’s net trade receivables
as at 31 December 2020 totalled RMB2,422,234,000, net
of an allowance of RMB143,936,000 for expected credit
losses (ECLs).

ACECEEFT AT —H BEEXRGEIK
AR AR E (R PRENE EBEESHARE
143,936,0007T) & H & A R 1#2,422,234,0007T ©

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables, based on ageing
of the receivables and estimated loss rate, current market
conditions and forward-looking information. According to
the experience of the Group, the loss patterns for different
customers are not significantly different and therefore,
the receivables are not segmented for the purpose for
measurement of loss allowance.

5 T P AR R R AR T 1 BR 1 e i R s 4R 3R~ AT T I
Jre il B 1 R AR S TR A2 5 I WUIR AR = A TR (= B s
SELNE RN ¢ ZESEc L KRS P E QUSRI NEE-I=
Y s 48 A6 R Sl i B R B 0 e IR U R ACRR IR I R 3 SR
UGt & s E 6 o

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables included the following:
AT LARY 6 52 2 I W B k< T A5 6 s 48 138 £ 1 9%
AHEF AN RIE !

. obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimate of expected credit
losses and making related allowances;

. TR B R AG A BRAE R B 1 R Rl R TR S
B R4 & e BT 1R A B 458 1 < TR 8 P R B 122
Rt B R AT

. evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standard;

. M2EZEMGFEANRE s EREGRE
EREBEEHENBCR

. obtaining an understanding on the key data
and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including
the historical default data and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss rate;

. R P £ B B B R R TH M B e HE A
RUA R > 0045 28 13 TH &% 8O 8 B (G Rt e
BRY KHRE ;
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Key audit matters (continued)
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2 By WE RO 3 4 Y 0045 5 o 18 43

Refer to Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(1).

B 2B G B IR 7 28(a) R & 5 R I AE1(1) °

The Key Audit Matter
I3l 92 A it o JH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRAM B3 5 00 o B % R

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because trade receivables
and loss allowance are material to the Group and because
the recognition of expected credit losses is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.

FA 15 22 7 M WAL R R ) T S0 15 50 s 8 4 £ o 1) s oD
WA I [ K2 A 5 I W AR AR S 4B 1 R
B R HAE RS ENEE FENEARETEE B
B B K Y S B K o

. assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information;

RS HE A LUS A RS REER (R
Tt 20 1 T SR ) B A B R £ R 1 s R R
T2 A 4 E A A8 I AR T e i AEE 1 R A D) AR )
ARl E B A B S R B A R B

. assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing category by
comparing individual items with underlying sales
invoices; and

. 115 2 7 JEE WAL iR 7k B the ) 2 7.0 I BEL A R 6 B R
RELE MRS MBI RIS NIHE B2 S 7
R E A RE A K

. re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2020 based on the Group’s
credit loss allowance policies.

. RESEENFEEBEEREBEHEBCR EHsER

—ECTEA A=+ —HHEERH-
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

o 1 SUE 5 b 2 B L B i e 5 DA
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

for 1 YA 5 b 2 2 B N A BB e
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (consinued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

for 1 YA 5 b 2 2 B N A BB e
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

> BYN
SO THAIE AR
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BME-FE_FHEf _H="+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU RIEZR)
2020 2019
R TRAE ZE—JLE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BraE AR ANRETFT
Revenue B 3 11,886,862 11,280,848
Cost of sales B & AR (10,257,443) (9,791,036)
Gross profit A 1,629,419 1,489,812
Other income HA Y 2 4 146,409 105,959
Distribution costs 3 B8 AR (359,999) (293,075)
Administrative expenses ITB X (396,106) (383,138)
Impairment loss on trade receivables 2 57 JBE U R YE Je LAt J&E Ui 17 &
and other receivables FE B RS 1R 28(a) (53,058) (47,175)
Profit from operations £8 A 966,665 872,383
Finance costs % AR 5(a) (101,592) (151,480)
Share of profit of an associate G340k — RV B 2 N ) 36 ) 15 8,339 2,567
Profit before taxation o 552 i i ) 5 873,412 723,470
Income tax Fris# 6 (111,953) (120,864)
Profit for the year A B 365 A 761,459 602,606
Attributable to: IVE NG W
Equity shareholders of the Company 7 2\ 14 25 g 51 765,385 606,109
Non-controlling interests JEFE AL HE 2 (3,926) (3,503)
Profit for the year A V5 i 761,459 602,606
Earnings per share (Yl 10
Basic (RMB yuan) HA(NER®IT) 1.83 1.45
Diluted (RMB yuan) s (AR o) 1.83 1.45

The notes on pages 178 to 323 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note 27(b).

F178H B33 H 2 it AZE M B ;RO —
3 o AR T RE 2 B B A5 4 i A > JE A AR R
FEIE AT EE27(b) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o o TH A B L Ath 2 i W i 6

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BEZF_ZFFEf _H="+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(N BIEST)
2020 2019
TR B —E—hEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&t AR T N RIET T
Profit for the year A JE i A 761,459 602,606
Other comprehensive income for  HBn[FEHE BT P FHEIE 2
the year may be reclassified AF P Ath 2 1 M 2
subsequently to profit or loss uprk ) :
(after tax): 9
Exchange differences on translation 5 A7 [8] A FE DISNETS =~
of financial statements of sk < M 2=
operations outside the
Mainland China 3,094 (742)
Cash flow hedge: net movement Bl o = $
in the hedging reserve S 1 S R AR (4,828) (2)
Other comprehensive income AT 5 LAt 2 1
for the year (1,734) (744)
Total comprehensive income AT 55 2 T WAL 2 A
for the year 759,725 601,862
Attributable to: BUR N A -
Equity shareholders of the Company A8 2\ &) 1 7 i B 763,651 605,365
Non-controlling interests e ML HE 2 (3,926) (3,503)
Total comprehensive income AT 55 2 T MO 2 A A
for the year 759,725 601,862

The notes on pages 178 to 323 form part of these financial

statements.

FI178E323H Z I sk ik FM B HR A —#f7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wi o WS DL

At 31 December 2020
R ZEZFFEAZH=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(N R 5T)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
— —e —= ﬂi —F —ijL:E
+=ZH=+—H +¥ﬂ =+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
brat AR BFx ANRET T
Non-current assets JE B E

Investment property REYE 11 73,008 71,694
Property, plant and equipment LUE B e 11 2,271,247 2,188,673
2,344,255 2,260,367
Right-of-use assets e R & 12 336,187 358,620
Intangible assets & E 13 3,779 -
Interest in an associate N =/ NEIPd 15 6,319 5,791
Deferred tax assets ARG TH & 26(b) 53,171 43,641
2,743,711 2,668,419

Current assets i B & e
Inventories and other contract costs 7 & K H A & 4 A 16 1,252,507 1,134,375
Trade and other receivables 2 T e LA R UL R I 17 3,759,646 3,103,556
Pledged deposits SRR 18 170,558 327,037
Cash and cash equivalents B B B F EY 19 509,639 528,003
5,692,350 5,092,971

Current liabilities bk R=R S
Trade and other payables 23 G e FoAth AT R IH 20 3,321,622 2,738,786
Contract liabilities BRI EE 21 197,670 164,027
Loans and borrowings B REE 22 811,424 1,284,005
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 2,368 6,907
Current taxation B A #3 TH 26(a) 54,013 68,648
4,387,097 4,262,373
Net current assets b IR RE 1,305,253 830,598
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i e M BSIR DL R

At 31 December 2020

REE—FEf =+ —H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RIEZR)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
— —e — = ﬂi :g_‘hﬁz
+ZH=+—H +ZH=+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
brat ANRWFx ANRET T
Total assets less current liabilities %5 & & Jik Uit B £1 {8 4,048,964 3,499,017
Non-current liabilities JEIR B £ i
Loans and borrowings BRREE 22 318,868 414,407
Lease liabilities HE & H 23 6,523 13,921
Deferred income LL A 24 14,663 20,200
Deferred tax liabilities AE R TE £ 15 26(b) 10,977 11,609
351,031 460,137
Net assets B FA 3,697,933 3,038,880
Capital and reserves s A e i 1
Share capital & A 27 3,732 3,731
Reserves faft 1A 3,693,460 3,034,604
Total equity attributable to Ao v RE 2 B R
equity shareholders of I AV 2 4 R
the Company 3,697,192 3,038,335
Non-controlling interests JE43E R RE s 741 545
Total equity HERS 48R 3,697,933 3,038,880

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
March 2021.

Liu Libin
AT
Chairman

E4

The notes on pages 178 to 323 form part of these financial

statements.

NCE DA TP NHEEE GO R
FET| 3% o

Liao Yuqing
RN
Executive Director

HITEHE
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Consolidated Statement of Chglnges in Equity
fra REAR BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BME-FE_FHEf _H="+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(N BIEST)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AR RN
Non-
Share Share Capital Other Statutory Exchange Hedge Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve Teserve Teserves Teserve Teserve earnings Total interests equity
ok RGER ARG JURGE  WeBi ERBE WNRE  RERA &t R ]
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMBI00 RMB00 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RVB 000 RVB 000 RMB000 RMB000
it NRRFE ARRFT  AREFT  ARBFT  ARRFT  AREFT  ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARKFT
Note 27(c) - Note 27(d)fi) ~ Note 27(d)fii) ~ Note 27(d)fii) ~ Note 27(d)fiv) -~ Note 27(d)fv)  Note 27(d)(vi)
L2 2 I O 2 4
Balance at 1 January 2019 RNl R-H24h 371 179,368 6,761 209822 286,942 (461) S8 250010 05) 2503838
Changes in equity for 2019: ZE- DR
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - 606,109 606,109 (3,503) 602,606
Other comprehensive income Hlb2 ks - - - - - (14) bl - (14) - (14)
Total comprehensive income PR - - - - - (1) bl 606,109 605,365 (3.303) 601,862
Recognition of Employees’ B EA R
Share Option Scheme 25(b) - - 2305 - - - - - 2305 - 2305
Appropriation to reserves aRERE - - - - 455% - - (45,536) - - -
Capita injection of non-controlling WEATHER LR
nterest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 4300 4300
Dividend approved in respect of BREEEEHENRE
the previous year 27b) - - - - - - - (73.465) (73.465) - (73.465)
Balance at 31 December 2019 and REE-0E A= T-HR
1 January 2020 e e L P 3731 179,368 9,086 W80 41 (1209 0 230485 3083 S5 30880
Changes in equity for 2020: CETREGEEE.
Proft for the year EREA - - - - - - - 765,385 765,385 (3926) 761459
Other comprehensive income A 2El - - - - - 3,094 (4828) - (1734) - (1,734)
Total comprehensive income Rl - - - - - 3,094 (4828) 765,385 163651 (3926) 759,725
Shares issued due to exercise of RiERREHEEENRE
Share Option Scheme e 1 411 (102) - - - - - 316 - 316
Recognition of Employees’ TR EE MR s dl
Share Option Scheme 241) - - 1,794 - - - - - 1,794 - 1,794
Appropriation to reserves RERE - - - - 29962 - = (29.962) - = =
Capital injection of non-controlling HEAREAREREE
interest in subsidiaries in the form of (B AR
intangible assets - - - - - - - - - 4122 412
Dividend approved in respect of BREEEEHENRE
the previous year 27) - - - - - - - (106,904) (106,904) S (106.904)
Balance at 31 December 2020 e 4
FOAE TR R 3132 179,985 10,778 209822 362440 1,891 (4.830) 2933374 3,697,192 4 3697933
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

o Bl i R R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BEFE_FHFEf _H="+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(U B 57R)
2020 2019
BB “E-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&t ARET L AR T T
Operating activities KEIGH)
Cash generated from operations EGI1SHR S 19(b) 1,109,296 1,057,592
Income tax paid B TS 26(a) (135,050) (101,826)
Land Appreciation Tax paid BT T E R 26(a) (848) (2,192)
Net cash generated from k= ST UK E B TR R
operating activities T _9Z§,§?§ ________ 953,574
Investing activities &N
Interest received EUFHE 53,899 42,734
Proceeds received upon maturity of % E LI 17 FE %
pledged deposits B 15 RIE 1,878,340 1,041,802
Payment for pledged deposits (SRR COE( (1,721,861) (1,022,077)
Payment for purchase of property, W B2 B R ik i
plant and equipment ZAF K (438,918) (560,535)
Payment for deposit of commodity i i E G #9155 2 3K
futures contracts (160,000) -
Proceeds received from deposit of H iR & 2 1e S I
commodity futures contracts Fr A5 7 175,354 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y~ Wi E B %
plant and equipment P8 3KIH 3,213 4,466
Net cash used in P 5 B i B 1A
investing activities (209,973) (493,610)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mallEiiER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_E_FFEf H=F—HILFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(N R 57R)
2020 2019
— ? = ﬂ3 -% #hﬂi
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
&t AR T L AR T T
Financing activities il % By
Capital element of lease rentals paid E & Z ALH 5 19(c) (4,041) (3,430)
Interest element of lease rentals paid E - Fl 4 2 Fl B & 5 19(c) (654) (716)
Interest paid [EENR DS 19(c) (101,351) (161,264)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings & X 5 {6 & 15 7K IH 19(c) 1,958,924 2,437,078
Repayment of loans and borrowings 8% &3 ;& & 19(c) (2,527,740) (2,583,697)
Proceeds from shares issued under — HEASMEGH&EIE T E 41T R
share option scheme Z IS 70 316 -
Capital injecting from the B A E IR s 2 T
non-controlling interests of
subsidiary - 4,300
Dividends paid to equity CUS AR A AR 4 R PR 2 A S
shareholders of the Company 27(b) (106,904) (73,465)
Net cash used in Fil 4 9% 580 Pt P B < 1 A
financing activities (_7_81,i1§(1)_ | _(3:8_1_, 1_9_42 ~
Net (decrease)/increase in BERBEEMEY Q)
cash and cash equivalents b1y PEER] (18,025) 78,770
Cash and cash equivalents at BR—H—HBBE R
1 January BleEMEY 19(a) 528,003 448,787
Effect of foreign exchange [R50 2 A
rate changes (339) 446
Cash and cash equivalents at RT+_H=1+—Hm®
31 December BlE R BB EY 19(a) 509,639 528,003

The notes on pages 178 to 323 form part of these financial

statements.

F178H E323H Z MY 5k % 5% F M Bl R A — &8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 1551 AR R HEST)

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“TASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The TASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, which is the functional currency of
the major subsidiaries carrying out the principal
activities of the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the derivative financial instruments
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in Note 1(f).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

1 FEGHBOR @
(b) WA 2 e L

BE-F-FEL A=+ —H
b B 00 23 B 9 P A
B FCHE I 25 ) (06 A S ) B
o A S TG 2 2 2 L
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E HE A S B s e
R < W B5 R IR - ZHME I &
BRI P AN Al 2 2~ B
A RHT B Al R AR R o % SF
7 & A0AH B MR i 7 AR R 2 1 A4S B
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BE A #5 T ELA R 3R 1 > BTG 452
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 2.
Changes in accounting policies
The Group has applied the following amendments

to IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial

statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a
Business
o Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related

Rent Concessions

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior years have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

1

FEFHHEOR @

(b)

()

S5 e 2 A L ()

it R B R & R TR et o &5t
st 2 ERT & B FT (G5 HAR (f
& 5T 8 5 B az V1) S8 5T 3 R e
RACHAM (i1 5T 52 28 B Al e R
HARD) HEERE

T I R R R B s R O A Ik
FIF F B M B R A R B
B e A 5 ANRE E (A 3R 2 F 2K
TR ER B aE2

B EHBORE B

AR B AR G A R A It 5
B5 ¥ A% 79 B A DA B R o
% B & A O (B IR S 5 i o v
ZIERT

. I [ i 25 i o 2 R B8 3 5% 1B
RIREBZEFHE

. B 5% B S o A PR HI S5 1658
BET R ECovid-195 BIHIFH
BHEE

ABE SR (7] BOSR A BT 3 A 5 I 4 A
BY 2 HCE AT BUS E R AE R M R
AL E R B - AL AR R
R AT E Al & &t R 1 R AR Sy
T e | el R o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5

Annual Report 2020 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

1 FEGHBOR @
@ R A R Ik P RS
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A 105 i 4% B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

ey

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 1(q) or
(r) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of interest in an associate (see
Note 1(e)).

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 1(1)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (Note 1(1(ii))). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate (after applying the expected credit

loss (ECL) model to such other long-term interests

where applicable (see Note 1(1)(1)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and

this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in associate are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(1)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

(2

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting
or hedges of net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or
loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged
(see Note 1(g)).

Hedging

The Group designates the derivative as hedging
instrument to hedge the variability in cash
flows associated with highly probable forecast
transactions arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates, variable rate borrowings or

commodity price risk (cash flow hedges).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedging instrument in a cash flow
hedge, the effective portion of any gain or loss on
the derivative financial instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
such as inventory, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to be included in the initial

cost of the non-financial asset.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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ey

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(€3]

(h)

Hedging (continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged cash
flows affect profit or loss (such as when a forecast

sale occurs or interest expense is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then
hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
When hedge accounting is discontinued, but the
hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until
the transaction occurs and it is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 1(k)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

()

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are accounted for using the
cost model and stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(l)). The cost
of investment property, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful lives as follows.
- Land use rights 50 years
- Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
35 years after the date of completion.

Other property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1(1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (Note 1(x)).

Construction in progress is transferred to respective
items under property, plant and equipment when
it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is

provided against construction in progress.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

) Other property, plant and equipment and right-

of-use assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item

and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, less their estimated residual value,

if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
35 years after the date of completion.

- Machinery

- Motor vehicles

- Office equipment and
others

- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the

period of the lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 1(I)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Patents 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease

component for all leases.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

i)

As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for
the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
Notes 1(i) and 1(1)(ii), expect for the

following types of right-of-use asset:

- Right-of-use assets related to
interests in leasehold land where
the interest in the land is held as
inventory are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value in

accordance with note 1(m).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

@) As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification™) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In
such cases, the group took advantage of
the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of IFRS 16 and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease

modification.

1

FEFHHEOR @

MEHE 3

(k)

(i)

TEZ RN ()

B R B R R g 5] R
R E AN R I A E) ; 5O
5 [ 0 BR(E IfE OR T TH B 1B
TRy AL ; B
H A BT T 04 A SR B2 A
o PR M A E AT (S E
BCAR b RS R T A AR SR E
R R EHr et BAHE A -
EAHE A AT N EH
At B IR 6 P R Y R
T L A A R i o
R E ) B T (R E
% QI A48 o

CEECE S LT
A A R e 0 R e A
ERERESLC(THEE
%) 0 AR A B E
ABRI - RI 7R 23 FH & & F
HATEW I E - EIL BN
FHE A ERKELEFTNH
BT SO0 R S AR 6 A8
& 5T 09 i B SR 218 AR 3]
HEH ot & o E— 1 F s 2
[R] 7 7 Bt 58 2 1% T B E
AREAESR Y A E
B % B 5 R 2 HEHI BB 1 657
FH 5B A6BEL T & IR 1 ©
TEZE B I A E ] R
WA 15 4 5 BE R S5 1697 58
A6AB TR EREE
o MERRACE B E) M
A JEFH BBk o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5

Annual Report 2020 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

i)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note 1(v)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in Note 1(k)(i), then
the Group classifies the sub-lease as an

operating lease.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 1551 AR R HEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Credit losses and impairment of assets

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs on the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, which are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of

principal and interest); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including derivative financial assets,

is not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade
and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation

thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the

following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the

reporting date.

For all other financial instruments,
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 180 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

In particular, the following information is

taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition:

failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal

credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation

to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments
are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 1(v)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 1551 AR R HEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in

the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information

are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period to identify indications that the

following assets may be impaired or an

impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

— investment property;

- property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- interest in an associate; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

a Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with TAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (Notes 1(1)(i) and (ii)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

Inventories and other contract costs

@) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be

consumed in the production process or in

the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value as follows:

Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Completed property held for resale

The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location

and condition.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

Inventories (continued)

- Completed property held for resale
(continued)

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group which
comprise of multiple units which are
sold individually, the cost of each
unit is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for
that development project to each unit
on a per square foot basis, unless
another basis is more representative
of the cost of the specific unit.
Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 1(m)(i))
or property, plant and equipment (see Note
1(1)) or intangible assets (see Note 1(j)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period
and the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods
or services in the future; and are expected
to be recovered. Costs that relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments to
sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs (continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet

been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in Note 1(v).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group

recognises revenue (see Note 1(v)) before being

unconditionally entitled to the consideration under

the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract

assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)

in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(1)

(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right

to the consideration has become unconditional (see
Note 1(0)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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ey

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

(continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 1(v)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note

1(0)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 1(v)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if
only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is

presented as a contract asset (see Note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 1(1)(i)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 1(1)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 1(x)).
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Employee benefits

i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained

profits).
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 1551 AR R HEST)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

(u)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of

financing is 12 months or less.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sale of aluminum products

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all
the goods and services promised under the
contract on a relative stand-alone selling

price basis.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under
contract liabilities (see Note 1(n)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of properties (continued)

When residential properties are marketed
by the Group while the property is still
under construction, the Group may offer
a discount compared to the listed sales
price, provided the customer agrees to
pay the balance of the consideration early.
In such cases, if the advance payments
are regarded as providing a significant
financing benefit to the Group, interest
expense arising from the adjustment of
time value of money will be accrued by
the Group during the period between the
payment date and the completion date of
legal assignment. This accrual increases
the balance of the contract liability during
the period of construction, and therefore
increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer. The interest
is expensed as accrued unless it is eligible
to be capitalised under IAS 23, Borrowing
costs, in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 1(x).

Services income
Revenue from services rendered is

recognised in profit or loss at the time of

provision of the service is completed.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see Note 1(1)(1)).

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

ey

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(w)

Revenue and other income (continued)
(vi)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other income
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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ey

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(82)

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

()

(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the

Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:

(continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s

parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.
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Accounting judgements and estimates

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 25 and 28 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation

of fair value of share options granted and financial

instruments. Other significant source of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs
are based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The
Group keeps assessing the expected credit loss of
trade receivables during their expected lives.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 Wa 2t B o7 ¥ bt o
(a) Revenue (a) 1]
The principal activities of the Group are AEE FHEER S REE
manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles and AU R YIE e o AR AR E T
property development. Further details regarding the TS 2 o — 20 5E 05 B 8B R B 5T
group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 3(b)°
3(b).
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue i WaEia
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts o 32 B e IR % 4R B
with customers by major products or service ZEP AR M
lines is as follows:
2020 2019
o CF U
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TL NEHTT
Revenue from contracts with [0 5 B 255 e o e Y
customers within the scope of P1sEREANZ
IFRS 15 P A AR
Disaggregated of product lines or % /2 it 7 B IR 745 4%
service line & 53 2 B4
— Sales of aluminium profiles — 3 5 SR AL b1 11,581,973 10,944,177
— Sales of aluminium panels, — B SR AR
aluminium alloy, moulds e BHAER
and spare parts EHR A 279,010 235,633
— Sales of completed properties —SH 6 OB TYZE 14,984 81,599
— Revenue from processing — I TR & 4 W &
service contracts 10,895 19,439
11,886,862 11,280,848

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition and by geographic markets
is disclosed in Notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)
respectively.

The Group’s customer base is diversified
and does not include any individual
customer (2019: Nil) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

e W 3 e AR IR R R 4% 1 IR
MGE P2 EE&H W
BH 41 53 B B 5E 3 (b) (i) K2
3(b)(iii) I F& °

AEERAEEZ T A
DN R R e N YR
2 70 28 10% 2 A A B & 2
CE—F )
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
under the Group’s existing contracts
expected to recognised as revenue within

one year.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines.

In a manner consistent with the way in which the

information is reported internally to the Group’s

most senior executive management for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment,

the Group has presented the following reportable

segments.

Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium

profiles, mainly for industrial usage.

Construction aluminium profiles: this
segment manufactures and sells aluminium
profiles with surface finishing, including
anodic oxidation aluminium profiles,
electrophoresis coating aluminium profiles,
powder coating aluminium profiles
and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely
used in architecture decoration.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

3

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

All other segments: include the revenue
generated from processing service contracts
related to aluminium products, sales of
office premises and residential properties
and sale of aluminium panels, aluminium

alloy, moulds and spare parts.
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales of aluminium
profiles, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets, is

not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s

senior executive management regularly.

3
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

i)

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

3 WA RS

()  EkERE )

Segment results, assets and liabilities i) FEELT AER AN ()
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s MBE_Z _EFER_F
reportable segments as provided to the —NEFE+ A=+ —HIk
Group’s most senior executive management FEZEIR 7B R 5 B4
for the purposes of resource allocation and REHAL T S > AR E RS
assessment of segment performance for the PAITEHANBRM AR
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is A [ AT e 4y B E R
set out below: L2050
Industrial aluminium Construction aluminium
profiles profiles All other segments Total
TREYH A Firf S i At
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CEOEY CENE CEORE CE-NE CBORE CE-NE CE0EE CEE
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARMTE  ARETE  ARWTE  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETT  ARNTZ  ARKTE
Reportable segment DEi e
revenue
Revenue from external REMFERZ W
customers (point intime) ~ (FFFEfE) 230060 2210691 9261704 8733486 304,889 36671 11886862 11280.848
Reportable segment profit /% /7 i Al
Gross profit EAl 228,534 213,787 1,246,404 1,105,520 154,481 170,503 1,629,419 1,489,812
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

3

Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 3 Wa 2t e o7 i s )

(b)

Segment reporting (continued) (b)

(ii)

(iii)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
profit

Sy ks (A0
(i) ATHEE 57 ik A
2020 2019
SEIRAg —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T AR T T

Reportable segment profit KEAAREBINTESZ
derived from the Group’s AT R 5 53 0 vak A
external customers

Other income H At 75

Distribution costs 53 84 AR

Administrative expenses TR 2

22 5 e F A e WK TE
receivables and other receivables  JR/H K518

Finance costs 5 AR

Share of profit of an associate I3 A — [ 2 A = i

Impairment losses on trade

Consolidated profit before taxation FRFR AT &7 & i A

Geographic information

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results as well as analysis of the Group’s
carrying amount of non-current assets by
geographical market has not been presented
as over 99% (2019: 97%) of the revenue are
generated from the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) market.

1,629,419 1,489,812
146,409 105,959
(359,999) (293,075)
(396,106) (383,138)
(53,058) (47,175)
(101,592) (151,480)
8,339 2,567
873,412 723,470

(i) W&

A i 2 51 A 6 E T T
58 o 2 W as b ERE AT
DB A & 18 JE i B EE TR
B Z 53 #7 » J R 2 48199 %
(ZB—NEFE 1 97%) 2 W
IR R EE RS
(TR ) T35
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

Other income 4 At e 2
2020 2019
e 12 —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL ANRET T
Interest income FLEWA 53,899 42,734
Government grants (7) B i B)
— Unconditional subsidies — JEEAGR AT 7 30,341 25,788
— Conditional subsidies (Note 24) —F R R
(Hat24) 26,274 25,354
Rental income LEEAON 13,594 13,429
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SMEE (518D W ok A (3,769) 2,150
Cross currency interest rate swap: RN E AR 2
cash flow hedges, reclassified from equity W< & H i
(Note 9(b)) B %A B ¥ o0 4
(Htatowm)) (737) (696)
Changes in fair value of commodity GERPE IS vEI US|
future contracts recognised as hedge milE &Nz
ineffectiveness (Note 28(e)) NEEZE)
(Wzt28¢e)) 26,067 -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWIZE -~ W55 T et
plant and equipment, and DUIBAEFAEEEN
right-of-use assets Wz, (B548) 740 (2,800)

146,409 105,959
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(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

4 Other income (continued) 4 HoAth W25 )
(1) Government grants in the form of cash subsidies @) B [ BT 5 6% B JE 15 B < e A
were received from various PRC government T =AY B i o
authorities.
Unconditional subsidies - S AR Al R

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMB30,341,000 (2019:
RMB25,788,000) were unconditional.
The funds were to subsidise the operating
expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group during the current year.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB26,274,000 (2019: RMB25,354,000)
(Note 24).

SR A NR¥30,341,000
TT(ZFE—LFE AR
25,788,0007C) 2 & T BU
TR R A AR o R
& A E N AR G AR Y
B A\ A 2z 8 B SR A
il 0

— ARG

BR N BN B A B IR I
T Al Bl o 36 4T 46 B A AR GE
WA REE T FF
T+TZH=1T—HILEFEZ
GEHEERAMNRZ A KT
B /RS NRTE
26,274,000 (=& — JL4F @
A B #25.354,0007T) (Ff&:
24) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

5 BRBLi it Al

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ B A AT A T 40 8R 7 (B A) MUR & IH B
(crediting): 5
(a) Finance costs: (a) WA
2020 2019
e 22 —ZE—hE
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T AR T

(Note 19(c))

(Note 19(c))

Interest on lease liabilities

(Note 19(c))

Total interest expense on

financial liabilities not at

Interest expenses on bank loans AT E R A BB

Interest expenses on discounted bills 2B ZE#5 > A1 5 B 3¢

(Htat19¢c)) 92,177 131,743

Htat19(c)) 7,629 18,939
HEaEFE

(HraE19¢c)) 654 716

A IEFg 2~ AR A 2
Z ZREEAE

fair value through profit or loss Fil 52 48 A 100,460 151,398
Cross currency interest rate swap: RN AR AR 2%
cash flow hedges, reclassified B i =
from equity (Note 9(b)) EEEZNER T |
(Ht#E9cp)) 1,132 82

101,592 151,480
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(b) Staff costs:

5  FBRB Al )
(b)y BIRA:

2020
TR TR —ENE
RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
Contributions to defined A E AH AL ZGR K
contribution retirement plans T8 F=F &)t 2 57,423
Equity-settled share-based DR RE 45 5 DU 3
payment expenses By FEWE AT AT 7R BH =2
(Note 25(b)) (Bt3E25(b)) 1,794 2,325
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMAEF 900,312 765,532
959,529 837,633

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (“Schemes”) organised by the
local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group and its employees in Hong Kong are
required to make monthly mandatory contributions
to the MPF scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The monthly
mandatory contributions from employees and
employers are subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 30,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HKD30,000).

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution plans are expensed as incurred and
not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the plans prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.

AR 5 H B AH B 5 2 B R TR A
FH B B B8 2 A 2 B L T BT B
IR AEL A% ) A R AR KR R AR A S
(TaH&E ) - UL B E A A
ARGEMEER N —EH D
EE [e st 21 £t 5K = 375 BOR H B
BEREHEE S EEMRIKE
BEHHERK

o5 il M A FE < B HR ) (B sk
Bl 5548558 1 7E 1] 5 il 1 2 Al <
(MFe@ 8 ) MFEH MR o A&
KEFEE B S H A m s A
< 5k HE R FLE 0 B AE B
WA 495 9% 1) 560 F <2 51 31 1 H 98
MR- BE_ZE ZE+H
=t+—HIEFEE EEREEMN
& H 98 il M AL 3R LS H B IR A
30,0007 (T#T)) (ZFE—N
4 1 30,0009 7T) 2 LR ©

A 65 ) 17 % S5 8RR A K st 1 HY
A SRR E AR I S8 0 T e 2 IR E
HRAS 2 BOHL AT 2R H at T 4R
Wi B 14 R AN & A A A T8 S

E
A ©
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(b)

()

Staff costs: (continued)

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

To relieve the difficulties encountered by
enterprises due to COVID-19 pandemic, pursuant
to related policies consented by the State Council
of the PRC, major subsidiaries of the Company
in PRC were entitled to reduce its contribution to
the pension insurance, unemployment insurance,
and work injury insurance by 50% amounting to

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

5  ERBIATEA @)
b) HTHRA: (&)

B b A A RR S - A B2 B0 3l A Aok 52 A<
1R B 2R IR e H At 2R IR 1R 48 A & 48
HAtEARE(E-

P 85 8% AP 3 IR e Bl S8 0% 1% B
T ) [T S > R4 I [ 75 B 0 11
*EE%BI” BEoZE_ZEHF A

ZEFENH RAFTRFE
E@f%ﬁfﬁ%“iﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
S0%E E LR~ K FE LR X T A5 7
= ﬂzﬁﬁékamm 156,0007T

RMB14,156,000 (2019: Nil) from February 2020 to (CE—NF
April 2020.
Other items: () HAbwEH :
2020 2019
BRI —ZE—hE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T ANRETFT
Depreciation charge T EE B 5
— Investment properties (Note 11) — B (WFFL) 2,093 945
— Other property, plant and —H AV B E
equipment (Note 11) Bt (Batnn) 393,800 323,018
— Right-of-use assets — R
(Note 12) HtzF12) 12,409 12,334
Amortisation cost of intangible HET & 7 2 B AR
assets (Note 13) (faF13) 343 =
Provision/(reversal) of NS IEBEEBEEZ
impairment losses on B, (HE)
— trade receivables —%X 5 MWK IE
(Note 28(a)) (Wt7t28(a)) 52,870 48,296
— other receivables — At g R T 188 (1,121)
Auditors’ remuneration 12 BT B <
— audit services — IR 1,355 1,355
— other services —H A AR 5 760 760
Cost of inventories (1)/(Note 16) F & ARG, Wi aEL6) 10,257,443 9,791,036
Research and development costs (i)  fff %% 5% AR (i) 526,769 490,223
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ey

5

Profit before taxation (continued)

(0

Other items: (continued)

()

(i1)

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2020 included RMB959,500,000
(2019: RMB800,668,000) relating to
depreciation and staff costs, which amount
is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or
in Note 5(b) for each of these types of
expenses, and net gain of RMB96,952,000
(2019: Nil) reclassified from other
comprehensive income on commodity
futures contracts which were designated as

cash flow hedging instruments.

Research and development costs for the
year ended 31 December 2020 included
RMB139,380,000 (2019: RMB133,885,000)
relating to depreciation and staff costs of
employees, which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 5(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

(EF R IRED)

(0

HAbwH : &)

i) HE_Z_FTH£+_H
=+ EIJLEE 178
AL BT B R B TR

(i1)

Az AR %959,500,000
TT(ZE—NLE: AR
800,668,0007T) * 7% <5 BH IR
ELEF A LSBT EES (b) 53 B
TR SR A &
HERMERIESH (JaE
AEeRmEH TR M
We AR S oy FE B W 25 TR R
AN E%96,952,0007TC (%
—JLE ) o

BHE_Z_ZTHE+_H
=+ — H 1k F 2 AR
AGUEHITERER Z
BTHRAABRZ AR
139,380,0007C (=& —JL
£ AR 133,885,0007T)
Zae e et A L sesiky
n£5(b) 7 BH 4% 88 5 AT B X2
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%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 REF G HR RN Z S5
of profit or loss
(a)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) JREAHGERNZBES:
or loss represents:
2020 2019
e 12 —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET L ANRET T
Current tax B A2 0
Provision for PRC corporate R 1R SRR IS A
income tax (“CIT”) (TEEFTS R 145 113,931 111,018
Provision for PRC Land F B - (E R
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) (T G E L) 43 1,332 4,842
115,263 115,860
Deferred tax BRI
Reversal and origination of Hifh FSF 72 8 435 [ e 7 42
temporary differences (Note 26(b))  ([f7#26(b)) (3,310) 5,004
111,953 120,864
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of (i) RIEH SR E R B &L
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin HE (HERECEHE)) B
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not R R A58 > A S (B T ZE Al
subject to any income tax in the Cayman MEHEREBELHE
Islands and the BVI. ZAEMPTIGHL o
(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax (i1) R VSIKCY TR X DR S

is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 December 2020, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered

Profits Tax rate regime.

ZEZEFE+__HA=4+—
H 1k & 2 ff 5 SR F i
FILL16.5% (=& —JL4E .
16.5%) M FE st & > HEALE
[ — [ & 2 R 15 R AR A
BB E W E A AR
Hho
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6

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(i1)

(iii)

(continued)

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the
same basis in 2019.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for 2020 is taken into account a
reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR
Government of 100% of the tax payable
for the year of assessment 2019/20 subject
to a maximum reduction of HK$20,000 for
each business (2019: a maximum reduction
of HK$20,000 was granted for the year
of assessment 2018/19 and was taken into
account in calculating the provision for
2019).

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to PRC
corporate income tax at a rate of 25% for
2020 (2019: 25%) except for Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong
Xingfa”), Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu)
Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Xingfa”), Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Henan”) and Guangdong Xingfa
Ltd. (“Xingfa
Jiangxi”) which were certified as “High and
New Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE”)
and entitled to the preferential income tax
rate of 15% for 2020 (2019: 15%).

Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co.,

6

Ji &

(a)

AHWERAZ B @

REFGIRIE RN B L ()

(i1)

(iii)

(#)

MUINEARMS  &28
B T I SRR i A A8.25%
B R R R T B8R N JERR AR
T ] LL16.5% 1) SRR

B 4 7 2 B 1
8 08 7 i B = — LA
7 40 e 5 o

TE B EF/ GRS R
BT 68 B R B R BIAT X
BRI - LEED
T T LR E A AR
A AT 100% 08 (4578
SE TS B = 1 JBURE £520,0007
) (B —RE ZFE—\
FEE B LEE B ET
F A5 & v 0 I A 20,0007
gL HREHE —Z— LEH
IR B gt B e 0 JRURR) ©

R 4% A B A 45 R R AN R R
B > ARGz BT A A
R IE B EHEE% (Z
TB—TUE 1 25%) 2R
A R A 2E PSR M JRE R
FLEERE AR AA (TEE
WLt ) ~ FEEERE (R A
FRAF (TRCEBELEE ) ~ &
B EE5E 2 (R ) A BR A A
(B 2% Jn) 5 ) i JEE o AL 4%
QL) ARAR (TH
VLV B T Bl
¥ (I Bin ) 2 &
MR - E _FEZH15%

ZE-NE D 15%) 2B
H G MR o
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to the new tax law in the PRC,
from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which
have an establishment or place of business
in the PRC but whose relevant income
is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the
PRC, will be subject to withholding tax
at the rate of 10% (unless reduced by tax
treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources
within the PRC. Pursuant to the Sino-
Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement and
the related regulations, a qualified Hong
Kong tax resident will be liable to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends
from a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong
tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of
the PRC enterprise. As Guangdong Xingfa
is held by a Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiary, a rate of 5% is applicable to the
calculation of this withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB10,977,000 (2019:
RMB11,609,000) (Note 26(b)(i)) have been
provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from
Guangdong Xingfa in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated since 1
January 2008.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

6 A&

(a) %

(iv)

AHWERAZ B @

AR RN B @ (8

IR B RE HoEE
JNEE—H—HE FEHEE
N R B LR~ 35 P 8038
St TE A B SR N B AL MR
BT EIE 2 A B A B
HAE BB T e 5
i EEBRHEZIERR
(e BTV E 2T ON
(PR R R EAN 2 KR E)
10% 1 % (BR IE 42 77 UL 19
TE TR L) SAN TEAR B o R BR
iR R 3 IV R =5
AR e ) B AR B TR A
— A BREERBERS
MEnA AR A =R
1 2E25%8 DL E RS FE - Al
ZEBREERARELK
ﬁqﬂlJL%Eﬁﬂx,_\#&{%m
TS % 8 40 T2 B o B R
J5 B 2 — R B R
RS Z bt A EI R A i
FrEILTHIR R 2 B
#55% o

i - :gﬁﬁ“:

=ft—H MERAEE
AJ EE%%E’JEE#%E%Q/\
B — H — H I prE £

iR & IR B A TE AR B A
o Bt ARE10,977,000
TT(ZE—-NLE: AR
11,609,0007C) = & iEFi 18
EEE W (EE26(b)
(i) e
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6

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

During the year of 2020, Guangdong
Xingfa, Xingfa Henan and Xingfa Jiangxi
obtained approval from local tax authorities
to claim super deduction on research
and development expenses incurred in
2019. As such, the income tax for 2020
was reduced by RMB18§,002,000 (2019:
RMB11,843,000). Such additional tax
deduction on research and development
expenses equals 75% (2019: 75%) of the

amount actually incurred.

LAT is levied on properties developed in the
PRC by the Group for sale, at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based
on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and relevant property development

expenditures.

6

Ji &

(a)

AHWERAZ B @

REFGIRIE RN B L ()

(v)

(vi)

ANTE CTAE R H B
891 5% 7 T Ry B A% VT VG £k
HEE MR =& — NLE
Fizmﬁﬁi%%;w
T35 Ja HHE e o R
FEZERBD AR
18,002,0007¢C (=& — JL4F :
AN %11,843,0007T) ° A
B T 4% B S > FE AN R
HEREREESEZT5%
(ZE—JLE 1 75%) ©

=

& (B A S
B A B E B 5 Y S i b
B E 7 (R B R
F30% E60% I > 1R 1%
R e s E Y
SE0H B TS FRE IR 2 AT 40
R HY (RO HE b (o FE A
EEH EERARRHEY
R -
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6
of profit or loss (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5
Annual Report 2020 F R

&S HRE RN ZIEBE @)

(b)  FEHEABREH R 2 BEHP e

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: IR Ty
2020 2019
e 12 —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N TIT
Profit before taxation bR Al fa ) 873,412 723,470
Less: LAT TR g AR 1,332 4,842
Profit before CIT and Hong Kong Prid 1SR K
Profits Tax 7 B A S A A i A 872,080 718,628
Notional tax on profit before o MH B = 5 1 2
taxation, calculated at the rates MR B 2 BRI AT
applicable to the jurisdiction Tt Fl =z 44 F M IH
concerned 214,115 184,666
Tax effect of non-deductible ENGIERE
expenses ikrd A 760 860
Tax effect of share of profit of 34— R B = N A
an associate Tta ) = #0755 2 2% (1,251) (385)
Effect of tax concessions M EE (90,369) (68,464)
Super deduction on research and b
development expenses in respect B S NET R
of prior year (Note 6(a)(v)) (HtaFe6(a)v)) (18,002) (11,843)
Effect of withholding on FEA A 2 B T8 2 A
undistributed profits retained by R 53 B B4 T A
PRC subsidiaries (Note 26) HI % (W at26) 5,368 11,188
CIT and Hong Kong Profits Tax RET1SHE K
B HBMGHR 110,621 116,022
Add: LAT e b ER 1,332 4,842
Income tax expense P A58 B 52 111,953 120,864
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7 Directors’ emoluments 7 o 5
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section R A BRI 55383 (1) IE K A |l (I
383(1) of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of THEBAEER) O E2H I EES
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits B <40

of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits  to retirement Share-based 2020
Fees in kind benefit plan Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
Hi Tl BN DU F- R S 5
e REWHE Ak dIf ChHEA INGE - JERR AR it
(Note)
W)

RMB'OOO  RMB'09  RMBWAO  RMBOY)  RMB'U0O  RMBUW  RMB
ARBTIE  ARWTx  ARNTZ  ARBTAZ  ARWTx  ARNTZ  ARKTX

Executive directors Wi

Mr. LIU Libin PR s 300 606 B 1,732 2,661 100 2761
M. LIAO Yuging BEBLE 636 264 = 1927 2801 = 2827
Mr. LAW Yung Koon BHELE 552 = 13 2,649 3014 - 3214
Mr. WANG Zhihua TRELE 416 90 12 1,555 2073 84 2,157
Ms. ZHANG Li EiSihen = 677 12 467 1,156 83 1,239
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BRERE 425 - - - 425 - 425
Non-executive directors JEfTE S

Ms. XIE Jingyun HRELL - - - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun i 1Pk 319 = = = 319 = 319
Independent non-executive directors B3 JE {7 5

Mr. CHEN Mo BB g 150 - = = 150 = 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu mMEZEEE 150 = = = 150 = 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy ISy 180 - = = 180 = 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin RHtREE 55 83 = = 138 = 138

Total fzt 3,183 1,720 60 8,330 13,293 207 13,560
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Directors’ emoluments (continued)

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

HEME

Salary,
allowance
and benefits
in kind

LA
e REWAE

RMB000 RMB'000
NRHTE AR TX

Contribution
to retirement Share-based 2019
benefit plan Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
BRTER DERE  ZF-0E
A IR ENTEL Mt BRI 3
(Note)
()

RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBUO0  RMBO00  RMBUO0
ARBTEL  ARBTE  ARBTT  ARRTE  ARETT

Executive directors WiEg
Mr. LIU Libin Bkt 460 3 1415 2351 127 2478
Mr. LIAO Yuging BRELE 636 - 1,700 2,601 - 2,601
Mr. LAW Yung Koon ERmRE a3 16 1,163 1,602 = 1,602
Mr. WANG Zhihua THEERE 416 16 2,081 2,612 107 2,719
Ms. ZHANG Li RALL 216 29 250 1,022 107 1,129
Mr. LUO Jianfeng gl U - - 424 - 424
Non-executive directors JEtiES
Ms. XIE Jingyun EEEYen - - - - - -
Mr. ZUO Manlun Pk ] st 318 - - 318 - 318
Independent non-executive B

directors
Mr. CHEN Mo BB AL 150 - - 150 - 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu B %A 150 - - 150 = 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy gyt 180 - - 180 - 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin RibEA 150 - - 246 = 246
Total st 3523 1,440 84 6,609 11,656 341 11,997
Note: MiaE -

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to
the directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in Note 1(s)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms
and number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph
“Share option scheme” in the Report of the Directors and Note 25.

ZFECEERBEANF EREA B TESR
) S8 52 A ) il (LM o 2 S5 TR PR ) (R (E AR 9
B EEL(s) (D AT A SR A B D AT L 2R &
FFEBCGRE =R MR AR BOR > 2 EE
T 47 5 7E P 432 L 2 1 5 % B T A3 LAY
RN Nk ot

ZEBY M SRR > WAL O AR
BHRARBE CREFFRE N MERES
#)— B R B k25 B R o
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8

Of the five Individuals with the highest emoluments, four

(2019: three) of them are directors whose emoluments

are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments

in respect of the other one (2019: two) individuals are as

T PN s

hERmHEMALH ma(CE—R
F1=4) 7‘%%% ?EZ§§Z?E%H$EABfT§$7TEZ
B o Hth—& (2

—JLEE T W AL) B
E%HA]EE@PE)‘H%AVL%’,E&D?

follows:
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N RHTIT
Fees bk = -
Salary, allowance and benefits in kind B B R EYH & 330 828
Contribution to retirement benefit plan BIRE *'J G LR 12 32
Bonus paid EATHE 1,400 3,239
Share-based payments L/(Hz{/ﬁtfr% RN 60 157
1,802 4,256
The emoluments of the one (2019: two) individual(s) with —% (= j'LE 9 44 ) B e 5 A\ L R
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: T ??@J%ﬁ .
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A% A&
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7C 2
1,500,0007 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T &
2,000,0007& 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T2
2,500,000% 7T 1 -

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

2,500,001 T
3,000,000% 7T
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Other comprehensive income 9 At 2 1 UK A

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) A5 1 LAt Z 1 W 2R 2% A R 4 2
comprehensive income B
2020 2019
e St 312 “E-NE

Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
FRBLAG fm Friig FREL AT RE PR &
H i A | Gilksd &8

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'009 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB 000
ARIETFL ARW T ARBTFL ARETT ARMTT ARETT

Exchange differences on BENTHHZ

translation of: EREH
— financial statements of —SNIE 2R 2

overseas subsidiaries UL 3,094 - 3,094 (142) - (142)
Cash flow hedge: net B

movement in hedging Hib R ED

reserve (5,680) 852 (4,828) 2 - o))
Other comprehensive Ho 2

income (2,586) 852 (1,734) (744) - (744)
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9  Other comprehensive income (continued) 9  HfthZm @
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) HoAth 2y e as 2 SR 5 0 B REE
including reclassification adjustments Wiy SRR
2020 2019
T BAE “E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T NERHTIT
Cash flow hedges: Blemasn .
Effective portion of the A B T T T A 4 T U A
cash flow hedge recognised in sl < Bl & & B
other comprehensive income ZHREB G
during the period 89,403 (780)
Reclassification adjustments P IR S FE N
for amounts transferred to B SE
profit or loss:
— finance costs (Note 5(a)) —EhE AR
(H1ét5(a)) 1,132 82
— foreign exchange (gain)/loss —ANEE (k) 518
(Note 4) (Bt7t4) 737 696
— cost of inventories (Note 5(c)) —TFEBA (BFEs ) (96,952) -
Net deferred tax credited to i A LA 2 T U 2 Y
other comprehensive income PR = R
(Note 26(b)(i)) (Wtat26(b)(i)) 852 -

7 L A 2 i W e
Z 3 P9 S £
Z B FE

comprehensive income (4,828) 2)

Net movement in the hedging
reserve during the period
recognised in other
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10 Earnings per share 10 TRE& A
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) T BE A F )
The calculation of basic earnings per share is B BE A H) TR R AR A F
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity A0 PR RE A RS B A T AN R T
shareholders of the Company of RMB763,385,000 765,385,0007T (ZF—JLF 1 AR
(2019: RMB606,109,000) and the weighted average #606,109,0007C) K F N E 317
number of 418,008,000 ordinary shares (2019: 78 J% 10 #E - 19 %1418,008,0004% (=
418,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the T — JL4E 1 418,000,0004% ¥ %8 f&%)
year, calculated as follows: SHEAR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2N RET T 8
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR AR T T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R —H—HH

T E AR 418,000 418,000
Effect of share options exercised A7 15 s G2 ) 2 2
(Note 27(c)(ii)) (W13E 27(c)(i)) 8 -
Weighted average number of RTZA=+T—HW

ordinary shares at 31 December 3 0 R S Y B 418,008 418,000
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10 Earnings per share (continued) 10

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is

based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB765,385,000
(2019: RMB606,109,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 419,115,000 shares
(2019: 418,176,000), calculated as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

A )

(b) TR

B B R AR IR A R
7 I RE 2 A% RO A 0 RN R
765,385,0007C (ZF —JLF : AR
#606,109,0007T) & 28 i hin # 7
¥ 80419,115,00008 (=& — fLEFE .
418,176,000) sHEUIT :

G) AL B Ak R

shareholders of the Company (diluted) 15 it A (F i)
2020 2019
BRI —ZE—hE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET T AR T T
Profit attributable to ordinary % 7 & #E 7 A B
equity shareholders (diluted)  J& 1% % ] (3 35) 765,385 606,109

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

Gi)  HABRMFETLI S ()

2020 2019
BRI —E—JLF
000 000
T FH
Weighted average number RT+ZA=+—HZ
of ordinary shares at 3 IR0 RE S Y B
31 December 418,008 418,000
Effect of deemed issue of BERBAR AR Z
shares under the Company’s [ f% 1 5 &I 4 (&
share option scheme for nil (TR} 2 2
consideration (Note 25) (Ktat2s) 1,107 176
Weighted average number of R+ _H=+—HZ
ordinary shares (diluted) at A 788 B 0 S 1S B
31 December (1#7%) 419,115 418,176




11

(a)

iy 4 Iz
Investment property and other property, 11 {3 & YI2E R HAMMYIZE ~ g5 B
plant and equipment et
Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) R THI {6 2 SR
Office
Buildings Motor  equipment Construction Investment
and plants  Machinery Vehicles ~ and others in progress Subtotal ~ properties Total
_ COMAEME T )
M B B L Rl ERTHE it REE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NRETT ARETT ARETT ARETET ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: JRA
At 1 January 2019 REF-AE-A—H 1087864 2031242 24,781 173,117 146,018 3,463,022 - 34630
Additions e 5,261 287,949 4117 15,701 307,965 620,993 - 620,993
Transfer from construction BRETEIR
in progress 117,057 132,074 587 732 (250,450) - - -
Transfer from other property, o EI Eﬂﬂ%% “HiE
plant and equipment to & EXieCuE
investment property (59,281) - - - - (59,281) 59,281 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets &4 F (f f HE ¥4 - - - - - - 22,780 22,780
Disposal e (113) (26,182) (163) (1,571) - (28,029) - (28,029)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE— N4
1 January 2020 TZAZ AR
st 1:3
—~A—H 1,150,788 2,425,083 29,322 187,979 203,533 3,996,705 82,061 4,078,766
Additions e 4,079 281,434 2,057 12,504 176,990 477,064 - 477,064
Transfer from inventory HEHGR 3,062 - - - - 3,062 - 3,062
Transfer from construction BHETEIR
in progress 34,195 69,677 785 2,293 (106,950) - - -
Transfer from other property, aERAENE BE
plant and equipment to REHEREWE
investment property (1,617) - - - - (1,617) 1,617 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets B F (R & - - - - - - 2,795 2,795
Disposal & - (6,658) (1,925) (507) - (9,090) - (9,090)
At 31 December 2020 AoECE
+ZH=1—H 1,190,507 2,769,536 30,239 202,269 213,573 4,466,124 86,473 4,552,597
Accumulated depreciation: Anthi
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—nE—H—H (199.414)  (1,153,310) (18,078)  (140,035) - (1,510837) - (1,510837)
Transfer from other property, EHEEMTE B
plant and equipment to Rk BERENE
investment property 5,060 - - - - 5,060 (5,060) -
Transfer from right-of-use assets 4 F (f A & - - - - - - (4,362) (4,362)
Charge for the year EEXH (34,362) (278,214) (2,019) (8,363) - (323,018) (945) (323,963)
Written back on disposals HERAR 27 19,247 153 1336 - 20,763 = 20,763
At 31 December 2019 and REZZE-NE
1 January 2020 TZAZT—HK
“ECOTE
—~A—H (228,689)  (1,412,277) (20,004) (147,062) - (1,808,032) (10,367)  (1,818,399)
Transfer from other property, EEAEME KR
plant and equipment to RABEREME
investment property ) 372 - - - - 372 (372) -
Transfer from right-of-use assets  E4 F F B & - - - = = = (633) (633)
Charge for the year EE (38,599) (344,151) (2,484) (8,566) - (393,800) (2,093) (395,893)
Written back on disposals HER R - 4,406 1,742 435 - 6,583 - 6,583
At 31 December 2020 RZB_FHE
TZA=1+—H (266,916)  (1,752,022) (20,746) (155,193) - (2,194877) (13465)  (2,208,342)
Net ook value: SRR
At 31 December 2020 RZEZBE
+ZA=+-H 923,591 1,017,514 9,493 47,076 213,573 2,271,247 73,008 2,344,255
At 31 December 2019 REZB-NE
+ZA=Z+-H 922,099 1,012,806 9318 40917 203,533 2,188,673 71,694 2,260,367

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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11

Investment property and other property,
plant and equipment (continued)

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

All properties owned by the Group are
located in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group
is in the process of applying for the
title certificates of certain properties
with carrying value of approximately
RMB74,673,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB40,425,000). The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the use
of and the conduct of operating activities
at the properties referred to above are not
affected by the fact that the Group has
not yet obtained the relevant property title
certificates.

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB577,227,000 (2019: RMB602,309,000)
were pledged as securities for bank loans
of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (Note
22).

11

A
oo

(a)

Vi3 b HLAth 5 ~ i5S B

i )

MR 1 < R (A7)

()

(i)

(iii)

N TR RSNV E 3]
AL A o

BHEAREHT A%£H
EFEHEAR-ZE_FF+
H=1+—HZIRHEELNA
N R #74,673,0007T (&
—JU4E ¢ AR 140,425,000
TC) ZE TV ah 2
MEFE o ANTEIEHRB A (H
A bl ) 26 e AE Ll ) 2
e 5 28 I B 0 N 2 R AR
£8 [ 1 R BN A5 AH BE A 3 2

R M EE-

R_EB_FF+_H
=+—H REFEAEAR
#5577,227,0007C (=& —JL
£ AR¥602,309,0007T)
25 TR B T E & AR
LERITER R Bt
22)°
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11 Investment property and other property,
plant and equipment (continued)

(b)

Investment property

The Group leases out owned properties under
operating leases and began to treat these properties
as investment properties since 1 July 2019 because
the Group decided to hold these properties in the
long-term for capital appreciation or rental income.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable

lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in place at the
reporting date will be receivable by the Group in
future periods as follows:

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

11 HEEVE R HARYIE - W5 B
W

(b) HEPVE

AEBERBEEHEHHEMHA
MELE _Z-NFLtA—-HE
B % YRR B IR E W R
K] 7 A 55 18 PR OE 2 R BT K {E
S B A TR A % Tk
HHE — I R R34 A A
BAREE] ERATA RS G E R
R - B A G FEH M
DUR M 35 /0 57K - K IHAH E 1
ENEEEIE 2D

7 55 T RE TR R A S0 AR 9 R i
H BT 3L AR AT B BR A B A B B
W R RS BLAH B A - R

2020 2019
TEORg —ZE—hE

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T L ANRIETT

Within 1 year 1FER 744 1,889

Investment properties of the Group were stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Fair value of these investment properties
is RMB138,810,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB131,000,000). The valuations
of fair value were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, who have staff
with recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued.

AEBENBREYMEIRGEME
AR T 2R 42 B AR TRk B AT AT B e BUE
EHEEY - ZEREWENR_Z
CEE+ HZ=Z+—HHAF
fHA NE1138,810,0007T (3
—NLE+ZHA=+—H: AR
131,000,0007T) ° A F{E A (E T H
B8 3 A = AT AT P R AT B RS
KEHER AT HET EEBHER
185 8 ¥ 2 I 16 30 & T T 88 0 B 4
B WA KB o
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12  Right-of-use assets

12 fEHHREE

Land use Right-of-use
rights assets Total
;U 5
155 7 b R st
(Note (1)) (Note (ii))
(Mt#ta)) (Wtatdi))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT ANREFT ANRETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 R-B—F
—H—H 439,671 9,164 448,835
Additions ~E - 15,094 15,094
Transfer to investment property 183 £ E Y ¥ (22,780) - (22,780)
At 31 December 2019 and AL
1 January 2020 TH=T—HK
BRI
—HA—H 416,891 24,258 441,149
Additions nE - 3,000 3,000
Transfer to investment property i 2 & Y) £ (2,795) - (2,795)
Disposal Hi & - (15,094) (15,094)
At 31 December 2020 R EE
+ZH=+—H 414,096 12,164 426,260
Accumulated amortisation: ey .
At 1 January 2019 RoFE—JLE
—H—H (74,557) - (74,557)
Charge for the year AEEXH (8,578) (3,756) (12,334)
Transfer to investment property = E YK 4,362 - 4,362
At 31 December 2019 and ATE—NE
1 January 2020 +4H4+ H Kk
—_— v —_— ﬂz
—H—H (78,773) (3,756) (82,529)
Charge for the year AEE (8,292) (4,117) (12,409)
Transfer to investment property  #E#E R E Y 633 - 633
Disposal e - 4,232 4,232
At 31 December 2020 A
+-H=+—H (86,432) (3,641) (90,073)
Carrying amount: W6
At 31 December 2020 A==
+=HA=+—H 327,664 8,523 336,187
At 31 December 2019 R-EB—NF
+ZHA=+—H 338,118 20,502 358,620
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Right-of-use assets (continued) 12 fEHREE R

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

12 M B 8 JE A1) 2 A f6 PR R 7 IR 7

class of underlying asset is as follows: HAIF :
2020 2019
TETEAYg —E—h4E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiat AR T NREHET T
Included in “Right-of-use assets™: Ft AT{HHEZE ) :
Land use rights, carried at FEAT B AR B BR Y
depreciated cost - b {5 (1) 327,664 338,118
Other properties leased for own use, 37 & i A 5| BR 1 & 7E
carried at depreciated cost B R R H A 2 (i1) 8,523 20,502
336,187 358,620
Included in “Inventories and FATFEER
other contract costs”: HoAth & #YRA
Land use rights under developed — E.BH#FEYEN
properties for sale -+ 3th {55 P A 28,273 28,538
Included in “Investment property”: #tATHREBEWH ) :
Land use rights, carried P AT B8 B B BR Y
at depreciated cost - Hf {5 19,900 18,221
384,360 405,379
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12 Right-of-use assets (continued) 12 RS R
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases BURES R HE AW 2 B HE 77
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: Hran T :
2020 2019
— —e = ﬂi :%_‘hﬁz
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ABRHTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by % 4H [ & /2 %8 Al & 7>

class of underlying asset: ) {68 R E 5
IR :
Land use rights -t {5 A 8,292 8,578
Plants & 55 4,117 3,756
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE
(Note 5(a)) (tat5)) 654 716
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI HIHE R
B 52 459 1,445
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were N A REE E N E 2 AR 3,000,000
RMB3,000,000 (2019: RMB15,094,000). This amount TE(ZFE—LF 1 ARH15,094,0007T) ° #%
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable SR B & R E N E A E

under new tenancy agreements. S RAR -
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Right-of-use assets (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(d) and

23, respectively.

The land use rights under right-of-use assets with
carrying value of RMB327,346,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB338,118,000) were pledged as securities for bank
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (Note 22).

(i) Land use rights

As at 31 December 2020, the remaining period of

the land use rights ranges from 35 to 50 years.

(ii) Other leases

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its plants and machinery through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 to 10 years. Lease payments are
usually increased to reflect market rentals.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

12

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

B RESE e )

tﬂ%fﬁi\&ﬁtﬂ%%&m%ﬁﬁéza‘u,ﬁﬁ H
TR 7 RIS R N EE19(d) B 23 ©

ANEBCOFE+L A=+ —H REME
2 N 8327,346,0000C (. FE—LE+
H=+—H:@ AR%338,118,0007T) (£
AL EE N HECKEES R
S HIRTT BRI W (B EE22) o

) e S Al R

ANZBEBEF_HA=+—H *
i R RE A R AR HARR N P35 E R
504F o

(i)  HAMHE

AEEBBHEHHRESERE
) 2 (1F & H 5 R ds) B HE
T o HE—MYI 22104 - f
B FOEE g N DU BT 5
EIKF- o
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13

Intangible assets

13 W EE

Patents
A
RMB’000
AR T IT
Cost: JRA
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and ARZZFE—JL4F—H—H~>
1 January 2020 *z hE+T+ZA=+—HK
—EoEHE—-H—H -
Addition through contribution by EIEER RS L E IR E
non-controlling interest 4,122
At 31 December 2020 R_F_FHES_A=F—H 4122
Accumulated amortisation: HEHs .
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and A _ZFE—JLFE—H—H~>
1 January 2020 ZE-NEFETZA=t+—HK
—EoEE—H—0 -
Charge for the year NGy ] (343)
At 31 December 2020 NZEBEZERFEFZA=1+—H (343)
Net book value: TIRE (I
At 31 December 2020 REBZZEFE+ZHA=+—H 3,779
At 31 December 2019 REZB—-NFE+ZH=+—H -
The amortisation charge for the year is included in A RS S ASE BB R AT
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of Ko

profit or loss.
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Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated:

ey

A 5 ¥h 22 Bk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

14

NG P P |

TREHRATETEALAE
B EZ B A E RS

F,%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%

Gh HRp A Z Bt JE 0 7% Al AR

Proportion of ownership interest

WA RELL B
Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the  Held by a
Name of companies establishment capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
REMbRSL,/ ke / kMR AR AR hIEAE
Bl 4 JRAZHL i B H ) BEAA  BRHER kil eSS
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007 Dollars
(“USD™) 2,000/
USD2,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited HEEELHE 2,000 7T RERK
(" Xingfa BVI 1) SEELE () /
+AZH 2,000 7T
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD1,000/ 100% - 100%  Sales of aluminium
(“Xingfa Hong Kong”) 14 April 2008 HKD1,000 profiles
B Rx (BB ARAA i 1O T,/ HE R
(MRHEE) “EENE 1000 T
MA+ME
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd PRC RMB360,040,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
BRESEZARDA ()i 26 May 2006 RMB360,040,000 sales of aluminium
(“Guangdong Xingfa”) profiles
R BB AR AR AT ) ) EFI AR i?&fﬁﬁfﬂ*[ﬁ
(TR ) ZERE 360,040,0007C,/
ﬁﬂ 730 R
360,040,0007¢
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB130,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
SR 5 (RA) AR ()ii) 7 July 2009 RMB130,000,000 sales of aluminium
(“Xingfa Chengdu”) profiles
B GRS (W) AR Al ﬁP@ AR %E&@ﬁ*f&’*’ #
Q55 “EENE 130,000,0007C /
tAtH AR
130,000,0007C
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) ~ PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. 14 August 2009 RMB100,000,000 sales of aluminium
BEREERE (1) ARAT i) profiles
(“Xingfa Jiangxi”)
R B AR (L) AR A Al )in) ﬁP@ AR EERHERM
(TR ) “EENE 100,000,0007C /
NA+IA AR

100,000,0007C
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19,622,0707T

14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 14 RWBARZRE &)
Proportion of ownership interest
WA RELL B
Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
Name of companies establishment capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities

REHRSL/ e/ RER AEE AR HIEAE

AL JRAZH i B H ) BEEA B kil H REEN

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 RMB100,000,000 sales of aluminium
R B 5 % (W) B IRAH (@)id) profiles
(“Xingfa Henan”)

FER B () AR A A6 " AR EERBEREM

(MBE ) “E-TE 100,000,0007C,/
fATH AR
100,000,0007C

Foshan Xingfa Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS, 000,000/ 100% - 100%  Development, sale
Bl R EHERE AR A 5 June 2013 RMBS8,000,000 and management of
(i)(iii) (“Xingfa Real Estate”) properties

fumREEHEREAERA TG TE AR UESE S

(MR EHE) “E-= 8,000,0007C,/ RER
AAEH B
8,000,0007C

Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Trading of aluminium
B BE W E AR ()i 3 December 2014 RMB10,000,000 profiles
(“Xingfa Trading”)

Wbl B3 B A RS R ) i) HE N FUNES
(M) “E-ME 10,000,0007C,/

+ZH=H AR
10,000,0007%

Guangdong Xingfa Precision PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 26 September 2017~ RMB200,000,000 sales of precision
R Bt RS AR A A )i products
(“Xingfa Precision”)

i R LR A 0 A IR A ) ) " N FERHEREER
(MRHHE) “E-tE 200,000,007,/

AAZHRH AR
200,000,0007C

Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture PRC RMB20,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. 20 July 2018 RMB19,622,070 sales of architecture
BRAR RN EEREARLH products
(i)(iir) (“Xingfa Aoke”)

ERARRMBEERARA /G TE N FERHEREER
(MEREHR) “E-N\E 20,000,007,/

tAZ+H AR
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14 RWBARZHE @

Proportion of ownership interest

WA RELLH
Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
Name of companies gstablishment i gapital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
S/ Wi iEWE KRE KA WKEAD
kS IR B H BEAA  BRHER HH HH TR
Guangdong Xingfa Environment PRC RMB12,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing
Technology Co., Ltd. 30 August 2018 RMB12,000,000 and sales of
B R B B B R R TR A Rl ) ) environment
(“Xingfa Environment”) ’ protection products
TSR BT R IR 2 &) i) E N EERHERRER
(TEL#R% ) -\ 12,000,0007C/
I ES: AE#
12,000,0007%
(i)  These entities are all PRC limited liability (i) FZEEREAETEARAA- ZE
companies. The English translation of the company NG R E RS2 5%
names are for reference only. The official names of FENFZIEX AR X
these companies are in Chinese.
(i)  The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned (i) FEMBARIAIIEEERE-
enterprise.
(iii) The subsidiaries are companies with limited (i) FEWBARASAREMLAF -
liabilities.

Interest in an associate

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

15 RIS A 2

SN
REAEEEAR FBEWT

AFRRE L (R4S M B

Proportion of
ownership interest

HEA HELL B
Form of Place of Particulars  Group’s
business incorporation and of issued and  effective Held by Principal
Name of associate structure business paid-up capital interest a subsidiary activities
c#fTk  AEE mREAR
TE A 4 EBRRE R kR B B BOCEATEY R i ERER
Jiangxi Province Jingxing Limited liability People’s Republic of Registered capital of 80% (ii) 80% (if) Manufacturing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing company China RMBS,000,000 and sales of
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Jingxing”) aluminium panels
(LT = B AR R E
ARAF) @)
IHEREEERREERAR ARAA g NRARE FHfE A AERHERR
(ML) @) AR 5,000,0007C
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15

Interest in an associate (continued)

()

(i1)

The English translation of the company name is for
reference only. The official name of the company is
in Chinese.

20% of Jiangxi Jingxing’s paid-up capital was
contributed by &M &= B HE R A R A A
(in English for identification only, Guangzhou
Jingxing Construction Technology Co., Ltd.)
(“Guangzhou Jingxing”). The Group has entered
into the contractual arrangement with Guangzhou
Jingxing. According to the agreement, Guangzhou
Jingxing has control over Jiangxi Jingxing. Hence,
the Group considered that Jiangxi Jingxing is an

associate of the Group.

Jiangxi Jingxing, the only associate in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity
whose quoted market price is not available.

During 2020, the amount of the Group’s share
of profit from this associate and the unrealised
profit from transactions with this associate
are RMB&,339,000 (2019: RMB2,567,000)
and RMB11,000 (2019: realised profit of
RMB1,939,000), respectively. Besides, the
associate declared dividend of RMB7,800,000 to
the Group (2019: RMB19,855,000).

15

R ] 2 RER )

()

(i1)

DA G R ERSE %
] Z IR HE 2 S R o

7LV 5= B2 20 % $e IR A H B M
REREEMLARAA (TEMNR
B ) U o A B B BB M 5% L AT
SLE R LR R o ek 0 N L
BTG S A PR Rt A SR
I 5 VP S LA 2 R R
AT

{7 St BIL 2 A 62 (3 I — 22 B )
BAWA RIEEWEEER K
TS5 o

WA B A ] E A 5%
BN F I A R B R A Y
5 A 2z A8 I T A 4 8 4 Bl
2 N 18,339,000 (& —h
0 NR2,567,0007T) K A B
11,0007 (ZF— /L - B2
N 11,939,0007T) © HEAh 0 3%
BAFARAREEIEIRKEANRE
7,800,0007T (=& — L4 | AR
19,855,0007T) ©
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16

Inventories and other contract costs 16 17158 ke HAt &5 29 R A
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR HTT
Inventories 18
Aluminium profiles manufacturing SRT I B0
— Raw materials — A 383,304 312,721
— Work in progress —1E 8 iy 132,942 110,018
— Finished goods — BB 485,981 461,193
1,002,227 883,932
Completed properties for sale BT EWE
— Land use rights — k3t {5 A A 28,273 28,538
— Deed tax — 2,839 2,866
— Construction costs — B AR 219,168 219,039
250,280 250,443
1,252,507 1,134,375
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an MRS Rt AR 2 fF E S0
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: e
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AN RHTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEIRAIE 10,257,443 9,791,036

it A 17 & FA T AT R — 4R 9 e [a] > TR
R — 4 DU AT i Al 2 B vk TR & £ bR

expected to be recovered after more than one year. 4h o

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within
one year, except for completed properties for sale which is
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17

Trade and other receivables

17 2255 B HAth EWGK A

2020 2019
TERTRAE “E-NAE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HaE ANRFL ANRETT
Trade debtors and bills receivable, %2 7 JE UG TE K
net of loss allowance JEUR % (FOER
AR R ) ()/(ii) 3,411,421 2,824,832
Other debtors, net of loss allowance At & U F1IH
CHO 3% e 45 85 1) (iii) 106,927 79,887
Financial assets measured at R ARG 22
amortised cost BRE E 3,518,348 2,904,719
Dividend receivable JE i % IR (iv) 27,655 19,855
Deposits and prepayments o 5 B VA RROE 199,172 178,982
Derivative financial instruments:  fiTZE <&@l T & :
— held as cash flow hedging —FERERHE MM TE 286y
instruments 28(H)(1) 14,471 -
3,759,646 3,103,556
i) No trade debtor was pledged as securities for bank 1) R-BZZ2FEH+_A=Z+H—H I
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2020 (31 822 5 I WG ELR R A A AR
December 2019: Nil) (Note 22). EIRATE MR (S —JLE
TZA=Z+T—H ) (EE22) -
(ii) Bills receivable of RMB671,890,000 was pledged (ii) MR E EE+ _H=+—H"
as securities for issuance of bills payable of the JEUR Z i N K ¥671,890,0007T E
Group as at 31 December 2020 (31 December MAE R A LB RITENFZRN
2019: RMB355,600,000) (Note 20). wHECE-NFE+A=Z1T—
H: ANR#355,600,00070) (Fff5E
20) ©
No bills receivable was pledged as securities for REZBZZFEF A =+—H"
bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2020 I JRE LS BR R L B A R R R
(31 December 2019: Nil) (Note 22). TERRAS CE-NE+ 2
}51 E+ H @) (FisE22) -
(iii)  As at 31 December 2020, loss allowance on other (i) RZBEFE+ _H=+—H"

debtors is RMB2,482,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,294,000).

YR TE 2 RS R A AR
#2,482,0007C (= ZE— LFE+H
—+—H : AR%2,294,0007T) °
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

(iv)  As at 31 December 2020, dividend receivable
of RMB27,655,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB19,855,000) is due from the associate of the
Group, Jiangxi Jingxing.

The Group’s trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2020 included amounts due from related parties of
RMB48,005,000 (31 December 2019: RMB43,792,000)
(Note 31(b)(i)). The amount of trade and other receivables
that is expected to be recovered after more than one year
is RMB10,165,000 (2019: RMB12,882,000), which relates
to retention money of construction contracts. All of the
other current trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade debtors and bills receivables (which are included in
trade and other receivables) based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

22 5y B FLAh JE WK IH (4)

(ivy RIZZEZZEF+_H=+—H>
JEE U A £ B O N RIS
% E A N R #527,655,0000T (=&
—hE+ZA=+—H: ARE¥
19,855,0007T) ©

AEER_ZF_FFT+_HA=1+—HMW
2 e A WAL R TE B 4 E R B 2 U 3R
TH N R 148,005,0000C (—F—E+
HZ=+—H : ANE#43,792,00000) (ff5E
31(b)(i)) ° 2 5 e H At e Wi K IE FE A R
— DB RN R H10,165,0007T (%
— L 0 N 1512,882,0007T) ¢ B 5K
BHZRE AR -MABEMEEIZ S
Tz, JEL i JEE WA SRR T LB R — 4 79 A [
AR

HiR % 0 Wt

RS IR 758 2 1 H B B W 0 BR S
BB > 22 5 IE WG e e IEUR ZE % (LT
AR 5 e HA JE U FRIE) 2 HR #5453 Bt 4
T

2020 2019
TERTEA ZE—JUE

RMB’000 RMB’000

N R oc NBREFor

Within 1 month —{EH KN 1,671,973 1,574,144
1 to 3 months — 2 =fEH 839,427 704,279
3 to 6 months =FNEA 676,807 393,040
Over 6 months i 7 A A 223,214 153,369
3,411,421 2,824,832

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 days
to 180 days from the date of billing. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivable are set out in Note 28(a).

R 5 ME W TE B JE W R AR A B 2 H 2
30HZE180H W EHA o A B A £ {5 B B
R 5 W TE R R E R E AW
B S 1 2 — 25 SRR U B R 28 (a) ©
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18 Pledged deposits 18

As at 31 December 2020, pledged deposits represented
bank deposits pledged to bank as securities for bills
payable.

As at 31 December 2019, pledged deposits represented

bank deposits pledged to bank as securities for loans and
issuance of bills payable (Note 22).

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19
flow information

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

[SE/ITLEEEN

REZBZZBE+F_H=+—H BEH
f7 ik 5 IR T IRATIE R BN RIR 2 1fE
TRZIRATIFRK

AZE-NET A=+ —H B

17746 R T IRATE B B BT IE
T ER B OR 2 IRAT 7K (B aE22) ©

B8 e Bl 8 B HA B
i R

(@ BlERBEFHEDEE

2020 2019
—FORE —EE
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARB T ANBRHT T

Cash at bank and on hand RAT e FUE &

509,639 528,003
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B8 e Bl SR ) B HoAt B &

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19

flow information (continued) Nl §= ¢4 ))
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) B 52 iy 6 ) BAL 2 5 P 45 B < 2 )
generated from operations: 0 -
2020 2019
TR B —E—NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&t ARW T NEHET T
Profit before taxation R AT T ) 873,412 723,470
Adjustments for: KRN S IHREE
Depreciation e 5) 408,302 336,297
Amortisation 1 85 5(c) 343 -
Impairment losses on trade 22 5 T HAth R TR
and other receivables USRI S| 5(c) 53,058 47,175
Equity-settled share-based DARG #4685 DU A7
payment expenses L EEWEMAT FBA S 5b) 1,794 2.325
Finance costs A 1 A 5(a) 101,592 151,480
Interest income ISV ON 4 (53,899) (42,734)
Changes in fair value of JEE RS TP Y R
commodity future contracts MEGEHNZ
as hedge ineffectiveness ARE=E--L0)] 4 (26,067) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal HEWE- FE &
of property, plant and A DL B A FH RE
equipment and right-of-use HrEz W)
assets 515 4 (740) 2,800
Share of profit of an associate [ {d— [ B2 /A &
i A 15 (8,339) (2,567)
Unrealised/(realised) profit A H B — [ g =
from transactions with an NEIRR ZH
associate R
(BB wA 15 11 (1,939)
Net foreign exchange loss A1 B 5 $5 75 2H 3,433 (1,188)
Changes in working capital: BHES B
Change in inventories and 7 8 e HoAth & 89 AR
other contract costs pd L] (121,194) 9,669
Change in trade and other 22 5 B HoAth JiE 1
receivables TIH 2 B (696,317) (338,848)
Change in trade and other 22 5 B HAth JEE At
payables IE 2 B ) 554,870 234,409
Change in contract liabilities & &Y & & 2 52 F) 33,643 (54,221)
Change in deferred income IEIEU A 2 2 E)) (14,606) (8,536)
Cash generated from EBEEZBE
operations 1,109,296 1,057,592
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B8 e B8 Y B HoAd B

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19

flow information (continued) mEER @
(¢)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c)  RMETRE)EA W A2 BHIE
financing activities
Cross
currency
interest
rate swaps
held to
hedge
Loans and Interest Lease borrowings
borrowings payable liabilities (liabilities) Total
ks 28 U
LISy
i
A JE AR HEaM (&) #it
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETFL  ARBEFT  ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Note 22 Note 20 Note 23 Note 28()(i)
Wzt22 W3t20 W7t23  WFE280a)
At 1 January 2019 RZZF—E—H—H 1,845,727 12,709 9,164 - 1,867,600
Changes from financing MERSHEZ
cash flows: )
Proceeds of new bank loans #1847 &R 2 B 15 700H 2,437,078 - - - 2,437,078
Repayments of bank loans BRERITER (2,583,697) - - - (2,583,697)
Capital element of lease ENHEREz RS
rentals paid - - (3,430) - (3,430)
Interest element of lease EfHER S MRS
rentals paid - - (716) - (716)
Finance costs paid CA A R OA - (161,264) - - (161,264)
Total changes from financing Ml E RN &2
cash flows EEAE (146,619) (161,264) (4,146) - (312,029)
Exchange adjustments [ 52 2 3 2% (696) - - - (696)
Changes in fair value NTEES) - - - 698 698
Other changes: HAb s,
Increase in lease liabilities AEEIVHHEEE
from entering into new HE & EE M
leases during this year - - 15,094 - 15,094
Interest expenses (Note 5(2))  FI SR (Ff7t5(a) - 150,764 716 - 151,480
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19
flow information (continued)

ey

B8 e B4 B Y B HAd B

R ER @

()  MNEWBELN A EBIR @)

Cross
currency
interest
rate swaps
held to
hedge
Loans and Interest Lease borrowings
borrowings payable liabilities (liabilities) Total
ks 28 U
FES D
i
A JE AR HE a6 (&) it
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFLT  ARETT  ARETFT AREFL  ARKEFL
Note 22 Note 20 Note 23 Note 28()(i)
Wizt22 H#t20 W7t23  WFE280a)
At 31 December 2019 and \ZE-NE
1 January 2020 +4F]4‘|“ Ak
CHE-EF—-H—H 1,698,412 2,209 20,828 698 1,722,147
Changes from financing RE BT R 2 ) .
cash flows:
Proceeds of new bank loans #1817 &7 2 B 15 700H 1,958,924 - - - 1,958,924
Repayments of bank loans BRRITE (2,527,740) - - - (2,527,740)
Capital element of lease ENHEH S AEH S
rentals paid - - (4,041) - (4,041)
Interest element of lease EHERS BT
rentals paid - - (654) - (654)
Finance costs paid ERFBRA - (101,351) - - (101,351)
Total changes from financing NE BB R BEAE
cash flows (568,816) (101,351) (4,695) - (674,862)
Exchange adjustments [ 52 2 3 4% 696 - = - 696
Changes in fair value NFEES) - - = (698) (698)
Other changes: Hoflh s,
Increase in lease liabilities AEEHHEES 2
from entering into new THE & EEm
leases during this year - - 3,000 - 3,000
Decrease in lease liabilities AEERELIEHEEE
from early termination of ZHEAREHD
leases during this year - - (10,896) - (10,896)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a))  FI BB (H/##5(a)) - 100,938 654 5 101,592
At 31 December 2020 REFZEE
+ZA=+—H 1,130,292 1,796 8,891 - 1,140,979
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(ks 5 HHEHIS)  BUER LN RIESTR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for

19

Bl R Bl F 8P R HAth
HEeRaEar @

(@)  FEBIEN A

MEHEF AR SREBRHN

leases comprise the following: BREMIELLT ¢
2020 2019
BRI ZE—UE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T T AR T T
Within operating cash flows BB SR 459 1,445
Within financing cash flows BRMERSRE 4,695 4,146
5,154 5,591
These amounts relate to the following: ZESHB T EHAR .
2020 2019
“ECEYg —ZE—-NE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T T AR T T
Lease rentals paid 2T E 5,154 5,591
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Trade and other payables 20 25 b HA A K 0
2020 2019
TR B ZE—JLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT NRMFor
Trade payables X 5 AT R IE 951,766 814,775
Bills payable JEAT R 1,616,647 1,284,032
Accrued payroll and benefits JEFT T & K f@ #l 265,037 219,521
Other payables and accruals A AT KT e
JEEET & 470,096 392,202
Interest payable (Note 19(c)) JE AR R (Kt aE19(c)) 1,796 2,209
Deferred income (Note 24) AEAEUL A (Ff3E24) 16,280 25,349
Financial liabilities measured at ARG R 2
amortised cost (a) SR EE@) 3,321,622 2,738,088
Derivative financial instrument: MAESMIA
— held as cash flow hedging instruments —FHEB SR
(b)/(Note 28()(i)) T B
Bt 7t28¢6)(1)) - 698
3,321,622 2,738,786
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20 Trade and other payables (continued)

(a) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

All of the trade and other payables, apart from

those mentioned in Note 21, are expected to be

settled or recognised as income within one year or

are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging

analysis of trade payables and bills payable (which

are included in trade and other payables), based on

20

22 5 e FLAth HEE A 5K 0 o)

P MRS PR A B R 2 <l £ A

(a)

Pt 52 5 B HAth B A< RO (BRI 5
21t 2 A1) TR I —4F P9 A
BICHE B 7 WA B T SR (E R o

R AR R EHAHG R 2R
75 AN KR B A R 4% (LT A
52 5 B A TE A RROR) 2 Bk i o3 A

the invoice date, is as follows: (1 N
2020 2019
BB ZE—JUE
RMB’000 RMB’000
N R oc N R EFor
Within 1 month —fE AN 706,016 715,231
1 to 3 months —ZE2=EAH 594,588 384,420
3 to 6 months =FNEA 747,522 583,421
Over 6 months i 7 A A 520,287 415,735
2,568,413 2,098,807

As at 31 December 2020, bills payable
of RMB267,847,000 was secured by bills
receivables of the Group (31 December 2019:
RMB162,500,000) (Note 17), bills payable of
RMB1,084,500,000 was secured by pledged
deposits of the Group (31 December 2019:

RMB909,172,000).

RZBZFEFE+_A=+—H"
JE o 225 A R H5267,847,0007C (—
F-NE+_HA=+—H:@ AR
#162,500,00070) (Ff5E17) A
£ 8 > R ZE AR AE AR JE AT 22
7R %1,084,500,0007T (&

—NE+_H=+—H: AR
909,172,0007C) H A £ [# =~ £ fiL#
TFFRAE AR ©
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20 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b)

Derivative financial instrument

As at 2 September 2019, the Group entered into
cross-currency interest rate swap contracts with
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited in respect
of short-term loans in aggregate of US$15,000,000
(equivalent to RMB104,940,000), under which the
Group converted the United States (“US”) dollar
loans at floating exchange rate into RMB loans
at fixed-rate. The purpose of the cross-currency
interest rate swap contracts is to hedge against the
interest rate risk and foreign currency risk of the
US dollar liabilities.

The cross-currency interest rate swaps contracts
matured in August 2020 matching the maturity of
the related loans. The Group applies a hedge ratio
of 1:1. The existence of an economic relationship
between cross-currency interest rate swap contracts
and the US dollar floating-rate borrowings is
determined by matching their critical contract
terms, including the reference interest rates, tenors,
interest repricing dates, maturity dates, interest
payment and/or receipt dates, the notional amounts
of the swaps and the outstanding principal amounts
of the loans.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk
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20 225 Be HAth HEAF#KIH )
(b)) HEEMIA

REF—NFENHH REEH
PE B IRAT (D) ARA A S AES
#H15,000,0003% ¢ (FHE R AR
104,940,0007C) Y5 HA B AT L2
Y EWRIANMEGH Bt A%
BB R B R R A B E T E K
G0 HA 2 4 [ E R AT AN RS
B FT R X BRI EEL
B E R T 2 8 35 0T B R =R
JE B T 4 55 L By o

IXEERPF RGN T
T A B BAR B B E I H
R R] o A G5 [ 8 1 1A S i B 2 o
TR E W R G K BRI
B R A7 TE B RS 7 B (R 22 0
Bl H EZ S KK (B2 E 7
R IR~ AR E R E E H > 2
S H ~ FUE AT OB, B IR H
) 2 R 2R DU BRI R (8
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20 Trade and other payables (continued) 20 225 By HAm EAT 3K H )
(b) Derivative financial instrument (continued) (b) MM TR )
The following table provides a reconciliation of the T R EF A 2 b ke A R B By
hedging reserve in respect of interest rate risk and S e At 1A S R 0 ST 1) o S B AR Y
foreign currency risk and shows the effectiveness of AR

the hedging relationships:

2020 2019
ECRE 24 —E U
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR AR T T

Balance at 1 January R—H—HZ &k 2) -
Effective portion of the cash TR LAt 22 TAT U 2 e B0

flow hedge recognised in other Hemahe

comprehensive income BE (1,867) (780)
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss 58777 8 £ 8 75 2 7K IH

(Note (i)) (Htita@)) 1,869 778

Balance at 31 December (Note (ii)) T _A=+—HZ
GEER (B aE D)) = 2)

Change in fair value of the forward 4 N & HAIMNE S8 2

exchange contracts during the year /3P {HEEH) (1,867) (780)
Effective portion of the cash RHEAM = E w2
flow hedge recognised in other Bemedme
comprehensive income (Note 9(b)) B R
(Ht&t9cw)) (1,867) (780)
Notes: WaE -
(i) Amounts reclassified to profit or loss are (1) ENOEERG ZAERGS
recognised in the “Other income” and “Finance 1825 R TH A U 2 ) B THA 75
costs” line item in the consolidated statement of A A E N RE RS (R T4 R
profit or loss (see Notes 4 and 5(a)). 5(a)) ©
(ii) The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates (ii) B 4 N 2 BT A SRR B R A

to continuing hedges. HHA R
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Contract liabilities 21 AHfafE
2020 2019
CB B —
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR AR T T

Aluminium profiles contracts A SR
— Billings in advance of performance —JB # TR FRIH 194,408 163,923
Completed properties for sale OB TREYE
— Forward sales deposits and —CE A E S
instalments received Je 53 B RR 3,262 104
197,670 164,027
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HOMEENaBESEMIGCERN — &
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: AT
- Aluminium profiles contracts — ETIM E4Y
When the Group receives a deposit before the il A B8 [ 7% AE 7E T Bl B 4G AT U S
production activity commences this will give rise Be RREHHBREEENE
to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until B HE RS AR AR 2
the revenue recognised on the contracts exceeds the SYE A 1L o S BHEE (A TIIR
amount of the deposit. The amount of the deposit, BEBBNEE P T -
if any, was negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers.
- Completed properties for sale — Eig TR EYE
The Group receives 50%-100% of the contract AEMERE P % EEE R IF I
value as a deposit from customers when they sign & & EERIS0% = 100%1F A 4%
the sales and purchase agreement. The deposit FoRHEHBB/ENABE BEE
is recognised as a contract liability until the MEATEEBETEP  c HEp(EHA
properties are legally assigned to the customer. AR E R SE AR T LA AT -

The rest of the consideration is typically paid when
legal assignment is completed.
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21

Contract liabilities (continued) 21

Movements in contract liabilities

H)

oy

S @

EEEH)

2020 2019
BRI “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Balance at 1 January R—HA—HZ &R 164,027 218,248
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of  [KIFfE 58 4E P9 I 2%
recognising revenue during the year that Gt AFYI &L AR
was included in the contract liabilities at MmEEZ GHEHE
the beginning of the year > (164,027) (218,248)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result (K] 8 725 V5 ) TR < K 0E T
of billing in advance of manufacturing B AL A ERS
activities 194,408 163,923
Increase in contract liabilities as a result Al R E R
of receiving forward sales instalments Yy 2 WO e B B
during the year in respect of properties not 7> IS M E K G4
delivered as at the year end A 3,262 104
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—HxZ
il B 197,670 164,027
No billings in advance of performance and forward sales i 4 i HXZ J& 49 TR ROTE B BB

instalments received is expected to be recognised as LEEN ¢

*hﬁ

income after more than one year (2019: Nil).

jﬂt)

I

AN —FRERRHWEA (ZF
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%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

Loans and borrowings 22 BXRRGE
At 31 December 2020, loans and borrowings were RZBZEZFTHA=1T—H EHKK
repayable as follows: EEEA T HAES :
2020 2019
— —e = ﬂi :g—hﬁz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NRHET T
Within one year —FEN 811,424 1,284,005
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEREN 171,250 349,200
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERERN 72,460 15,150
After 5 years FERE 75,158 50,057
318,868 414,407
1,130,292 1,698,412
At 31 December 2020, the loans and borrowings were ACEBCEBEF+_HAZ+—H BB
secured as follows: EERMFOT
2020 2019
— ? — = ﬂi :%gj‘[ﬁ?‘i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T A R¥HTIT
Secured bank loans and borrowings BIRFRITERREE 1,080,292 1,698,412
Unsecured bank loans and borrowings AT RITERRAMEE 50,000 -
1,130,292 1,698,412
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22

Loans and borrowings (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the secured bank loans were

secured by the following assets of the Group.

B a8 @
A\ oBEL A=+ BN
SRAT B 5 ph A 85 18] DL o 2 R MR o

2020 2019
TEORAg “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARET L NBRET T
Carrying value of assets: & AR -

Other property, plant and equipment HANYZE ~ g B 5L A
(Note 11) (Krazin) 577,227 602,309
Right-of-use assets (Note 12) fERREEE (fat12) 327,346 338,118
Pledged deposits (Note 18) EARIFER (W 7E18) = 8,402
Total S 904,573 948,829

As at 31 December 2020, banking facilities of the
Group totaling RMB9,377,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB7,690,366,000) were utilised to the
extent of RMB2,770,000,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB2,599,084,000).

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank loans of the
Group, amounted to RMB218,000,000 (31 December
2019: RMB339,000,000), are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiaries’ balance
sheet ratios, which are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down loans
would become repayable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set
out in Note 28(b). As at 31 December 2020, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down loans had been breached
(2019: Nil).

MRoBZZEFE+_H=+—H RAE
&4 AR %9,377,000,0007T (—-F—fL
FE+H=Z+—H : AE¥7,690,366,000
o) 2 WATEEH - AR 2,770,000,0007C
(ZEB—-NE+_HA=Z+—H: AR
2,599,084,0007T) & ELE) A o

RZEBZZFEE+F+_A=T—H K&
BETFRITERAR®218,000,0007T
(ZE-NFE+_HAH=+—H: @ AR¥%
339,000,0007T.) 285 2 B A B B 8 8 B
TEEAERLR Y (FRNRESH
MR 2 R HE) BT A EE o A
FEEHENZFELLY DRI ERER
ERGEBE AEETHHERERHEZERHE
SFELE LA o A WA EE R EE B
b > i T 2 — D SR WUR M EE28(b) ©
AN_EBECOFE+L A —H WER
RAEMARERRERZZL (F— N
) o



23

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5
Annual Report 2020 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

Lease liabilities 23 HHEAMH
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable RZB-ZE+_HA=Z+—H HE&
as follows: R R R 1 IR P 22
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NRHET T
Within 1 year —&ERN 2,368 6,907
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEREN 3,167 9,599
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBERERN 2,508 2,329
After 5 years B 848 1,993
6,523 13,921
8,891 20,828
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24

Deferred income

The movements in deferred income as stated under current

and non-current liabilities are as follows:

24

BAEWA

G ARED B SRR B ETH R 2
ZEREINN

AN A

2020 2019
— —e = ﬂi :g_‘hﬁz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NREHET T
At 1 January R—H—H 45,549 54,085
Received during the year RERNETS 11,668 16,818
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 4) RIE s NHERE (B 7E4) (26,274) (25,354)
At 31 December HmRt+—_H=+—H 30,943 45,549
Less: current portion included in trade and 7§ : %] A% 5 S HoAth
other payables (Note 20) JEE A #IE
T EER
(Ftat20) (16,280) (25,349)
14,663 20,200

Deferred income represents government grants obtained
for the purposes of subsidising the Group’s operation
costs and sponsoring the costs of acquisition of fixed
assets incurred by the Group. Government grants received
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as deferred income.

Government grants received to subsidise the operation
costs are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the related costs of
operation are incurred.

Government grants received for sponsoring costs of
acquisition of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the assets.

A% FIE WSOX A 0 A S A R [ B A RO
B A B [ W (] o E P E A R
i R A% 2 B 4 B 2 o ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ‘zﬂtf%ﬁ
By ) 25 TR i 6 B 5 IR 100 2% 19 T R 2
HEHA

L 77 e A2 A T R A 2 B e B <2 R
*EE%%“%Ekzliﬁ’izﬁﬂﬁﬂF?ﬁ% ik
B R R I M o

?Eﬂﬂlﬁ%lﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁi\z%ﬂmﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁl
15 Z BUN i B <82 4% & 2 FH & IR 4B 28
Wﬁﬁam
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Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has granted share options pursuant to a
share option scheme on 15 October 2018. Pursuant to
the share option scheme, the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to grant share options
to employees of the Group, including directors of any
Company in the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company and other eligible participants. The options
granted will vest after two years to four years from the date
of grant and are then exercisable on or before 14 October
2023. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

(a) Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows:

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25

(5 B 15875 BAALN RIEIT)
%%%%ﬁ”ﬁuﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ@i&

ARNFRZE—NE+ATLHARE—
T JFS I R S A2 L O P o AR R U AR
aFE > AN EE S BRI 1 A A 5
RE (WEAEBEEMREARERNH
b & F A% 2 B R R DGR I A A
Al A%y o JE 1T AR RE T B 1R A TR W
ENENFERBRERR _-F_=41A
P9 B 8z AR AT o £ W AR HE K
TRA NI A A R — B A A R
DURE W BUAS  o

(@ REZZF-NAEHHATRHRZEZ
SR HEREDT AT

Number of

Vesting conditions

Contractual life

underlying shares of options
MBI 2 8 H BB IEIE  WRBRE S R
Options granted to directors:
RO B T E 5 2 TR
—on 15 October 2018 204,334 2 years from the date of grant S5 years
——Z—/\E+A+HH % H % Fiked
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 3 years from the date of grant S years
——Z—/\$ftH+HH HfZHH M=% LA
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 4 years from the date of grant S years
——Z—/SE+A+THH B H & L
Options granted to employees:
KU BHIZ T 18 B 2 FE AR
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 2 years from the date of grant 5 years
——Z—/SE+ATLH % B #% w4 A
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 3 years from the date of grant 5 years
——Z—-/\E+A+THH AR HHBE=F L
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 4 years from the date of grant 5 years
——Z—/\$ftH+HH EEGEp il JutkaE A

Total share options granted

C R AR

4,180,000
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25

Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(a)

Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows: (continued)

The exercise of the options granted on 15 October
2018 is conditional upon (i) the fulfilment of
certain requirements on the Company as set out
in the respective offer letters, including, among
others, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries having achieved the financial
performance target, the auditor expressing no
disclaimer or adverse opinion in the annual
financial report of the Group, there being no
relevant institutions, supervisory boards or audit
departments for state-owned assets investors raising
major objections to the annual financial report of
the Group and there being no significant breaches
by the Company or punishment of the Company
by relevant government authorities; and (ii) the
fulfilment of certain requirements on the grantee
as set out in the respective offer letters, including,
among others, there being no serious dereliction of
duty by the grantee, there being no breach of any
rules or regulations or constitution of the Company
by the grantee, there being no corruption or other
violations and misconducts by the grantee which
caused damage to the Company and there being no
situations where the grantee fails to perform his/her
duties up to the required standard or fails to pass
the assessments of the Group.

25

v

5 (41)

(a)

R A TRARZZ
L REREDS T @ D

REZF—-\E+ATHEAREZ
AR REZH N DU B IE I R 1R 77
AIATAE ()RR AT 25 4 bR 1 A
ARAFZETRE HHhEERE
Bl 3% 8 5K A BR 2 7] B EL T B 4 ]
ELEE S B 248 H AR A BT I %
LA 5 B 2 £F I P O RO I
BRAERNEERGERR ; I %
B A & B NI BE A B
& B BT A G A T
B fE HE KRR DU AR A H]
A8 e 3 AE B KR AT B B
oA UM A R B 5 e (i) AT 75 &
K R I OB RN 2 T RE
ORI S EPNI£1Y &N S
2N i 78 S A A A R B A1) B
NI DR S E PN £ 3= R 1=
HoAth & RAT 7 R AN EAT R T A
N FVE AR K 5 DR i 38 A R A
NI T B A L0 B O B 2 2 AR
EE A R R
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Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)
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25 DUARRESS T LAR b7 2 SE IR 52

5 &)
The number and weighted average exercise (b) I FBE R ) B NRE ST Y947 0 4
prices of share options are as follows: T
2020 2019
— ? —% ﬂi ZE- L
Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
il SRR C | RS DT AT R B RERLH
000 ‘000
TH TH
Outstanding at the beginning of FERNEARATEE HKD5.46 HKD5.46
the year 5.461 70 4,180 5.461TT 4,180
Exercised during the year FERETH HKD5.46
5461 7T (68) - -
Forfeited during the year FERERK HKD5.46
5461 C (85) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4R M AT HKD5.46 HKD5.46
5.46i7C 4,027 5.4617C 4,180

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ fEAR AT

Save as disclosed above, no share option was
lapsed, cancelled or exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HKD7.87.

The weighted average share price immediately
before the dates on which the share options were
exercised was HKD7.86.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020 had
an exercise price of HKD5.46 (2019: HKDS5.46)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 2.79 years (2019: 3.79 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of
RMB1,794,000 during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB2,325,000).

HKD5.46
S.461T 1,309 - -

b ECRTEE SN R E B
BEF A= —HILEE HE
o I 20k M Y M AT A o

FENTAT R AERATEH
JNRE V25 B (B 7% 7.8 THE T

B2 I R RE S8 AT (6 3 AT RS £
FE - 15 (8 A7 8615 T ©

RoZZZE+_H=+—H "
AT i B > AT (B 5 5.4606 7T
(=T — L4 5.461T0) B INAE
R G A TEI A2 79F (2%
— LA D 3.794E) o

BE_ZE-_F2F+__H=1T—H
IEFE o A B B R BB I AR B <2 N
R #1,794,0007C (ZF—JLF © A
2 325,0007T) °
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Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(o)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on a binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice
model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date (HK$) 1.74 ~ 1.78
Share price (HK$) 5.27
Exercise price (HKS$) 5.46
Expected volatility 45.10%
Option life 5 years
Expected dividends 2.70%
Risk-free interest rate 2.38%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market

conditions associated with the share option grants.

25

LIRS e & 5 AR By 2 BREBRE V) 22
5 ()

(0

$ik P HE 1Y) 2 -1 B R %

L 58 45 T 452t B s A LA IR 75 Y
NE 92 BT R R A
FAERH & o AT H AR RERY A FE
i B 7545 — IE AR P A A o
PRt 2 &R IR E A 1 IR ALY
i AR - HFUE A E TR
TRBATHEZ FHIA -

SRR ET 23T e (i
REHEH R

NVAE &) 1.74~1.78
R A8 (&) 5.27
T8 &) 5.46
TH A1 & 45.10%
F1FS PS4 14 54
THHEARR B 2.70%
48 R B A 2.38%

I IR 8 77 LA 42 H A R ) Jon
15 R 8% 47 0 s B A JEE S TR 2y 2
e 3lf W% o3 B A S &R B AT
] PRI AR I IR A Bl F H g % o 7]
%kuﬁufﬁkMDSOEEF
UNEEEIE- Sl VAR N A
AHELERTE-

il P R 9 AR AR IR S 10 A 432 H o I
R w8 A IR 5 718 152 i B A
A 2 P (BB I i 5 S P o i PR A
P 3 S B 7 TS5 AR 1 o
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Income tax in the consolidated statement 26

of financial position

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement

REE M BHIR DR N Z PGBl

(a) RESMBHIRDLR AN Z BBIBIH

of financial position represents: 5 :
2020 2019
TR TRAE ZE-LE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR NRBFor
At 1 January R—H—H 68,648 52,806
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities B8543 B %8 ZE £7 78 & (& 6,000 4,000
Transfer from prepayment for LAT B 5 - #14 (EHH
TR 3R - -
Provision for LAT A A
(Note 6(a)) (Htat6(a)) 1,332 4,842
Provision for CIT H [ T A5 A6 138
(Note 6(a)) (Ht#t6(a)) 113,931 111,018
Income tax paid Ef ¢ (135,050) (101,826)
LAT paid BT I B R (848) (2,192)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 54,013 68,648
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26 JR&SMBIRIEAN 2 i
of financial position (continued) ()
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EMERRBEHLARIEE I Al
@) Movement of each components of @@ BRI 5 R BLE %08
deferred tax assets and liabilities 172 5B
The components of deferred tax assets/ T NTR AT & I 55 R I 2 e
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated uMZLLﬁIE 5,/ (AE)
statement of financial position and the SHACE A B AR BN -
movements during the year are as follows:
Unrealised
Temporary profit from
Temporary  differences intra-group  Government
Impairmentof ~ differences from pre- Amortisation ~~ transfer of grants in Undistributed
non-current  from right- sales of Credit loss of capitalised ~~ certain land deferred Cashflow  profit of PRC
financial assets ~~ of-use assets properties allowance Taxloss”  contract costs use right income hedges  subsidiaries Total
MR
BRT L L
Deferred tax assets/labilties) i’k 2 RERS G MRERE.  REMEL FALAS  EMEEE  BERARL ﬁm'ﬁ]
arising fom i/ () GHEERE  EEE ENEE GHENRR  RSBR OUKRR REREN  BMENE  RENEMM  AMRRA 4t
R [B w RMB0D RVBO00 RMBI0D RMBO0D RMBO00 RMB U RMBO0D RMBI00 RMBI00 RMBO0D
A\RBFT  ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At lanary 2019 e 1787 - 6951 348 (966 18129 8183 - (4420 H0%
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss
(Note 6a)) 4 70% 2450 966 (3.981) (336) - (11,188) (5.004)
Transferred to current tax - - - - - - - 4000 4000
At31 December 2019
1,787 4 14007 5893 14148 7757 - (11,609 30,08
At January 2020 1787 4 14007 5803 14148 115 - (11,609 3208
Credited!(charged) to profit o loss
(Note z)) (#attia)) - - 7989 308 197 (219 - (5,368) 3310
Credited/(charged) to reserves REER (%) - - - - - - 852 - 852
Transferted to current tax BREMNRE - - - - - - 6,000 6,000
At31 Decenber 2020 i
T2A=-R 1781 9 1% 8911 - 13551 5565 85 (10g77) 019
& Deferred tax assets are recognised on # I AE FR TH & E 2 A
unused tax losses of certain subsidiaries EEETHNEBARM
of the Group. They are now progressing 5f§ B F 75 s 48 T

to their normal operation stage and
are deriving profits. Accordingly, it
is considered probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available in the
future to utilize their unused tax losses
before they expire. As at 31 December
2020, tax losses of RMB33,612,000 will
expire from 2022 to 2025.

w8 o E N E H AT IE %
e g R = e
B AR T o R A
BRAREAEEG A L
S 1) JEE B B 3 R LU AE
FI| 1A AT R B) A
B R T FE
+ZHA=+—0 FHE
K5 1E N R 33,612,000
TR _-E . FF
TE AT o
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Income tax in the consolidated statement 26
of financial position (continued)

(b)

(o)

(continued)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

REE M BHIR LR N Z P13l

(#)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CRERRERERHEE E R A )
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) GG AR N B
statement of financial position
2020 2019
TR TRAR ZE-NE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR TIT AR T T
Net deferred tax assets RErE M BRI R
recognised in the T 30 2 208 S 5 TH
consolidated statement of EEFE
financial position 53,171 43,641
Net deferred tax liability REFE M BRI R
recognised in the TR 2 R I A IH
consolidated statement of B EFE
financial position (10,977) (11,609)
42,194 32,032
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) AT 58 2 25 HE 52 0 £ 4

The Group is subject to 5% withholding tax on

dividends receivable from its PRC subsidiaries

in respect of their profits ge
1 January 2008. As at 31 De

nerated since
cember 2020,

deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary

differences relating to such undis

tributed profits

of RMB3,043,871,000 (2019: RMB2,362,516,000)
were not recognised as the Company controls the

dividend policy of these subsidia

ries and it has

been determined that those profits will not be

distributed in the foreseeable future.

AEEEAREABHELTIRNE A
AE_ZZEN\FE—H—HREAM
E AR TR R A U R B AN S % 1Y
ISR o H A AR 2N 5] 28 1l 5% 55 b
J& A A BB BRIl B R E R
g A B R 2IR A B A i
R-B_FE+_H=+—H"
3 AR B 5% F R 0 IR I RN R
3,043,871,0007C (ZF— L4 © A
R #2,362,516,00070) A B 89
FERERE R R A R TH &L o
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends 27 RS~ (i B g RS
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) 25 5 by 5 )
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEG A S0 2 FEV &
closing balances of each component of the Group’s ARG BIRENR A SR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated By 3R o AN FIE B RE % 45 R £ 7R
statement of changes in equity. Details of the FYIRAFERZ BENFEFRINO R

changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:

The Company ¥y VAY|
Share Share Capital Other Exchange Retained
capital premium Reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
ek Rebrii Rkt A TSk REEA @it
Note RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

W# AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARETE
Note 27(c) ~ Nowe27(d)i)  Note 27 (d)(ii) ~ Note 27 (d)ii) ~ Note 27 (d)(v)
Ware  War@n KR 7@ iR @)

Balance at 1 January 2019 REE-NE
—R—Hz &k 2 3731 179,568 561 441976 (21,497) 4114 608,453

Changes in equity for 2019 ZE-NEERERS

Profit for the year EERA - - - - - U231 74031
Other comprehensive income [t 2% - - - - 10820 - 10,820
Total comprehensive income R G4

for the year - - - - 10,820 74231 85,051
Recognition of Employees” FERR (B B A 21

Share Option Scheme 25(b) - - 2325 - - - 2325
Dividend approved in respect ~ ZFHEZRE

of the previous year 27(b) - - - - - (73,465) (73,465)
Balance at 31 December 2019~ RZ—fLE

and at 1 January 2020 TZAZH-HR

“E-ZE-f-H
Zhth 2 371 179,568 2,886 41,976 (1067) 4,880 622,364

Changes in equity for 2020 CECTEVEGED - - - - - - -
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - 92,164 92,164
Other comprehensive loss Lt 2EER - - - - (33,794) - (33,794)
Total comprehensive income/  FERHNE/ (B

(loss) for the year @ - - - - (33.794) 92,164 58,370
Shares issued due to exercise of [T (FRER et 27T

Share Option Scheme Tt 27e) | 417 (102) - - - 316
Recognition of Employees’ R B R fEe 31

Share Option Scheme 25(b) - - 1,794 - - - 1,794
Dividend approved in respect ~ EFHEZKE

of the previous year 27(b) - - - - - (106,904) (106,904)

Balance at 31 December 2020 R-E-F4E
+-A=1-H
bd i » 373 179,985 4578 41,97 (w4471 (9.860) 575,940
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Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 27  FEA ~ it B B B )
(b)  Dividends b EE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) HEMREEZ AL A
of the Company attributable to the year R
2020 2019
e 22 —ZE—hE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFL AR TIT
Final dividends proposed TR R AR R AR
after the end of reporting IR 2 RIARS B
year of HKDO0.36 per 19 A% ¥ 0 10368 T
ordinary share (ZZE—-NF
(2019: HKDO0.28) 1%0.28#70) 126,697 105,324

(ii)

The final dividend proposed after the end of

the reporting period has not been recognised

as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders

RS AR ER IR Z
R T PR R I B S S R
s EE

(i) BREAMMER TN E—

of the Company attributable to the M JH B A JE 2 JE A A 23
previous financial year, approved and T as R AR
paid during the year
2020 2019
BB —ZE-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT L N RHTT
Final dividends in respect of  JA4E L7 B
the previous financial year IRAS b —1H
approved and paid during W B 1 2 R
the year, of HKDO0.28 per % JE g R S
ordinary share 0.28% L (ZE—L
(2019: HKDO0.20) 1 0.20H#87T) 106,904 73,465
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27

(c) Share Capital

i) Issued share capital

AN ~ fifi i B B B )
() A

i)  EBEITRAE

2020 2019
et 22 “ENE
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares fully paid shares
it ¢ SEm b B8 E SRR
RMB RMB
equivalent equivalent
('000)  HKD’000 000 (‘000)  HKD000 000
(TH) Tk FH (TH#) T#T Flr
AR T ANREFL
Ordinary shares, issued CLBAT e
and fully paid
At 1 January #—A—H 418,000 4,180 3,731 418,000 4,180 3,731
Shares issued under share (R R R A BT IO 1
option scheme 68 1 1 - - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 418,068 4,181 3,732 418,000 4,180 3,731

The ordinary shares of the Company has a

par value of HKDO0.01 per share.

(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme

In November 2020, share options were
exercised to subscribe for 68,200 (2019:
Nil) ordinary shares in the Company at
a cash consideration of HKD373,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB316,000),
of which RMB578 and RMB417,000 were
credited to share capital and the share

premium account respectively. The balance
of RMB102,000 was transferred from
the capital reserve to the share premium

account in accordance with the Company’s

accounting policy set out in note 1(s)(ii).

AN F] A R AR 2
PR 70,0178 7T

(i) ROZHER A 2T R
78

MRIZEB_FE+—H
A% HE AT 3 LRI A A H]
68,200/ (=& — JL4 :
mOMER HERESA
373,000 T (FHHE R AR
#316,0007T) » H i AR
5787C ;v N R 417,0007T 47
A ET AR A e RS 93 1h (B R
MK 1(s) (DAL
A& EBOR &SR AR
102,0007T E H & A f# 4 4
7 2 A7) T (B R o
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the

issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance on
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the re-organisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the re-organisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

27 A GE R BB )

(@)  GEEETEE R

(i)

(ii)

S 0 it (K

f% 03 i {8 45 AR 2 &) B A T
{EL B2 8 47 A % A AR 0 WO
A T 15 R0 2 [ ) 22 5

R SRELFE AL
A 2 AR 03 i 18 AR B L A Gk
IR ER A DIRTRER
MEEERTIRKREEA
&> AL FRAETE EH R B
HEDBEPI &S -

HA it

PN R R E IV AN
W 2 2R (a) O W P S
O\ )R 63 6 1B R 2 B AR T
HEBHA SR BoO) RN
AIRBR_-ZEFNFE_H
ZHAHAEHEEHAR
AT AT > B T {H o

AN E] 2 HA R LR
Wi 2 728 () T B
NAEZHGEEEFE; A
(DA A FRER ZFF )\
FZAZTNAAEEE
AH 7 22 T 24T 2 B A T
B
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27

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- waivers of liabilities due to related

parties; and

- the portion of the grant date fair
value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the
Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 1(s)(ii).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity
shareholders.

PRC statutory reserves can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to equity shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

27

HEAR ~ it e B B )
@ REGRPEEI R & ()
Gii) BB
7 4 LR A0

- EE R EA R
JTEME ;R

- RFARLAFREREAEM
RAT = i i HE
RHEAHAVFEZ
H AR EE1(s)
(i)l DURR £ 7% 25 1
Z AR & Eh
BURHERR

(iv)  HELE

HREE RS IIREA W
PR AR R R B E DL R R R
RN E S =R F
FEAH R 5% 37 © B 8B 2 W) 78 i
1 HOR B A B g sk R R
M E 242 E/D10%
BEE—RHEH BEREH
ZRFEMEAR Z50%5 15
6] 5% {3 5 P F 0843 A% JELAE
73 IR B S T RE A % SR A
fEH -

R E 7 1 T DLHR B
WAEEE 2 iR (A) » il
AR R RE 25 A% IR A AR R
B 4 b bR ) A F B AT
T PR £ W 48 e RS S T
BT B Z & AE DR
MERZ25% °
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies with functional currency other
than RMB.

(vi)  Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in
the fair value of hedging instruments used
in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 1(g).

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB572,208,000 (2019: RMB618,633,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5 BH5H75h » BUABLLN R IEF)
27 KA Gl BB )
@  BEETET RN ()
v) R
VE 53 BE {8 0 45 (K] B I B
O IE B A R IR A T
i 5 R 2 T 2 AR 2 BT A B
R
oi) B
IR (T 2
B AT R Y & R B

B RS AERGH
BRERH MRS REH

SHREHMZE M IAR
’\${E?~uﬂ¥f A 2 B
By

(e)  nIfkoy IRIK B

REFBZFEF+A=+—H A&
NEZ A IR EAAE A AR
#572,208,0007C (=& —JLE © A
K #618,633,0007C) °

"  AAREH

AEENEZEAGHBE RS R
PEA RSB HIRE S 1R E
JeRL g 7K - 7 7 it B R A5 E (B > i 1A
BEEARGME MBS RE
TR B8 e 7% Hp 00 5 12 48 A
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27

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(®

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity, other than amounts
recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges

less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2020, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2019, was to maintain the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio at a level considered
reasonable by the Group’s management from time
to time with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

27

AN ~ fifi i B B B )

(®

HAAEH ()

A B8 R AT E AR T O B R
K@%.uf@ﬁﬁﬁﬁgmﬁT
AIE 7 2 2 e R B (B 3 B XA 7T 4
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%@ 5 R PR R
ﬁ%?ﬁ’ﬁ%mﬁF%%ﬁﬁﬁ
EARRMETHE -

ARE IR EE AR LR
BEEARM UL S > AR
R A B T (O 3R 2 (8 B MR
(BfEFEERREE DIAHEE
B8 IR Bt 2 kA B BB 4 e
BB FEY DUk B A7 R KEER
BEARGIEER AR (B
I B A B R A TR R
BRARRAN) BOR AR AR o

NERIDFE AEEZRIEE
FoNERF AR RE RS
%Wﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬂ$%l&ﬁ
& 48 2 %5 B W T AR R AR 2
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27 A GE R BB )

Capital management (continued) f) HAEM )
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at AEFMPR _F _FER _F—N
31 December 2020 and 2019 was as follows: FHZA=Z T —H KRB RE
BEARLERMT
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
— 7 — = ﬂi :%gﬂﬁi
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W&t AR T T AR T T
Current liabilities: MBI E 3
Loans and borrowings B G 22 811,424 1,284,005
Lease liabilities HE& {a 23 2,368 6,907
813,792 1,290,912
Non-current liabilities: JEEN A
Loans and borrowings BHREMEE 22 318,868 414,407
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 6,523 13,921
Total debt & 5 HE R 1,139,183 1,719,240
Add: Proposed dividends 7Ju : @é%ﬁx% 27(b) 126,697 105,324
Less: Cash and cash I e S
equivalents EEY 19 (509,639) (528,003)
Pledged deposits SR ER 18 (170,558) (327,037)
Adjusted net debt R R A S TR R 585,683 969,524
Total equity E 25 4 HH 3,697,933 3,038,880
Less: Hedging reserve IR B 27(d) 4,830 2
Proposed dividends R R 27(b) (126,697) (105,324)
Adjusted capital KRBEE AR 3,576,066 2,933,558
Adjusted net debt-to- KA FAEE
capital ratio EEK 16 % 33%
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27

28

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(®

Capital management (continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
except that banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the subsidiaries’ balance
sheet ratios (Note 22). The Group will actively and

regularly monitor its compliance to such covenants.

Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks

and commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the

Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable and
derivative financial assets is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions,
for which the Group considers to have low credit

risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

27

28

AN ~ fifi i B B B )

(®

BAABH (4

A F) B H AT AR B B A RS 2
HhFRE A RLE IR M T T
J& 23 7 B SRAT A5 & A WUk 8 A A
M&EEAaBERBITHSE (iE22)
R A o A 55 [ 17 o A i ) B 2 L2

7 % Lt o

SRlEEER R S TR A

T

REE - RENE S M H - &% N H
1% HR BT AR 32 22 B R A R 2 H R SE S
BREEL -

oA 52 2 5 L A 3 D L
L % W 2 L A BB
ST -

(a)

{5 F B

FEEERBEZXZHFRETHES
A T B A I R M S
TR R - A 58 915 B e
o H 225 YRR » IR 22 5
AR EEE N A E R R A IRAT
e s AR > TRLEE A SR R IE 2K B
BB EFEY  BIRER AT
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7 55 [ S 2 A (A B 0 A R
AR EE R IR -



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5

Annual Report 2020 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30-180 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 1 month past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. Significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, less than 1%
(2019: 2%) and 13% (2019: 12%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within industrial aluminium and

construction aluminium.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

28 ERlEESHEEREMTHRZA
EAH )

(@) fHHEEE G
K4 MEW K

ALEECHIEGEE RS EECK
Bt EREEE M AR E
BT EESENE R ET ZEF
il 88 FR A R B ST AT B AOE B9 A
TEFCRE BRI B 5T ZRE 77 0 3l 25 R
BREE KR P L8 T E &5
RIBEARNREEER X5 BB
FTh EEEHAE30E 180K N E
HH o R R A g — A R (E 55 N ZE
NI E RIEERER TiRE
FREMEIMEE — Rz A%
5 3117 f H &P AR A o o

AREMNE LR 2 TERER
A 4 B AR RS E A o S B RS
i TR R 2 A T T A AR R
&l Bl 2 5 A & 55 K J I A 35 By
Ao AR HASR 0 22 5 I R IR R 4R
BZARELI% (ZE—LE 1 2%) &
13% (T —L4E : 12%) 7 A K 8
AN EE T TSR A R R SR ER A
SEBBRARBE R R AKREF
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(a)

28 SMEPEEBRESM T HZA
AE )

Credit risk (continued) (a) {5 B m k% (42)
Trade receivables (continued) KB IEW IR ()
The Group measures loss allowances for trade B (B o BAL S P A AR B S B
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, 2HEEEBEMEEN SRS
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As B A2 5 MEWCRR SR 5 48 45 4 o FH R
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does 7GR Y 1 (E B S 1E A5 AR
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for FURAFZR P 2 e LR
different customer segments, the loss allowance ARHEEAS W RE—DES K
based on past due status is not further distinguished £ AR 2% 2 A 2 BT T Y O
between the Group’s different customer bases. TEHE o
The following table provides information about the R AR A B A AR B E UK
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade B KT [ B 15 B R e & THEE &
receivables: R E R
2020
BB
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR E LR HE i 48 1 W L 13
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Current (not past due) RVHA (R ) 0.50% 1,165,701 5,829
1 - 180 days past due AIA1IE180K 5.00% 1,168,439 58,422
181 - 360 days past due AHA181 360K 10.00% 143,316 14,332
361 - 720 days past due 361 E720K 50.00% 46,723 23,362
More than 720 days past due 1 # 720K 100.00% 41,991 41,991

2,566,170 143,936
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28 Financial risk management and fair 28 EEPEEBE R EM T HZ A
values of financial instruments (continued) YAl )
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) {5 B m k% (42)
Trade receivables (continued) KB IEW IR ()
2019

—F U
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEE R R R 48 (E 1R
% RMB 000 RMB 000

ANRHT T ANRHT T

Current (not past due) BURA Rz ) 0.50% 1,478,207 7,391
1 - 180 days past due A1 180K 5.00% 583,321 29,166
181 — 360 days past due A 181F360K 10.00% 26,478 2,648
361 — 720 days past due #HAZ61 720K 50.00% 52,050 26,025
More than 720 days past due  #1 # B #E720K 100.00% 25,836 25,836
2,165,892 91,066
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEAARSRIL R il = F N E
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are BRI RSB A B o ZE LR KA
adjusted to reflect differences between economic B DU M 68 TR SR R A R B 4
conditions during the period over which the historic TR ~ B AR e DR AN 68 [ ¥
data has been collected, current conditions and WKk T B T A AT A A A R AR
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the R 2 BT E R -

expected lives of the receivables.
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(bR 53 B 151 AR LN R I ST)

28 Financial risk management and fair 28
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

SREEER R S TR A

AH )
@  (EEERE )
25 I (49)

TN 22 5 IEWGRIE Y 5 1843 1 PR

of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEIAT
2020 2019
e Jwe %: 3 —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N RIET T
Balance at 1 January R—H—HZ &6k 91,066 42,907
Amounts written off during the year 4F P Hifi 85 <28 — (137)
Impairment losses recognised T BE 518 52,870 48,296

Balance at 31 December RT-HA=+—H

Z HEER 143,936 91,066

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amounts of trade receivables contributed

to the increase in the loss allowance during 2020:

- increase in 1 — 180 days past due resulted
in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB29,256,000 (2019: RMB23,543,000);
and

- increase in days past due over 180 days
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB25,176,000 (2019: RMB25,718,000);
and

DT #ER_Z _ZFEREHE
B4R 22 7 Wik Y B B T AEE

OB REEE)

- AR BUIE M 2180 K&
ks 1E A o N R
29,256,0007T (=% — JL4E .
N E#523,543,0007T) ; X

— AR B B 180K
BB AR
25,176,0007T (=35 — JL4
AN E#525,718,0007T) ; M
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

28 ERlEESHEEREMTHRZA
EAH )

(b) BN b

A B DL Y8 I AS B B A B
HEXENHSEHE (BEHS AR
Y R 1 4% 8 Db 38 B R R DA o
B SRR EREEBES
TIHERERIHKH AR #EHE
L - AR B A EOR T E I B
Ha#EeREARETHEEL
FRAGIE B0 > DURE O #E 57 78 2 31 < ik
GECASEIE ST E-2 Y4
FESMEMRERAENNE
SR DUEA HE R R RS
HEoHRE-
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities (excluding contract liabilities) and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including

28 SMEPEEBRESM T HZA
AE )

() HEE b AT

TRIPRRHE PR A EEZ IE
MmEsMasE CEBREHa®
ZRIER S BN AIE > T 5 KR
MBS & (B S R
(AN Eh) 4% 8 R < BAAT A
Rt B2 FEIH) fe AR HAK

interest payments computed using contractual rates Nz eEHFE
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
2020
“ECEE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARARMBB SR
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
Iyearor  lessthan  lessthan More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 Dec
g |
~ERR R R =1t—H
Bk HEEAN  MAEER  LER it HRmfE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTX ARBTE ARBTE ARBT ARBTL AW T
Loans and borrowings BAREE 820434 178,747 83,071 92971 1175223 1,130,292
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,557 6,334 3,059 1,103 18,053 8,891
Bills payables, creditors and TEf 4R R RAR
accrued charges* TERHE M 3,305,342 - - - 3305342 3,305,342

4,133,333

185,081 86,130 94,074 4,498,618 4,444,525
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28 Financial risk management and fair 28 EEPEEBE R EM T HZ A
values of financial instruments (continued) YAl )
Liquidity risk (continued) (b) i B & E b ()
2019
“E0g
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHAREHA ST
More than ~ More than

Within 1 yearbut 2 years but Carrying
1 year or on less than less than ~ More than amount
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  at31 Dec
Rt=A
—ERR —ER WER =t—H
EER [ERERN  (HEER LR HE ZHREME
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB 000

NRETT ARKTT

NRBTT ARBTIE ANRFTT ARKTT

Loans and borrowings BAREE 1309216 377,196 26,707 53,714 1,766,833 1,698,412

Lease liabilities fEaH 7,082 10,526 3,008 2,657 23,273 20,828
Bills payables, creditors and BT ER ERRAR

accrued charges* TEFE M 2,712,739 - - - QTI2T39 2,712,739

4020037 387,722 29,715 56371 4502845 4431979

* The balance included trade payables, bills * A5 B O 15 38 S JEAT 0 ~ JE AT

payable, accrued payroll and benefits, other
payables and accruals and interest payable, which
were financial liabilities in nature.

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting
to RMB822,240,000 were due to be repaid during
2021 (2019: RMB1,311,425,000). The short-term
liquidity risk inherent in this contractual maturity
date was not significantly changed after the
reporting period.

IR EEFE TR H
I R R JEE a2 R
FIE - T5 8 T A (A °

AN b 3 AT TR 0 A R [ A BN
R #822,240,0007T (=& — JL4E :
A B #1,311,425,00070) Z BITE
R HHBF R IR =% = —
ERNEHAH T EE - RA SR
H & A 2 55 1 B & 2 a5 8
5 AR I S B KB o
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(c) Interest rate risk

(ii) below.

28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)
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a3 S 5 W R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

EREEEMREEM T HZ A
AE )

(¢)  FI=RJE kg
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or P2 b A2 @l T B 2 A FEE
future cash flows of a financial instrument will R I B U R (R JE T 3 R R s
fluctuate because of changes in market interest By 177 187 Bl < L B o A B 2 )R R
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily f =K B RIME & o iR B A =2
from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at B [ E M R 3 2 g B 5 B2 AR
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to B8 B 25 K 52 B <8 i B R 2R L B
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest OB ) 28 L B o AN 6 [ 78 TR i
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate R8RS (ii) ©
profile as monitored by management is set out in
@) Interest rate profile ) ik /%
The following table, as reported to the MAEEEEEMERZ
management of the Group, details the EE RNt
interest rate profile of the Group’s interest- REtEAMEE 2 M
bearing borrowings at the end of the
reporting period.
2020 2019
SRR “E-nE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
BRI 2 BRAMX £
000 ‘000
T 77T
Fixed rate borrowings: ERMEE
Lease liabilities HEAR 4.90% 8,891 4.90% 20,828
Bank loans RITER 2.90%-4.51% 509,684 3.48% - 5.13% 878,318
518,575 899,146
Variable rate borrowings: FEMEE:
Bank loans RITEM 3.55%-499% 620,608 3.90% - 5.23% 820,094
Total borrowings fEE4E 1,139,183 1,719,240
Fixed rate borrowings as a ERERGEE
percentage of total borrowings HHEED 46% 52%
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMBS5,123,000 (2019: RMB6,904,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2019.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

EREEEMEEM T HZ A
EAH )

(¢)  FIRkE A7)
i) BISE B

W _FFE+ ZH
=t+—H" fEaﬁlJ%?éﬁ%L
4, R E1001E E By - H
LTS 5 B R R RN
> bR 1% T F) R £ B
R Bk /> I H N R
5,123,0007C (=% — JL4E .
A B #6,904,0007T) ©

At BORK EE o3 AT i A B

2 bR 1% i A e £R B 3 A
A BE 74 2 B HG S5 8l o f5URK
& 53 BT (R B ) =8 4 ) A Y

HHAREKHEE WEHR
HH et B AL BT A
T R R {6 A R 1B D B
NP EA R R % F
il T o it A 2 1 S ¥ o 4
KA A Z FEA R IEM
AT HMELZBRERA
RS AL R
& 8 A B OR B i A 2 R
T3 LU A B I 2 5 B T
A ZH B HEA ZFE
JE 5 BAR LT o 5% AT T3 2L
SE-NEZR - EREE

4.

1T o
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases which
give rise to receivables, payables and cash balances
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily HKD and USD.

28

EREEEMREEM T HZ A
AE )

(d)

T D B

ANRMEAIER] B Bk G m
i & < I H o B 2 32 o B BURE P
it T < SN Rl o A< 52 [ 3= E A i
DB EL 3 75 1 il = 2 BE & W LUSH
<EBaEHERBE (HEE
BB UACRR I~ A R UH B B 4 A )
A B R B o 52 B B T B T
TR FETC o
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.
Difference resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency is excluded.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

EREEEMEEM T HZ A
EAH )

(d)  BWERE G
G) SRR

R RN =
RIELLA T A YA B
Dz Bt EZ B
MREENBEERTELEZ
B W R R R A o st 25 H HY
5 B AN 2 SR
REHIR - W DUFERE H 2 B
BRME - MBI ET I
BHREREAEHEN B
P E A 2 2B A B S TE
7 o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

s HOYNS 3
2020 2019
Btk 4 “E-NE
HKD UsD HKD UsD
#r F#r Er E
000 000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T I
Trade and other receivables 5 R A R 8,954 4,846 7,899 10,816
Cash and cash equivalents HERHEEEN 21,256 20,901 16,924 12,466
Trade and other payables o R EMEMS IR (18,128) (13,304) (14,748) (15,148)
Loans and borrowings BRI EE - = = (52,322)
Gross and net exposure CHREERAR
arising from recognised B RREERFE
assets and liabilities 12,082 12,443 10,075 (44,188)
Notional amounts of forward Fi R4k e 2 25 AR
exchange contracts used as SNEGHZ Hme R
economic hedges - - - 53,018
Net exposure arising from CHDEERAR
recognised assets and liabilities EEZERTE 12,082 12,443 10,075 8,830
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

United States Dollars E
Hong Kong Dollars Y

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period

for presentation purposes.

28 LR PR R B TR 2 A
PE )
(@  BWEkEE)
Gi)  BIRSES
AR BT i A 5 R
HIRA R E A <
RRax H AT A Rk
Pt A A B 4 A 7 AN
> AR 2 BRAR Tt A e
r B it A ] Bk 81 BT IR
S -
2020 2019
SRy “E- N
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on profit (decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign  after tax and in foreign  after tax and
exchange rate retained profit  exchange rate  retained profit
HirH® HIRR%
WREA/  WARGRE  EXLA/ EARRE
(FH) BRIz (TR BNzEE
000 ‘000
T 77
1% 124 1% 64
1% 121 1% 79
ER BN Z 5 AR AE

AEBEAFTMUEEH 2
AE B Wt B 2 BRA & T A
KN HERE 2 & At R 52 28 0 Sif
2SI E B S MR 2
HERIE T AR -
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2019.

Commodity price risk

The Group used commodity futures contracts in

the Shanghai Futures Exchange to manage the

commodity price risk exposure in respect of the

highly probable forecast purchase of aluminium
products. The Group designates those commodity
future contracts as hedging instruments in cash
flow hedges and does not separate the forward and

spot element of the commodity future contracts but

instead designates the commodity future contract in

its entirety in a hedging relationship.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

28 RlEESHEEREMTHRZA
EAE )

(d)

(e)

W B ()
(i) BIEIE R BT (D

B0 R 73 T (PR % E R B
MOEHAMENGEZF
TS R T R o A R B K
2 90 E B 2 A B R
BT R B LLE R
fE RN T BE & T LU B W
AHE < & B A A A A E S
THIE e JEE WORK I o 53 A 3t A
LI 1 B e A0 2 5 5
REAEHEY BT E
LR ERE F
—JUFAR A 2 HE B AT

R i (A L B

A GBI B A 5 P
B A #E LA B ARCBUR & Y
TEU ST B 7 1 T (A LB
AEERZEH BB ESNEE
7 BB B R A B TR R
WoRBE M RSN ER K
Bty TR R B B R R R R
ET A E SR
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

(e)

Commodity price risk (continued)

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and
determines the existence of an economic
relationship between the commodity future
contracts and the highly probable forecast purchase
transactions based on: the underlying for hedging
instruments and the hedged items are economically
related. The basic variables of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items are standard
aluminium prices. The effect of credit risk does not
dominate the value changes.

The balance of commodity future contracts of
RMB14,471,000 represented the principals and fair
value upward of the commodity future contracts as
at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

28

EREEEMREEM T HZ A
AE )

(e)

7 o LA S B (A7)

A R A 1 1R B b R AR
5 R B R B hoE H B
#6877 A ) 3L 7 o B R S R B
RS E I E 2 5 2 MAF 1
FIAY 458 97 B £ S0 T B R BRI E
A S AR 2 e 2 A R S 6 o 5 B LB
MR EAS EE/EENED-

BRHEANGE R ARIE
14,471,0007C A & —FHE+
A=Z+—HEMmESanNASR
BN G 7 (ZF — L
+ZH=+—H:#) -
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28 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (consinued)

(e)

Commodity price risk (continued)

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

28

The following table provides a reconciliation of

the hedging reserve in respect of commodity price

risk and shows the effectiveness of the hedging

relationships:

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

EREEEMEEM T HZ A
EAH )

(e)  Fi AL MEAS R BE (A7)
AR R A (E S R B A B

5 %HE > 6 F1 R B B (R B B R
P

2020
—EBOEA
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Balance at 1 January R—HA—HZ&&R -
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge i L Ath 2 TR 0 2 A R 2
recognised in other comprehensive income Bl i &2 ¥ 2 A R 5 91,270
Amounts reclassified to profit or loss (Note (1)) EHMOoBEEERE2HE
(Wata@) (96,952)
Related tax H B2 75 852
Balance at 31 December (Note (ii)) R+ A=1+—Hx#ek
(Wt i) (4,830)
Change in fair value of the commodity future FEAMMIEENZ
contracts during the year NEEE) 117,337
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in TR B 2 B0 2 Y I e A
profit and loss (Note 4) (htzt4) (26,067)
Effective portion of the cash flow R A A2 TR 25 B R & BB I
hedge recognised in other B¥HZ BRI (HfaEwm))
comprehensive income (Note 9(b)) 91,270

(1) Amounts reclassified to profit or loss are
recognised in the “Cost of sales” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

(ii) The entire balance in the hedging reserve

relates to continuing hedges.

) EWMoBEHEZZAER
RO RN T ERA
M E P HERE

Gi) BRI A 2 BT A A R
RRUBh AR -
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

f) Fair values measurement

i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant

unobservable inputs

EREEEMREEM T HZ A
AE )

142 T R 2 B
R A i

NRESNR W& AR
GRS R NN U
il T B AT {E B  [
BB 75 5 BB RSB 1358 8
FEFEERN =ZHAT
{ELJE 2] o A P E A B B A
& 4 A€ 2 2 {5 E Bl P
FI B i A AE B R B 1 R
HEEEREWT

. BRAEE S
—HRmAEFERL
FAE > RIVAR ] 5 2 s
BENRFREAAERE
R T R A B
&

. BRAEE  IE S
R AEFREZL
FE AT H@AEZ
AR 22 M IR A B
L UNERNERI
[ NENEIR -
ZHB AFBES
i A B 2 3 % T 5
S INGCE S A
AE

. ESHMEE ERE
K7 8L 58 ¥ A ML
W R AT
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28 Financial risk management and fair 28 EEPEEBE R EM T HZ A
values of financial instruments (continued) YAl )
) Fair values measurement (continued) ) NOEERHR (&)
@) Financial assets and liabilities measured ) 723 F A Gl 7 2 B
at fair value (continued) R A fE (3E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) L FEER ()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into

Fair value at Tiﬁbﬁx‘%’ﬂij‘gﬁ:faﬁz
31 December RFAEGHR DB A
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RoB R
+ZA=
-1

A H- B -8
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR ARWTL  ARWBTFZ  ARKTX

Recurring fair value B AT R

measurements
Assets: EE!
Derivative financial feESmIA:
instruments:
- Commodity future -HRAERY
contracts 14,471 14,471 - -
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into
Fair value at é#;f;@ﬁj;ﬁ%féﬁz
31 December (A $@ﬁ+$7] rtj
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BB
TZAZT—
HZAT{E -1 R F=
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB ’002
ANREFT  ANREFT  AREFT  ARKFT
Recurring fair value B AR
measurements
Liabilities: RE:
Derivative financial fMeESBITA:
instruments:
— Cross-currency interest R EHA B

rate swap 698 - 698 -
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (consinued)

f) Fair values measurement (continued)

i)

(ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the

reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in

Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of cross-currency interest
rate swap contracts are calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and maturity of
the contract, taking into account the market
rates as at the valuation date and features of

the swap.

Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair value as at 31 December
2019 except as disclosed in Note 11.

EREEEMREEM T HZ A
EAH )

A ()

i) BOFHARZ EMEE
R A (5%)
IR (4
RE-F-NERH
BELZAZ+—HILE

(ii)

& 5 — AR AR NI
g RE RS =R
B H 58 = AR o AR
ZBUR 7 TR A 2 o
KRR 75~ FEE R H
Z W

K FE AR AE A& AEH]
NG ELM R A M

TXEWHMERPGHZ
DA E RO S E
FAEC R EV L A
BT E N B H R E
159 Al Bt R ACH & i &
ZBEEE -

W 2 TAHA SR Z HA
S AL E e L 23T

PR B 5 11 AT 35 88 & Sh 0 K
6 [ 2 A B 5H A A
Ik < & T A~ B E B
HRZZFZ-NLE+ZH
=t —HZAFENEE
RAER -



29

30

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 4$R 217 i3 5 R /A 5
Annual Report 2020 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(bR 53 B 150751 BN RIS

Commitments 29 K
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 REZBZFEF+ZA=1+—H ' RUB
not provided for in the financial statements were as AN R R AT E A REAWR
follows:
2020 2019
SE R —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARWET T
Contracted for EATAY

— Purchase of property, plant and equipment — 7% B #ES T =2
for the production base in Chengdu City EEMIEE

N &4 19,702 15,879
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment —Z&HE M <
for the production base in Yichun City A E
N &4 7,388 70,492
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment — 2 L1/ 77 = /K& =~
for the production base in Sanshui, A E
Foshan City UE I V=Y &L 254,458 145,894
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment —Z L5 2
for the production base in Qinyang City EEEMEE
LUE N VY& L 6,126 10,400
287,674 242,665
Contingent liabilities 30 sRARAHE
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 AZE_EFHEFT_A=Z+T—H K&

December 2020 (2019: Nil). W B KRB (ZF— L ) o
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31

Material related party transactions 31

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the

following individuals/companies:

Name of related parties

LEYEAD

HAKRAETT RS

PRz E MBS R EME A i E LS
B sSERAN ) R EE B TN E KR E
L5

RBEEZZF_FHE+ A =+—HIL%#
o ANFERR /AT ANL AR R
A MR T

Relationship with the Group
LA £ 1 ) 1

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating™)
(Ll 37 BLER LA R A 7D (1)
il Sz B R A R A A (T2 B R ) (1)

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (f& 8 B2 B M5 A R A FD @)

& AR B 3 A P e A PR A (TERL 3R A8 1) (1)

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“China Lesso Group”)
(o o5 i 28 52 ) 42 i A PR ) e HL 3 )

(PR B EEER AR AR R ETFARD
(TrP B YE SR )

Jiangxi Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(TLPH % = B AR & A IR A FD (1)
LV A = E e AR E A IR A A G)

i) The English translation of the company names
is for reference only. The official names of these

companies are in Chinese.

Effectively owned by certain
executive directors of the Company

HAANFE THITEFREREA

Owned as to 21% by Mr. Liao Yuqing
and as to 46% by Mr. Luo Su. Mr.
Liao yuqing is an executive director
of the Company and Mr. Luo Su is the
father-in-law of Mr. Liao Yuqing.

H B B S A A 21 % M 2 B B R O
LRI - B EBEIERA
NEPITERRBHRCERETE
FeAEHIE A

substantial shareholder of the Company

AN E] EER R

Associate of the Group
A BB N A

) REFELFAMAEGELERSZE -
FAFK RS AR EX AR -
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31 Material related party transactions 31 HKPBHHEATT RS @)
(continued)
(a)  Transactions @ x5
Sales and purchase HE
2020 2019
SRR —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NERHTIT
Sales of goods to HEEM
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — Bl 3% E G 114,224 127,091
— Jiangxi Jingxing —{L7g =Bl 14,894 25,894
— China Lesso Group (Note) —H R
(Ktat) 33,722 33,779
162,840 186,764
Properties leased out YEHHET
— Jiangxi Jingxing —{L7g = B 5,022 4,625
— China Lesso Group (Note) — H [ T 2
(Krat) 4,264 1,489
9,286 6,114
Purchase of raw materials TR [ AL
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — B g% B 164 544
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31 Material related party transactions 31 HKPBHHATI RS &)
(continued)
(b)  Balances with related parties (b)  SELBHHLUTS ) &5 R
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had TR BASR > A5 [ B B 7 RO A
the following balances with related parties: BRATE :
@) Trade and other receivables (Note 17) (i) 5T HA IEW 3 (1 3F
17)
2020 2019
—EBCZHF —E-LE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ABRHTT

Trade related H1ZX 5 F
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — Bl 4% L 15,994 17,756
— Jiangxi Jingxing —{L7g s il 9,029 19,308
— China Lesso Group (Note) — — MBIl #H 48 5
(htat) 22,982 6,728

48,005 43,792
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Material related party transactions 31 HKPBHHEATT RS @)
(continued)
(b)  Balances with related parties (continued) (b)  BLBHHET &G RR ()
(ii)  Trade and other payables (i) 5 BN BT
2020 2019
TR TRAE ZE—UE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FL NRBFor
Trade related BLix2 5 A
— China Lesso Group (Note) ——HH B[ ¥ £ [H
(htat) 124 121
124 121

The amounts due from related parties are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

Note:

Guangzhou Jingxing, Foshan Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co.,
Led. (ff s B BEAREE FHR A
A]), Zhejiang Huijing Construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (i 7LFE &= &%
B AR /A F)and Henan Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (7] & 5t B g0 AR 2 A PR A
#])are non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of China Lesso Group, and the
transactions between the Group and the
abovementioned entities were treated
as parts of related parties transaction
between the Group and China Lesso
Group.

JE Wi ) 72 75 K L 7 SR AR A
L ] 5 AR R o

Bt s JE M s B 0 S B e
A B A BR A F] ~ i
LHERERMRAR
AW SERR- S g S
AR S A IR A~ Al
v I B U R 1 2 JF
EENE AT RAE
s O - 3 P
55 8 1R A 7 A B
B v 15 I Y R ) ] 2
BT 28 5 2 — 8 e
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31 Material related party transactions 31 HKPBHHATI RS &)
(continued)
(¢)  Key management personnel remuneration (¢ FEEMABE
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEHEANEB ZME (RIEHFE7
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors T B FES T 43 R AR 1 88 & S A T A&
as disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management SEEEERSREEANENSE)
as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: (N
2020 2019
St Tt 7 —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N RIET T
Short-term employee benefits EHE BEA 22,977 17,500
Contribution to retirement 7B R ) 1 R K
benefit plan 131 137
Equity settled share-based payment D& HE &5 B A% 1o 2 F
expenses O ASH K B 627 575
23,735 18,212

(d)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(Note 5(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions of sales and/or
purchase above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the Directors of this

annual report.

(d)

Pl < 48 A AT AT B TakA ) (Bt
5(b)) e

VR R S T 22 X 2 W
1

bR ER/SREZHEANLRS
MRE BB SZMARA A&
7 EWAAN (TR R 14A%
It 5 € < [ 58 B R A K2
5o LA 14AT BE 2 B8
BN EREFETREZ THAE
o —Hfie
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Company-level statement of financial 25 ) JE i A 5 R
position
2020 2019
ZRTRAR ZE—JUE
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
braE AR oc NR¥For
Non-current asset Ik i B &
Investments in subsidiaries R E AR & 14 584,182 621,804
Current assets i B
Amounts due from a subsidiary JiEE e — [T PR 88 s 3k TE 91,992 94,614
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 1,777 1,636
93,769 96,250
Current liabilities i B A fe
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEEAST BAT Ja 2 ] K 94,820 87,748
Other payables At JEE A5 R TE 7,191 7,942
102,011 95,690
Net current (liabilities)/assets W (A AEEFE (8,242) 560
Total assets less current liabilities & & jas Ik ifi B £ 18 575,940 622,364
Net assets A e 575,940 622,364
Capital and reserves J A e it i 27
Share capital e A& 3,732 3,731
Reserves {8 572,208 618,633
Total equity 5 4 575,940 622,364
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33

34

Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period

(i) After the end of the reporting period, the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in Note 27(b).

(ii) Xingfa Jiangxi and Guangzhou Jingxing entered
into an equity transfer agreement on 4 February
2021 (the “Equity Transfer”), pursuant to which
Xingfa Jiangxi agreed to transfer its entire equity
interest in Jiangxi Jingxing to Guangzhou Jingxing.
The consideration of the Equity Transfer is RMB10
million. Completion of the Equity Transfer took
place on 12 March 2021. Immediately upon
completion of the Equity Transfer, the Group
ceased to hold any interest in Jiangxi Jingxing and
Jiangxi Jingxing ceased to be an associate of the
Group.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the group.

33

34

i IR 18 2 JE o B R

)  REEHRR EFEGEHRIRER
HARR B o — 2 5 1F 7 3R N B AE
27(b)°

(i) HETVREBEMNSBER - = —
£ = A /Y H 5T 37 B8 RE 17 i
(TR REw o ) > FRIE > ELEE7T S
[F) 2 3 L A T 7 = L (%) 2 0 R A
G T oM = L o R RE AR A
A E#10,000,0007T o A% i 8 2 72
CECFEZHA T HER BB
MR SE AR AR REHRA
VL7 = B A AT A 28 B Y P o B
AN 2 A S 1l 2 T2 A | IR o

BEZFMHBRROAELY HEE
AtERIZ B B NI SEREES
ZoEE+ A=t —HIEFEMRE
RHIAE T B — TE 7 4 FIJ B8] (5% o 5 ¥ o5
RIS 175R CR Bz & 4 > T o S5 A 765 i 3R 1 Je
RANZFER % F RS NHIA] AE
HARHARAIER

Effective for
accounting years
beginning on or after

R REIH Wk 2 12

BH 46 ) € s AF RS

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
I % Bt 75 e o 68 R SB35 A 5T AR B A2 20 B2 i 18 2 —E-F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
PR a st B RIS 169 B BT AWK /5 KR 1 HEE 28 5T 2 P gk R/ —E-F—H—H
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
WX & st RIS 7SR E 5T A R 1L & 49— B 1T 2 FIHI A —E-#—-H—H

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

BIFRM B S e —F — N EE T R EM - IO

1 January 2022
—E- oA
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Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Impacts of COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations and

financial position in the first half of 2020.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s businesses and has put in
place contingency measures. These contingency measures
include but not limited to: assessing the suppliers’
readiness; improving the production process, negotiating
with distributors on delivery schedules, continuously
monitoring the operations of the distributors and
strengthening cost control.

The Group’s management has setup for catching up
delayed schedules as a result of the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The directors of the Company believe consumer sentiment
will be recovered from COVID-19 pandemic eventually
amid the expectation of vaccine will be available for
extensive distribution in 2021. The Group will be cautious
and stay vigilant and react to the evolving situation.

%o 3 B 5 T R B Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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REE _F g =)

— H IR A JE 2R i {5 R 2 3808

gaw%@w&%ﬁm@E%
(A

A B8 (9] 1 AE R Al 4 55 3% RN B U
EREEEFS- 2 K U b AP N N Pk S
MzEFREBGEAVBREELERY
BRYATREEARK

COVID-19%% 1% 1) 5% 2

H 8 BEF LI COVID-19E1E 5
AEENEERES FEIIAHEEHE
WEHAERE —FT - FE EYIENEE
Tk 0 755 AR I 25 e i 2 o

A B8 [ T ) B P 0 A R A A R [ 3K
B 05 2 Ol I S i o % F B &
T8 B B A R BR AR+ 5 £l £ 8 v 2 5 78
A EEAERE  BH R
S B P 2%~ 455 A0 B S T B R T
Slf 0 58 S A 2 il o

ALEEHECH s HLUNEEF
—EETF A=t -HIEEERNE LR
T 2 e RO 25 i 3K 1 B B HE R B R
4% o

AANFEEMG HRTEIZE R =
T -FEREZSR HEAEBERKY
FRCOVID- 195 1% i 1& K 18 o A 55 [F & /)\
DERE S (RIS M K E R 2 AL
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Five Years Summary

Fikig

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(XA BRIEST)

As at 31 I)jcember
R+=A=1—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CRORE ZFE-NE ZF-N\FE ZF—tF ZF-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANRBFIE AREFLT ARETFT ARETFLT ARETIL
Assets and liabilities Bk fasE
Non-current assets FEREEE 2,743,711 2,668,419 2,376,862 2,301,489 2,140,723
Current assets REEE 5,692,350 5,092,971 4,731,621 4,142,972 3,201,732
Current liabilities HEAE (4,387,097)  (4262373)  (4,190,051)  (3,810,506)  (3,184,340)
Non-current liabilities FEREAE (351,031) (460,137 (414,574) (564,920) (470,195)
Net assets B A 3,697,933 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035 1,687,920
Capital and reserves JBE A T fil
Share capital HR A 3,732 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731
Reserves it 3,693,460 3,034,604 2,500,379 2,065,304 1,684,189
Total equity attributable to AN AR
equity shareholders of JEE 1% i 25 4 2
the Company 3,697,192 3,038,335 2,504,110 2,069,035 1,687,920
Non-controlling interests JErE RS 741 545 (252) - -
Total equity RS 4 3,697,933 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035 1,687,920
For the year ended 31 December
BE+ A= HIEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CECORE CE-E ZF-)\E ZF-tF ZE-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
ARBTFIL AREFLT AREFTr AREFr ARETFI
Results 4
Revenue e 11,886,862 11,280,848 9,924,517 7,239,658 5,576,696
Profit before taxation R 52 A i 873,412 723,470 607,916 444,445 351,291
Income tax {8 M (111,953) (120,864) (113,938) (61,815) (52,815)
Profit for the year SR TR A 761,459 602,606 493,978 382,630 298,476
Attributable to: DU N LR
Equity shareholders of the AN T i
Company 765,385 606,109 495,230 382,630 298,476
Non-controlling interests JEPER eSS (3,926) (3,503) (1,252) - -
761,459 602,606 493,978 382,630 298,476
Earnings per share A A B
Basic (RMB yuan) YN ) 1.83 1.45 1.18 0.92 0.71
Diluted (RMB yuan) AL %r) 1.83 145 1.18 0.92 0.71

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

{/\ °
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